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Dear shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Hydoo International Holding Limited
("Hydoo", the “Company”, “we", or “our’), together with its subsidiaries (the “Group™), |
hereby present the annual report of the Group for the financial year ended 31 December
2016 (“FY2016" or the “Year”).

FINANCIAL RESULTS

During the Year, the Group's revenue and gross profit reached approximately RMB2,335.8
million and RMBI,285.9 million, respectively (the revenue and gross profit for the financial
year ended 31 December 2015 (“FY2015"): RMB3,166.4 million and RMB1,633.9 million,
respectively). Basic earnings per share for FY2016 were RMB8.7 cents (FY2015: RMBI13.9

cents).

MARKET AND OPERATION REVIEW

During the Year, China's Gross Domestic Product (“GDP") has increased by 6.7%
when comparing to last year. Under the mid- to long-term L-shaped economic trend,
the Chinese economy operated within a reasonable range, which was a major symbol
of the increasingly significant manifestation of the features of the new norm. However,
the international and domestic economic environments remained to be complex.
Overcapacity on the supply side remained, while private investment on the demand side
declined. The foundation for the stable and sound development of the Chinese economy

was not solid.

Faced with the downward pressure of the market environment, the Group upheld the
principle of the stabilisation of development and the prevention of risks, strove to make
progress whilst maintaining stability, and explored innovation in its business fields to inject

momentum to its development.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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Adjusting sales strategy and development progress in response to market

“Destocking” was not only one of the key words in the Chinese economy for the Year,
but also the focus of the Group's work under the current inventory market. During the
Year, in order to achieve destocking, the Group has adopted targeted strategies and
flexible pricing mechanisms, reduced area of new construction, carried out production
based on market conditions, prudently controlled land reserves, and ensured the safe and

reasonable structure of its land reserves.

Meanwhile, with the implementation of “destocking” measures and the encouragement
of rational consumption by the central government as well as the loosened monetary
policy, the residential property market has manifested a positive development trend. In
this situation, the Group closely followed market changes and increased the supply of
residential property. Therefore, the proportion of contracted sales of residential property
in total contracted sales of the Group increased from 2.0% in FY2015 to 28.2% in FY2016;
the proportion of income generated from the sales of residential property in total sales
of the Group increased from 1.2% in FY2015 to 10.5% in FY2016. Sales in residential

property recorded an encouraging growth.

Significant growth in recurring business income with constant and stable return

Despite weak sales in the Group's trade and logistics center projects caused by the
economic environment, the growth in sustainable income is worth-mentioning. During the
Year, the Group's property management services income and rental income amounted
to RMB42.1 million and RMB45.1 million respectively, represented an increase of 128.6%
and 19.6% respectively to that of FY2015. Benefiting from the constant expansion of its
property management business and the increase in rental areas, contribution in profit
by the Group's recurring business income has increased significantly, which helped us to
withstand the risk of periodic market fluctuations and to achieve long-term, stable and
sustainable development. The Group will continue to promote other business models
that generate recurring income, including O20O integrated trading platform, logistics and
warehouse services as well as community O20 business, to form a strong supplement to

the Group's traditional business and cultivate new growth area with profitability.

_ HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED SREEIMIZRER D H

EmRAREERBRAREE

[£EF | TERWICFEFRHLENBRE T
Z— TREETHFEMSNARE FAEE
MIEEDL - AFE EERFE  ARER
BT RSHHENHEERBNEENERFR -
AP TEE  BHEE  2REHNLHMH
B RELHREEBLZE2AE -

R - FREFEBOEET BRI
BHRE  MZERNERER <HTHE
MHERERERDE - EUFET A5E
SBRMIHE( - EMEEMELRE - Bt &
ENMEENHEEGBENHEENLLAIH 20155
BREE R 2.0% 8N ZE 20168 BEZ #28.2% :
FEWEHERAMER L HE 00 B
015 BFER 12%EME016HBEED
10.5%  FEREHERFARENER -

EEHERUABREETREEARBEND
®

BEASEHNEYRTOBENHERLER
BT ERARR  BREHKANERES
BT AFE  AREREMEEERBHA
NEENBAD A RARB 421 BETMA
RESIGET BISHHEENBIER
T1286%8%196% - BaRBEMMEERER
MBEREAREEERMEN FERLEE
HEBRABFENERBERA - TEEY
REMEETHSBEHEEBHNER - EHHR
AEEERRORBNAFELE - A5BK
BRESHERMATRETHEBANEER
X BREOWHERZTAR « MInHERRE
PARALER 020 7 « MK EAEBERER
WENHR BEFNRIERE -



Profit making in the financial sector with a promising beginning of the “traditional

business + finance” model

The Group engages in equity investment, industrial fund management, finance leasing,
commercial factoring and other businesses in the financial sector. During the Year, our
financial business in the field of finance leasing continuously made profits and established
a promising start for the Group's “traditional business + finance” model. Meanwhile,
the Group successfully set up Shenzhen Qianhai Hydoo Equity Investment and Fund
Management Co,, Ltd. (RYIATEREREREEEEEBMAF]) and Shenzhen
Qianhai Hydoo Commercial Factoring Co., Ltd (RYIFNEREEEREERAF)
during the Year to gradually build an all-finance product trading service platform. In
addition, the financial sector will subsequently provide necessary financial support for the
Group's O20 integrated trading platform, including the provision of professional financial
talents, management and operation of online financial platform, and risk control and

management.

PROSPECTS

2017 is the year for intensification of supply-side structural reform in China. Looking at
the domestic environment, the overall Chinese economy tends to be stable with a more
balanced structure. The new economic norm will still be the mainstream. Despite the
downward pressure in the Chinese economy, the fundamental of long-term economic
prosperity remains unchanged. The recent Central Economic Work Conference stated
that in 2017, the supply-side structural reform will be intensified mainly in four aspects:
firstly, further promotion of reduction in overcapacity, destocking, deleveraging, cost
reduction and strengthening of areas of weakness; secondly, further promotion of
agricultural supply-side structural reform; thirdly, strengthening of the real economy;

fourthly, promotion of stable and healthy development of the property market.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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In respect of destocking, it was pointed out in the Central Economic Work Conference
that in order to resolve the overstocking problem of properties in third-to-fourth tier
cities, classified regulation shall persist, and policies shall be adopted according to the
needs of the specific city and region. Combining destocking and the promotion of
population urbanisation, interconnection between infrastructures in third-to-fourth tier
cities and large cities will be enhanced. Meanwhile, in the trade and logistics sector, to
further promote healthy development of the trade and logistics industry, reduce logistics
cost and enhance circulation efficiency, relevant departments of the Chinese government
formulated “13th Five-Year Plan — Trade and Logistics Development” (the “Plan”), which
clearly set out that China will generally form a trade and logistics network with urban and
rural collaboration, regional synergy and effective domestic and international connection.
The standardisation, informationisation, intensification and internationalisation of trade and
logistics will be significantly enhanced. The Plan also proposed the establishment of seven
major projects, including the construction of trade and logistics platform, the enhancement
in functions of trade and logistics community, and the e-commerce logistics project. These
policies will bring enormous opportunities to the development of the Group's trade and

logistics centers.

According to the fundamental pre-judgment on the domestic economic environment and
the industrial signal released from national policies, the Group will focus on the adoption
of the following strategies in 2017: firstly, the traditional main business will be the core.
For the destocking of its trade and logistics center projects, the Group will conduct in-
depth analysis of its existing advantages and future development trend with reference
to the results and problems in 2016, and make good use of local policies and its existing
resources. For new available-for-sale projects, the Group will follow its progress plan,
focus on important areas to achieve its annual target values. For contracted projects, the
Group will follow unified arrangements, control cost and expenses to proceed steadily.
For exploration of new projects, the Group will adhere to the principle of prudence
and accuracy to guarantee support for its development. Secondly, the Group will
promote industrial upgrade through reforms. The Group will think creatively and focus
on the sales and commercial management sectors to achieve better results in 2017.
In addition, the Group will continue to develop and implement “Yigilai" (F%#E2K), the
whole-process trade integrated service e-commerce platform, its business in the financial
sector, “Yingtaozhen” (HHK[&), smart community service center, and other emerging
businesses, and operate well as an urban service operator. The Group will establish an
informationised, modernised and technological integrated trade and logistics community
through “Internet +", and create an urban smart community to generate profitable new

growth areas for the Group.
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APPRECIATION EEl

Lastly, on behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to express my sincere BiE RAEUBREERRESERORHM
gratitude to our valued shareholders, customers and business partners for their trust and BRER  EFREBBHHRNEE—BIARD
support, | would also like to thank all our staff for their professionalism and wholehearted EERYHE  RETEHEEE ITNHRERE

commitment. R e ERER -
Wang Jianli TR

Chairman g

Hong Kong, 30 March 2017 B 2017F3A30H
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEFNWR DT

BUSINESS REVIEW
Review of FY2016 Performance

Contracted Sales Performance

In FY2016, the Group recorded contracted sales of approximately RMB2,527.2 million and
contracted sales area of 503,870 sq.m., representing a decrease of 18.7% and an increase
of 3.8%, respectively (FY2015: approximately RMB3,108.6 million and 485,461 sq.m.).
During the Year, the Chinese economy experienced a period of weak GDP growth,
and the sluggish economic environment presented various degrees of challenges to the
Group's operating markets. As a result, the Group's contracted sales were inevitably
affected. Contracted sales recorded during the Year were primarily in relation to the pre-

sale of properties for projects in Lanzhou, Yulin, Wuzhou and Ganzhou.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEBNWmRDM

Details of contracted sales recorded in FY2016 are shown in the table below:

Contracted

sales area

aHHE
i

216
Average
contracted
sales price
(before
deduction
of business
tax, value
added tax
and
surcharges)
ahHE
THER

(RE%H -

EERR
WM&

WI6HRFERDHENFEERTX -

For the year ended 31 December

BZ1A3IALEE

Contracted
sales amount
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deduction
of business
tax, value

added tax

and Contracted

surcharges)
ANEE
&8
(RE%H -

sales area

EERR AN

W)

i

015

Average
contracted
sales price

(before
deduction
of business
tax and

surcharges)

AnEE
FIER
(FEXH
Rl inZA)

Contracted
sales
amount
(before
deduction
of business
tax and
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ANEE
Fix
(B2xk
R nEs)

(contracted sales area in sqm, average contracted sales prce in RMB per sqm. and contracted sales amount i thousands of RIB)

(RHEERRUTIRT  ANHETHERY ST ANERTL RENEEL B ARRT 1)

Lanzhou Trade Center

Wholesale trading market units

Yulin Trade Center

Wholesale trading market units

Shopping mall

Wuzhou Trade Center

Wholesale trading market units

Shopping mall

Ganzhou Trade Center

Residence

Wholesale trading market units

Shopping mall

Xingning Trade Center

Wholesale trading market units

Bengbu Commercial and
Residential Project

Residence

AR
EURBRTEER
THEENED
EURBRTEER
ARBRTE
ENBETSD
EURPEREER
GARBRTE
BABEIRSD
BLE
EURPEREER
EARBRTE
RERENHAD
EURPEREER
HERERETER

EHE

80,626

nan
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63,805

74219
3035
110

47907

83406

6,995

5,166
1,791

5326

4130
1131
10,000

6,034

3,038

563,959

377010
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339,800

306,498
25,030
1,100
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253370

78218
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177684
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWE DN

216
Average
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For the year ended 3| December
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AREE
1
(REXH
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ANHE
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T

(contracted sales area in sqm, average contracted sales price in RMB per sqm. and contracted sales amount i thousands of RIB)

(BHHEREL IR  ANHETHEBU ST AN ER T RANEEL B ARRT 1)

Jining Trade Center BEBENRAD
Residence EER 33931 443) 150,380 14,303 4315 61,720
Wholesale trading market units BURSRTRET 7977 4633 36,960 14529 4515 65,600
Heze Trade Center FEBEMRAL
Wholesale trading market units BURSRTRET 247765 47l 17,170 499 5439 13369
Mianyang Trade Center BEEEMRAL
Wholesale trading arket unts BURARTRET 8519 5,930 38,660 2654 6251 165,940
Yantai Trade Center EaBENRL
Wholesale trading market units BURSERRET 3559 6,805 24220 49268 7044 347,050
Ningxiang Trade Center ERBEMRAL
Serviced apartments BEALE 700 3400 2380 4 2917 140
Total it 503870 5016 2,527,167 48546 6403 3108614
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Land Acquisition and Land Bank

In FY2016, we acquired land-use rights with an aggregate total site area of approximately
203,642 sq.m., which is expected to have an aggregate estimated gross floor area (the
"GFA") of approximately 243,066 sqm.. As of 31 December 2016, we had a total land
bank of approximately || million sq.m., and we were simultaneously developing 14

projects in 9 provinces and autonomous regions in China.

Details of land bank for each project are shown in the table below:

Estimated

BEEENWRE DM

TR A

R0I6FHBFE - ZfREREnEEs £
£203602FF KM T HERE ZLin iR
EMmENAAREER((AREER)NA
243066 F 5K - R2016E 12 A31 B » BFE
TiEEE RN BETEAK  LIERFER
NEEHRERRRKHETUEES -

BRA HREBEHBENTE -

Estimated
GFA

GFA of properties

Actual GFA of properties

planned for Total GFA Total GFA

of completed under future withland  of properties
properties  development  development use rights delivered Land bank
BRI Rk
NEER i3 LUES ARBRE
mEE  frhEs UESH 4 BRA
H& R AREER AREER AEREER 1ibfE
sqgm. sqm. sqm. sqm. sqm. sqgm.

(FrK) (F5K)

(F5A) (F5K) (F5A) (FrK)

Ganzhou Trade Center EMNEEMRE O 748439 309,714 2,342,590 3400743 556,178 2844565
Lanzhou Trade Center BMEEmRA L 513794 26,666 | 842,742 2383202 137,659 2245543
Xingning Trade Center EBEHEMRPL 258372 73587 979,400 1311359 195,134 1116225
Jining Trade Center EEEBIRRL 716735 166,104 523,803 1 406,642 476737 929,905
Bengbu Commercial and HREERETER

Residential Project - 236593 651 694 888267 - 888,67
Wuzhou Trade Center BNEEMRE O 478770 — 595,290 1074060 220920 853140
Heze Trade Center STERBMRE O 247,166 54,680 47787 729633 112510 617,123
Yulin Trade Center EHEBDRA L 350429 84616 321,065 75,110 222,59 533516
Jiamusi Trade Center EREEEMRA L — 6,344 483,089 489433 — 489433
Yanta Trade Center EamEMRE L 141,040 13172 191,228 345440 29,002 316438
Liuzhou Trade Center MBI — — 299,960 299,960 — 299,960
Mianyang Trade Center BEBHEMRPL 511435 - 80320 591,755 378619 213136
Ningxiang Trade Center ERHEMRP L 381,949 61518 — 443467 281,388 162,079
Haode Yinzuo RERE 48650 — - 48,650 38780 9870
Total @it 439,779 1,032,994 8738968 14168741 2,649,521 11,519,220
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWE DN

OUR PROJECTS

Ganzhou Trade Center

Ganzhou Trade Center is strategically located in southwestern Jiangxi province near the
intersection of Jiangxi, Hunan and Guangdong provinces. Ganzhou lies along a major
transportation route connecting the inland areas of China with China’s southeastern coast.
There are two major railways intersecting in Ganzhou, namely the Jing-Jiu Railway and the

Gan-Long Railway.

Ganzhou Trade Center covers a net land area of approximately 1,475,298 sq.m., which
is estimated to consist of at least two phases, and is estimated to have a total GFA of
approximately 3.4 million sq.m. upon full completion. As of 31 December 2016, we had

acquired all the land-use rights for this trade center project.

As of 31 December 2016, we had completed the construction of wholesale trading
markets and shopping malls. We are constructing a food street, a logistics distribution
center, warehouses, a residential area, and supporting buildings and facilities. As part of
our future development plan, we are planning to construct a commercial and exhibition

center, additional shopping malls, residential areas, warehouses, office buildings and hotels.

Lanzhou Trade Center

Lanzhou Trade Center is located in Yuzhong County, Lanzhou, which is next to the
community of Lanzhou College. It is located in the south of Qinling Highway and 312
National Road and the north of 309 National Road, and is approximately 15 kilometers
from downtown Lanzhou City, 20 kilometers and 80 kilometers from the railway station

and airport of Lanzhou City, respectively.

Lanzhou Trade Center is planned to cover a site area of approximately 4.0 million sqm.
and has an aggregate estimated GFA of approximately 6.0 million sq.m, which is expected
to be developed at least in two phases. As of 31 December 2016, we had acquired the
land-use rights encompassing a total site area of 1,372,963 sqm., with a total GFA of
2,383,202 sq.m. upon completion.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As of 31 December 2016, for this trade center project, we had completed the
construction of wholesale trading markets and a commercial pedestrian street. We are
constructing additional wholesale trading markets. As part of our future development plan,
we are planning to construct shopping malls, an office building, warehouses and additional

wholesale trading markets.

Xingning Trade Center

Xingning Trade Center is located at the northeast of the Xingning train station in Diaofang.
Xingning is a city governed by Meizhou city, situated in the northeast Guangdong province
near Jiangxi and Fujian provinces, and is accessible by major national highways connecting

Guangdong and various other provinces in China.

Xingning Trade Center is planned to cover a site area of approximately |.3 million sq.m.
and has an aggregate estimated GFA of approximately 2.0 million sq.m., which is expected
to be developed in three phases. As of 31 December 2016, we had acquired the land-use
rights encompassing a total site area of 804,963 sqm. with a total GFA of approximately

1,311,359 sq.m. upon completion of development.

As of 31 December 2016, for this trade center project, we had completed the
construction of wholesale trading markets, serviced apartments and certain supporting
buildings and facilities, and were constructing shopping malls. As part of our future
development plan, we are planning to construct a residential area, an office building, a

warehouse, additional wholesale trading markets and shopping malls.

Jining Trade Center

Jining Trade Center is located approximately six kilometers west of Jining, a prefecture-
level city in southwestern Shandong province, and is one of the three major industrial
bases in Shandong province. It is easily accessible by a number of connecting bus lines, and
lies within ten kilometers of the Jining train station and 30 kilometers of the Jining Qufu

airport.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWE DN

Jining Trade Center is planned to cover a site area of approximately 2.0 million sq.m. and
has an aggregate estimated GFA of approximately 3.0 million sq.m., which is expected to
be developed in three phases. As of 31 December 2016, we had acquired land-use rights
for all of Phase | and Phase I, encompassing a total site area of 975,863 sq.m., and expect

a total GFA of 1,406,642 sq.m. upon full completion of Phase | and Phase Il.

As of 31 December 2016, for this trade center project, we had completed the
construction of wholesale trading markets, a shopping mall and a residential area, and
were constructing a commercial center, a hotel, an office building and a commercial and
exhibition center. As part of our future development plan, we are planning to construct

warehouses, serviced apartments, a residential area and office buildings.

Bengbu Commerecial and Residential Project

Bengbu Commercial and Residential Project is located in Huaiyuan County, Bengbu,
northeast of Anhui Province. It is located west of Beijing-Shanghai Railway and Beijing-
Shanghai High-speed Railway, at the junction of National Road 206, Provincial Highway
307, Provincial Highway 225 and other highways. It is approximately 25 kilometers, 30
kilometers and 120 kilometers from downtown Bengbu, the Bengbu railway station and

the airport of Hefei, respectively.

Bengbu Commercial and Residential Project covers a net land area of approximately
363,737 sq.m., which is estimated to consist of at least two phases, and is estimated
to have a total GFA of approximately 888,287 sq.m. upon full completion. As of 31
December 2016, we had acquired all the land-use rights for this commercial and

residential project.

As of 31 December 2016, for this commercial and residential project, we were
constructing a residential area and certain supporting buildings and facilities. As part of
our future development plan, we are planning to develop a residential area, a commercial

center, a hotel and certain supporting buildings and facilities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Wouzhou Trade Center

Wuzhou Trade Center is strategically located in Wuzhou, a city in eastern Guangxi near
the border of Guangxi and Guangdong provinces. It is approximately 370 kilometers east
of Nanning, the capital of Guangxi, and approximately 270 kilometers west of Guangzhou,

the capital of Guangdong.

Wuzhou Trade Center is planned to cover a site area of approximately [.3 million sq.m.
and has an aggregate estimated GFA of approximately 2.0 million sq.m., which is expected
to be developed in two phases. As of 31 December 2016, we had acquired land-use
rights for all of Phase |, encompassing a total site area of 599,642 sq.m with a total GFA of
1,074,060 sq.m. upon full completion of Phase | development.

As of 31 December 2016, for this trade center project, we had completed the
construction of wholesale trading markets, shopping malls, a commercial and exhibition
center, and certain supporting buildings and facilities. As part of our future development
plan, we are planning to construct a residential area, an office building, serviced apartments,

a hotel and additional shopping malls.

Heze Trade Center

Heze Trade Center is located in the city's central Mudan District, along National Highway

220, and is approximately two kilometers from Heze's city center.

Heze Trade Center is planned to cover a site area of approximately 8.0 million sq.m. and
has an aggregate estimated GFA of approximately 12.0 million sq.m., which is expected to
be developed in three phases. As of 31 December 2016, we had acquired land-use rights
for all of Phase | and a portion of Phase II, encompassing a total site area of 587,239 sq.m.
with a total planned GFA of approximately 729,633 sqm. upon completion of the Phase |

and Phase Il development.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWE DN

As of 31 December 2016, for this trade center project, we had completed the
construction of wholesale trading markets and certain supporting buildings and facilities,
and were constructing a shopping mall. As part of our future development plan, we are
planning to construct office buildings, serviced apartments, a residential area, additional

shopping malls and wholesale trading markets.

Yulin Trade Center

Yulin Trade Center is located approximately two kilometers from Yulin, the fourth largest
city in Guangxi, located along the border with Guangdong province. The trade center’s
northern edge is bounded by Yulin Second Ring Road. It is three kilometers from Guang-

Kun Freeway and is within ten kilometers of Yulin train station.

Yulin Trade Center is planned to cover a site area of approximately |.2 million sq.m. and
has an aggregate estimated GFA of approximately 2.0 million sq.m., which is expected
to be developed in several phases. As of 3| December 2016, we had acquired land-
use rights for all of Phase |, Phase Il and a portion of Phase lll, encompassing a total site
area of 504,889 sq.m. with a total planned GFA of approximately 756,110 sq.m. upon full

completion of Phase I, Phase Il and Phase Il development.

As of 31 December 2016, for this trade center project, we had completed the
construction of wholesale trading markets and shopping malls, and were constructing a
commercial and exhibition center and additional wholesale trading markets. As part of
our future development plan, we are planning to construct a hotel, office buildings and

additional wholesale trading markets.

Jiamusi Trade Center

Jiamusi Trade Center is located in Jiamusi City, the core city and transportation hub in
eastern Heilongjiang. It is located approximately ten kilometers west of Jiamusi's city hall,
in the north of Youyi Road (the urban main road), and one kilometer from Ha-Tong

Freeway.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Jiamusi Trade Center is estimated to cover a site area of approximately 2.0 million sqm.
and has an aggregate estimated GFA of approximately 3.0 million sq.m., which is expected
to be developed in several phases. As of 3|1 December 2016, we had acquired land use
rights for Phase | development, encompassing a total site area of 484,708 sq.m., with a

total planned GFA of 489,433 sqm..

As of 31 December 2016, we were constructing a commercial and exhibition center.
As part of our future development plan, we are planning to construct wholesale trading

markets, shopping malls, a hotel and certain supporting buildings and facilities.

Yantai Trade Center

Yantai Trade Center is located in southem Zhifu District of Yantai City, west of Shenhai
Highway, nine kilometers north of Yantai railway station, east of the Yantai wharf and 9.5
kilometers south of the Laishan International Airport and Rongwu Highway. The location

of Yantai Trade Center has exceptional geographical and transportation advantages.

Yantai Trade Center is planned to cover a site area of approximately |.3 million sqm. and
has an aggregate estimated GFA of approximately 2.4 million sq.m., which is expected
to be developed in several phases. As of 3| December 2016, we had acquired land-
use rights for all of Phase |, encompassing a total site area of 160,056 sqm. with a total

planned GFA of 345,440 sq.m. upon completion.

As of 31 December 2016, for this trade center project we had completed the
construction of wholesale trading markets, we were constructing a commercial and
exhibition center and certain supporting buildings and facilities. As part of our future
development plan, we are planning to construct shopping malls, an office building, a hotel

and serviced apartments.

Liuzhou Trade Center

Liuzhou Trade Center is located in Liujiang Town, Liuzhou City, Guangxi Zhuang
Autonomous Region. It is located in the east of Xianggui railway and in the south of

Liujiang Road.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWE DN

Liuzhou Trade Center is estimated to cover a site area of approximately 1.2 million sqm.
and has an aggregate estimated GFA of approximately 1.5 million sq.m., which is expected
to be developed in several phases. As of 31 December 2016, we had acquired the land-
use rights for all of Phase |, encompassing a total site area of 259,577 sq.m, with a total

planned GFA of 299,960 sq.m..

As part of our future development plan, we are planning to construct wholesale trading

markets, shopping malls, office buildings and certain supporting buildings and facilities.

Mianyang Trade Center

Mianyang Trade Center is strategically located in Mianyang, the second largest city in
Sichuan Province, approximately 120 kilometers northeast of Chengdu, the capital of
Sichuan province, along the key highway and railway that connects Sichuan province and

western and northem China.

Mianyang Trade Center covers a net land area of approximately 605,084 sq.m. which
is expected to be developed in several phases, and is estimated to have a total GFA of
approximately 591,755 sq.m. upon full completion. As of 31 December 2016, we had

acquired all the land-use rights for this trade center project

As of 31 December 2016, for this trade center project, we had completed the
construction of wholesale trading markets, and certain supporting buildings and facilities.
As part of our future development plan, we are planning to construct additional wholesale

trading markets and a hotel.

Ningxiang Trade Center

Ningxiang Trade Center is located approximately three kilometers west of the city center
of Ningxiang, a county in Changsha, which is the capital of Hunan province. Highway 319
runs along the eastern edge of the Ningxiang Trade Center and provides Ningxiang with

convenient access to other key cities in Hunan, such as Changsha, Zhuzhou and Xiangtan.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Ningxiang Trade Center is planned to cover a site area of |.3 million sqm. and has an
aggregate estimated GFA of approximately 1.2 million sq.m., which is expected to be
developed in several phases. As of 31 December 2016, we had acquired land-use rights
for all of Phase |, encompassing a total site area of 301,387 sq.m. with a total planned GFA
of 443,467 sqm. upon full completion of Phase I.

As of 31 December 2016, for this trade center project, we had completed the
construction of wholesale trading markets, a freight-forwarding market, a commercial and
exhibition center, warehouses, a bus terminal and information center, serviced apartments,

and were constructing a hotel.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

Revenue decreased by RMB830.6 million, or 26.2%, from approximately RMB3,166.4
million for FY2015 to RMB2,335.8 million for FY2016. This decrease was primarily caused
by a decrease in revenue from the sales of properties. The following table sets forth our
revenue from the sales of properties, rental income, property management services and

others during the stated periods:
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For the year ended 3| December

BZNA3NALEE

2016 2015

(RMB'000) % (RMB'000) %

(AR#EFT) % (AE®TT) %

Sales of properties MEHE 2,226,617 95.3% 3,102,829 98.0%
Rental income A ON 45,130 1.9% 37,743 1.2%
Property management services MEEERS 42,092 1.8% 18,409 0.6%
Others Hit 21,938 1.0% 7,370 0.2%
Total G 2,335,777 100.0% 3,166,351 100.0%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWE DN

Sales of Properties MEHEE

Revenue from the sales of properties decreased by RMB876.2 million, or 28.2%, from MEFEERSEHWSHERFENDARE
approximately RMB3,102.8 million for FY2015 to RMB2,226.6 million for FY2016. The  3,1028F B LA > A R #8762 8 & (A
decrease of the sales of properties was in line with the decrease in the GFA of properties ~ 282%)Z 2016 T HEFEERNHNARE 22266 B E
sold, which decreased by 97,481 sqm., or 19.4%, from 491304 sqm. for FY2015t0  JC° MERERSHRIFTACEMENEE
395,823 sq.m. for FY2016. The decrease of the GFA of properties sold was mainly EREHH D - B20I5HBEFEER491304F 5
attributable to the slow-down of the Chinese economy and the decrease in contracted KB 97481 F 7K (BN19.4%) £ 2016 81 B
sales and delivery of completed properties during the Year. Our revenue from the sales E#)395823 F 7K - EELMEMNRERBR
of properties for FY2016 was primarily derived from the sales of wholesale trading market DPEIEMAFRLERERGOBEERFAR
units at our Lanzhou Trade Center, Wuzhou Trade Center and Xingning Trade Center. THETIMERD - HMIR 2016 FHREE
MOEEERSTEREMMN - B LEERS
BMRTFONBUR IR RNRETHHEE -

The following table sets forth the GFA, average sales price and revenue from the TREFIRARPRE XM REAEERE -
properties delivered during the periods indicated: FHEBRKE

For the year ended 31 December

BZNANBLEE

2016 2015
Average Average
GFA sales price Revenue GFA sales price Revenue
BEER FHEER g RERE FHEE Y

(GFA in sqm, average sales price in RMB per sqm. and revenue in thousands of RMB)
(BEEE (FIK)  FPHEE (BETANEET) fes NEFTT) )

Lanzhou Trade Center EMEED RO

Wholesale trading market units B R FRREETT 89,342 7,447 665,306 48316 7321 353718
Subtotal Nt 89,342 7,447 665,306 48316 7321 353718
Wouzhou Trade Center BMNEENRH O

Wholesale trading market units ~ ¥8 YRGB RERET 75,633 5,089 384,881 135355 5179 700,948
Shopping mall BARHRRE — — — 9932 7,890 78,365
Subtotal NEF 75,633 5,089 384,881 145287 5,364 779313
Xingning Trade Center BEFEYRP L

Wholesale trading market units BYRSERBRETT 54,000 5619 303,452 141,134 5919 835,423
Subtotal et 54,000 5619 303,452 141,134 5919 835,423
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

GFA
BEER

2016
Average

sales price

THER

BEEENWRE DM

For the year ended 31 December

BEZNA3ALFE
2015
Average
Revenue GFA sales price Revenue
& EEmE FHEE Yoz

(GFA in sqm, average sales price in RMB per sqm. and revenue in thousands of RMB)
(BEEE (FiK)  FHEE (BTIAARET) Rz (ARETT) )

Jining Trade Center EEEEYR T

Residence EERE 55,276 4,198 232,065 — — —
Wholesale trading market units BURSERBETT 7,938 4372 34,701 17,864 4386 78,357
Subtotal N 63,214 4,220 266,766 17,864 4,386 78,357
Yulin Trade Center EMBEEMRF O

Wholesale trading market units BV R FRREETT 46,352 4,823 223,553 2,765 5368 14,842
Shopping mall HERHRRR 172 11,076 1,905 2,268 11,386 25,824
Subtotal et 46,524 4,846 225,458 5033 8,080 40,666
Yantai Trade Center EAEMEYMRA L

Wholesale trading market units B3 RHETRBRET 29,002 6,532 189,428 — — —
Subtotal N 29,002 6,532 189,428 — — —
Heze Trade Center HEEEYR AL

Wholesale trading market units BV R FRREETT 23422 4,617 108,133 41,106 5,360 220321
Subtotal et 23422 4617 108,133 41,106 5,360 220,321
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

== =t = 1 4
=] IEJE nT.I-nHH&JJ *ﬁ
For the year ended 31 December
HENABLEE
2016 2015
Average Average
GFA sales price Revenue GFA sales price Revenue
BEER FHEE i EEmE FHER Yoz
(GFA in sqm, average sales price in RMB per sqm. and revenue in thousands of RMB)
(BEEE (FiK)  FHEE (BTIAARET) Rz (ARETT) )

Mianyang Trade Center BEEEYR T
Wholesale trading market units ~ BY X FRRRE T 13,719 5,909 81,059 29,530 6,490 191,664
Subtotal Nt 13,719 5,909 81,059 29,530 6,490 191,664
Ganzhou Trade Center BEMNEEWRP O
Wholesale trading market units BURSERBEETT — — — 39,735 8319 330,535
Shopping mall RARFERTE — — = 22826 11819 269,775
Subtotal gt — — — 62,56 9,59 600310
Ningxiang Trade Center BRBEWRP O
Serviced apartments BEARS 967 2,207 2,134 — — —
Subtotal Nt 967 2,207 2,134 — - -
Other Properties Hi 3
Haode Yinzuo e o RE — — — 473 6463 3057
Subtotal it — — — 473 6463 3057
Total @et 395,823 5,625 2,226,617 491,304 6315 3,102,829
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Rental Income

Revenue from rental income increased by RMB7.4 million, or 19.6%, from RMB37.7
million for FY2015 to RMB45.1 million for FY2016. The increase was primarily due to the

increase in leasing area.

Property Management Services

Revenue from property management services increased by RMB23.7 million, from
RMB18.4 million for FY2015 to RMB42.1 million for FY2016. This increase primarily

reflected the continued expansion of our property management portfolio.

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales decreased by RMB482.5 million, or 31.5%, from RMBI,532.4 million for
FY2015 to RMB1,049.9 million for FY2016, primarily reflecting decrease in GFA sold.
Apart from this, our government grants credited to cost of sales increased by RMBI165.5
million, or 54.6%, from RMB303.3 million for FY2015 to RMB468.8 million for FY201 6.

Gross Profit and Margin

As a result of the foregoing, gross profit decreased by RMB348.0 million, or 21.3%, from
RMBI,633.9 million for FY2015 to RMBI,285.9 million for FY2016. Our gross profit
margin increased from 51.6% for FY2015 to 55.1% for FY2016. The increase in gross
profit margin was mainly due to the increase in our government grants credited to cost of

sales.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWE DN

Other Income

Other income decreased by RMB56.4 million, or 72.0%, from RMB78.4 million for FY2015
to RMB22.0 million for FY2016. The decrease was mainly due to that the government
grants in relation to investment properties of RMB3.0 million (FY2015: RMB59.7 million)
previously recorded as deferred income were recognised in profit or loss as other income

during the Year.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Selling and distribution expenses decreased by RMB44.7 million, or 23.0%, from RMB194.5
million for FY2015 to RMB149.8 million for FY2016. The decrease primarily reflected a

decrease in the pre-sale of properties in FY2016.

Administrative and Other Operating Expenses

Administrative and other operating expenses increased by RMB84.0 million, or 7.9%,
from RMB468.2 million for FY2015 to RMB552.2 million for FY2016. The increase
primarily reflected the increase in impairment losses, donation and tax expenses during
the Year. Apart from this, accruals of RMB43.1 million (FY2015: Nil) was made for the

compensations on a sub-lease arrangement.

Fair Value Gain on Investment Properties

In FY2016, the Group transferred certain completed properties held for sale to investment
properties, since there was a change in use from sale to earning rental income. The
Group's investment properties carried at fair value as of 31 December 2016 were valued
using the income capitalisation method by Savills Valuation and Professional Services
Limited, an independent firm of surveyors. For FY2016, the Group recorded a fair value
gain of RMB326.5 million (FY2015: RMB296.5 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Finance Income

Our finance income decreased by RMB0.9 million, from RMB9.2 million for FY2015 to
RMB8.3 million for FY2016. The decrease reflected a decrease in interest income from

our bank deposit in FY2016.

Finance Costs

Our finance costs increased by RMB89.9 million, or 59.7%, from RMB150.5 million for
FY2015 to RMB240.4 million for FY2016. The increase was primarily due to the finance
costs of the notes issued at the year end of FY2015 (the "Notes") and the notes issued in
FY2016.

Income Tax

Our income tax expense decreased by RMB269.0 million, or 43.0%, from RMB626.3
million for FY2015 to RMB357.3 million for FY2016. Such decrease was in line with the

decrease in revenue during the Year.

Profit for the Year and Profit Attributable to Equity Shareholders of the Company

As a result of the foregoing, our profit decreased by RMB242.6 million, or 40.6%, from
RMB597.7 million for FY2015 to RMB355.1 million for FY2016. Our profit attributable
to equity shareholders of the Company decreased by RMB206.6 million, or 37.1%, from
RMB556.9 million for FY2015 to RMB350.3 million for FY2016.

BEEENWRE DM

BB A

BMREBERAB20ISHBREEHARE
BETLRDARKIBELEWICHBEFE
MARBSIEET  BRER0I6HMBEER
TEREF SR DR -

BE A

BFPOBERAAWSHHREENARE
1505 BB LEMARK 8.9 HEL(A59.7%)
ZWNIHBEEMARKE 2404887 T2
RERWSHBFERETER(ERE]) KR
WI6HBFEETERNRERAE

&%

FIERAYA0SHHEENARK63E
BB AR 2690BEBL(A143.0%)E 2016
VREEMARKISIIFEET  FAFRMEE
KR o

FRFBREDDEBRREERE

ERERRRE  BZMOFER0HREE
MARBS7TBETRD ARK 240688
(B40.6%)Z 2016 TBFEH AR 3551 BE
TC o BIMA R Al AR (S R R 2015 8%
BEEMARESS6IBETLAD ARK2066
BELERLI%ENCHBEENARK
3503EHBTT e

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 &



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWE DN

Restricted Cash

Restricted cash amounted to RMB1,045.8 million as of 31 December 2016, compared to
RMB430.6 million as of 31 December 2015. As of 31 December 2016, the restricted cash
was pledged to banks for certain mortgage facilities granted to purchasers of the Group's
properties with a carrying amount of RMB199.3 million (31 December 2015: RMB224.4
million), pledged for bank loans granted to the Group with a carrying amount of
RMB574.7 million (31 December 2015: RMB206.2 million), and pledged for bills payables
granted to the Group with a carrying amount of RMB271.8 million (31 December 2015:
Nil).

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our primary uses of cash are to pay for the construction costs and land acquisition costs,
fund working capital, service our indebtedness, purchase property, plant and equipment
for our own use, and other regular business operation needs. To date, we have primarily
financed our operational expenditures through internally generated cash flows including
proceeds from the pre-sale and sales of properties, equity investments made by our pre-
IPO investors, borrowings from commercial banks and other lenders and proceeds from

the issuance of overseas notes.
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Bank Loans and Other Borrowings

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The following table sets forth our outstanding borrowings as of the dates indicated.

BEEENWRE DM

AR HEMmEE

TREINAREARMOREERE -

As of 3|1 December

RI12A31H
(RMB’000)
(AER#Fr)
2016 2015
Current RE
Secured FER
— short-term bank loans and other borrowings —RHRTERREMEE 303,773 309,366
— current portion of non-current bank loans —FRBBIERK
and other borrowings HipEEMRBH S 1,004,280 629,280
Subtotal et 1,308,053 938,646
Non-current FRE
Secured HEA
— repayable after | year but within 2 years —FREMFRER 1,196,660 233,260
— repayable after 2 years but within 5 years ~-MERBRFRER 280,850 1,231,260
Subtotal NEF 1,477,510 | 464,520
Total CE 2,785,563 2,403,166
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWE DN

Bank loans and other borrowings bear interest rates ranging from 2.12% to 9.0% per

annum for FY2016 (FY2015: 2.12% to 10.23% per annum) and are secured by the

following assets:

RI6THEFE @ RTEFREMEERNT
2.|2%i9.0%9(9¢7’ru (0I5HHEE « FF|X
2.12% % 10.23%) 5T B AT 58 E (R4 -

As of 3|1 December

RI12A31H
(RMB’000)
(AER#Fr)
2016 2015
Properties under development for sale HEERME 1,370,392 881,683
Completed properties held for sale HECTIYE 1,035,441 1,146,723
Properties held for future development for sale FERREFREME 651,499 687,252
Restricted cash XREEE 574,680 206,190
Property, plant and equipment ME - BEREE 377,111 —
Investment properties REME 41,900 179,500
Prepayment for acquisition of property, WEME - BEREEOENTE
plant and equipment — 368,535
Total Ch 4,051,023 3,469,883

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED $REBRMIZEKRERLD T



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Contingent Liabilities

We make arrangements with PRC commercial banks so that such banks may provide
mortgage facilities to our customers to purchase our properties. In accordance with
market practice, we are required to provide guarantees to these banks in respect of
mortgages provided to such customers. Guarantees for such mortgages are generally
discharged at the earlier of: (i) the due registration of the mortgage interest held by the
commercial bank upon the subject property, or (i) the settlement of mortgage loans
between the mortgagee banks and the purchasers. In addition, we are required by the
banks to place a security deposit to secure our guarantee obligations. If a purchaser
defaults on the mortgage loan, we are typically required to purchase the underlying
property by paying off the mortgage loan with any accrued and unpaid interest and
penalty based on the loan agreement. If we fail to do so, the mortgagee banks will auction
the underlying property and recover the balance from us if the outstanding loan amount
exceeds the net foreclosure sale proceeds. Such amount may also be settled through
withholding the security deposit we place with the banks. In line with industry practice, we
do not conduct independent credit checks on our customers but rely on the credit checks
conducted by the mortgagee banks. As of 31 December 2016, our maximum amount of
guarantees provided to banks for mortgage facilities granted to our customers amounted

to RMB2,881.8 million (FY2015: RMB2,818.9 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWE DN

Commitments RIE

(@)  Capital commitments outstanding as at 31 December 2016 contracted but not @ R2016FNA3IBETHERY KR
provided for in the financial statements were as follows: RNERBOERARNT -

As of 31 December

RI12A318
(RMB'000)
(ARETT)
2016 2015
Construction and development contracts BREREREH LITELIT14 2,146,456
Land agreements TR 240,550 228,770
Total a5t 1,351,664 2375226

(b)  As at 31 December 2016, the total future minimum lease payments under non- (b) M2016FNA3AE REFTATHEL

cancellable operating lease are payables as follows: EHENENARFEEREIHE
AT

As of 3|1 December

RI12A31R
(RMB000)

(ARMFT)

2016 2015
Within | year —FR 13,728 57,441
After | year but within 2 years —FREMER 10,250 51,828
After 2 years but within 5 years MEREBRER 28,926 104,352
After 5 years hFE 37,355 47,000
Total Bt 90,259 26062
We leased a number of building facilities under operating leases. The leases typically BMRREEHERMRSREFRE -
run for an initial period of | to 10 years, with an option to renew the lease after BONF—RB—FE+F  FIHERA
that date, at which time all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases includes BEREN ERGENETEMEKRS -
contingent rentals. BEEERZIAHEE -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEBNWmRDM

() As at 31 December 2016, the total future minimum lease payments under non- () M2016FNA3AE REFTHBEL

cancellable operating leases are receivables as follows: EHENRRARFEEEREI G
AT

As of 3|1 December

RI12A31H
(RMB’000)
(ARETFT)
2016 2015
Within | year —FR 37,043 59,830
After | year but within 2 years —EREREN 32,956 57277
After 2 years but within 5 years MEREBRFER 72219 134,572
After 5 years hFE 47,662 93,830
Total CL 189,880 345,509
The Group leased out a number of properties under operating leases. The leases ARERBLEHELEERENE - M
typically run for an initial period of 2 to |5 years. None of the leases includes HNOF—RAENMEZETRE - HIEM
contingent rentals. ERERAMEE -

Key Financial Ratios TEMBLE

The following table sets out our current ratios, gearing ratios and net gearing ratios as of ~ NREIIKMRARE B RBLE - BEER
the dates indicated. B RRFEERBILE -

As of 3|1 December

RI12A31H

2016 2015
Current ratio") BN RO 1.76 |.62
Gearing ratio? BEABRLERO 27.9% 25.7%
Net gearing ratio® FEERBHEXO 45.1% 36.3%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWE DN

Notes:

(1) Our current ratio is calculated by dividing current assets by current liabilities as of the end of

the respective reporting period.

(2)  Our gearing ratio is calculated by the Group's total interest bearing borrowings as of the
respective reporting period (includes bank loans and other borrowings, corporate bonds,
convertible notes and senior notes) divided by total assets as of the end of the respective

reporting period and multiplying by 100%.

(3)  Our net gearing ratio is calculated by the Group's net debt (aggregated bank loans and
other borrowings, corporate bonds, convertible notes and senior notes, net of cash and cash
equivalents and restricted cash) divided by the total equity of the Group as of the end of the
respective reporting period and multiplying by 100%.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The Group primarily operates its business in the PRC. The currency in which the Group
denominates and settles substantially all of its transactions is Renminbi. Other than
certain overseas bank deposits, interests in joint ventures, the Notes and the notes
issued in FY2016 denominated in foreign currencies, the Group does not have any
material exposure directly due to foreign exchange fluctuations. The Group maintains
a conservative approach on foreign exchange exposure management, and manages
and reviews its exposure to foreign exchange fluctuations on a regular basis. At times
of exchange rate uncertainty or volatility and when appropriate, hedging instruments
including swaps and forwards will be used in the management of exposure to foreign
exchange fluctuations. In May 2016, the Group entered into a US$100 million currency
option agreement and will continue to seek foreign exchange hedging instruments at a

reasonable cost to manage foreign exchange risk more effectively.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals of Subsidiaries, Associated Companies and Joint

Ventures

The Group had no acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries, associated companies and joint

ventures during FY201 6.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Restriction on Sales

As of 31 December 2016, we were simultaneously developing 14 trade center projects
in 9 provinces and autonomous regions in China. Under the terms of certain master
investment agreements with local government authorities regarding the development,
such as our agreements with regards to trade centers in Ningxiang, Mianyang, Ganzhou
and Liuzhou, we are required to maintain certain portions of the trade center properties,
typically 20-30% in terms of GFA, for self-use or leasing purpose. We believe that such
requirement is in line with our overall development plan for these projects. Except for the
conditions mentioned above, there is no restriction on sales of the land acquired by the

Group.

Human Resources

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had a workforce of 1,786 people (FY2015:
approximately 2,360 people). The number of staff had decreased by 24.3% since 3|
December 2015. During FY2016, the total employee benefit expenses amounted to
RMB288.9 million, decreased by 7.6% (FY2015: RMB312.7 million). We actively recruit
skilled and qualified personnel in the Chinese local markets, including students graduated
from universities as well as personnel with relevant work experience. For the senior
management team and selected management positions, we also seek to recruit personnel
with international experience. The remuneration package of our employees includes
salary, bonuses and other cash subsidies. In general, we determine employee salaries based
on each employee’s qualifications, experience, position and seniority. We have designed
an annual review system to assess the performance of our employees, which forms the
basis of our determinations on salary raises, bonuses and promotion. As at 31 December
2016, the number of outstanding share options granted by the Company to its directors
(the “Directors”) and employees is 65,095,000 shares.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

B E
For the financial year ended 3| December
BEZNA3NBLEEHREE
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
RMB’ 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB’ 000 RMB' 000
AREBTRT ARETT AREFTT ARETRT ARETT
Results 3
Revenue Yz 2,335,777 3,166,351 3,360,189 4,756,464 1,607,114
Gross Profit EH 1,285,916 1633916 1,399,026 2,932,355 776271
Profit before taxation ay=IR b 712,463 1,224,002 837,426 2,324,859 460,282
Income tax FTiS (357,315) (626,272) (330961)  (1,148,896) (245491)
Profit for the year FARFE 355,148 597,730 506,465 1175963 214,791

Profit for the year attributable to: JA T & FEMGFE &M :

Equity shareholders of ARAERERR
the Company 350,280 556,875 512,053 1,177,782 216,506
Non-controlling interests IR ER 4,868 40,855 (5,588) (1819) (1,715)
Profit for the year FRME 355,148 597,730 506,465 1,175,963 214,791
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

MBHSE
At 3| December
RKI2A31 R
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTE ARBTE ARBTE ARBTR

Financial position BRI
Non-current assets ETBEE 2,603,592 1851234 787259 302,143 188,135
Current assets MEEE 12,848,552 13252613 11,065,760 10,701,554 4954970
Current liabilities mHERE 7,319,706 8,155,558 6281413 5901,028 3,149,808
Net current assets REEETE 5,528,846 5,097,055 4,784,347 4,800,526 1,805,162
Total assets less current liabilities ~ #EEMRBEE 8,132,438 6,948,289 5,571,606 5,102,669 1,993,297
Non-current liabilities ERBERE 3,025,154 2,109,709 1,198443 670,381 937,230
Net assets BEFE 5,107,284 4,838,580 4,373,163 4431788 1,056,067
Share capital R 31,825 31,825 31,825 31,945 365
Reserves @ 4,852,252 4,604,866 460,304 4,389,126 949417
Total equity attributable to equity AR AR

shareholders of the Company FElhERER 4,884,077 4,636,691 4292,129 4421071 949,782
Non-controlling interests IR 223,207 201,889 81,034 10,717 106,285
Total Equity EnasE 5,107,284 4,838,590 4,373,163 4431,788 1,056,067
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHRE

The Board has the pleasure in presenting this annual report and the audited consolidated

financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group are developing and operating large-scale trade centers
in China.

The Group seeks to develop each trade center project into the largest integrated
commercial complex in the local region for the wholesale and retail sale of a wide range
of products, including hardware, electric tools, building materials, furniture and home
furnishings, home electronics, apparel and small goods. The Group designs its trade
centers to seamlessly integrate the wholesale trading market properties with other on-site
facilities such as shopping malls, commercial and exhibition centers, hotels, residential and

office space, warehouses and other logistics facilities.

Details of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out in

note 19 to the financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A business review of the Group is set out on pages |0 to 2| of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The Group is committed to complying with PRC environmental protection laws and
regulations, actively participating in the environmental assessment process and fully
cooperating with accredited environmental assessment organisations. The Group has
taken several measures to reduce pollution, including implementing energy-saving policies
that reduce its electricity consumption, setting up a rain and sewage diversion system
in certain trade centers, smoke filtering systems in the kitchens of its cafeterias and
restaurants, installing sound insulation in its backup generators and cooling machines, and
using solar-powered heaters. Details of the Group's environmental policies are set out in

the Environmental, Social and Governance Report on pages 58 to 89 of this annual report.
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COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND REGULATIONS

There was no incident of non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations that had or

would have a significant impact on the Company during FY2016.

RESULTS

The Group's results for FY2016 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss

on pages 128 to 129 of this annual report.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for FY201 6.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during FY2016 are set out

in note 33 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during FY2016 are
set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity and note 33 to the financial

statements, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, details of the Company's reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of Cayman Companies Law are

set out in note 33 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group during

FY2016 are set out in note || to the financial statements.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate sales to the Group's single largest customer and five largest customers

accounted for less than 30% of the Group's turover respectively in FY2016.

The aggregate purchases from the Group's single largest supplier and five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 17.6% and 55.7% respectively, of the Group's total purchases

for FY2016.

None of the Directors or any of their associates, or any Shareholders who, to the
knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company's issued share capital has

any interests in the Group's five largest suppliers or customers.

DONATIONS

During FY2016, the charitable contributions and other donations totaled approximately
RMB9.4 million (FY2015: RMB6.6 million).

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company's principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2016 are set out in

note |9 to the financial statements.
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PRE-IPO SHARE OPTION SCHEME BRRBRERARRE 8

The Company ratified and approved the pre-IPO share option scheme (the “Pre-IPO AR AR 2013F3 20 RBRRIEE R AR

Share Option Scheme™) on 20 March 2013. ERABERESE((ERARERABRET
gl)-

The purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to recognize the contribution of BRALRERIBRENSEERBREER
the employees of the members of the Group and any persons who have contributed to 12 ([ BB ) S5 &% ok 22 B 4 AR G2 () E 7 %
the Group at the time of granting Options (the “Qualified Participants”) to the business BRELEBNAEEKEAFEERREAKE
development of the Group by granting share options (“Options”) to them as incentive REBRERYAEEFERNEMALTER

and/or reward. ERgHRE]) -
(i) the exercise price per share under each Option is HK$1.014; () BhERENSKRRHITEERI0I4E
T

(i) as at 31 December 2016, the total number of outstanding shares involved in the (i)  R2016F1N2A3IH BROAERA

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme was 65,095,000 shares, representing approximately EREIMARTENBRELHER
.62% of the shares in issue of the Company; 65,095,000 % - HERARB]E &I
41.62%

(i) the grantees are entitled to exercise in full or in part any vested Options from (i N ETBAHBQIBEIOAB TLW®

six months after the listing date (31 October 2013, the “Listing Date") to 3| A8 EAEAZE2018F12A318
December 2018; and RENGRTEZHBABICHEBER
R
(iv)  no further Options will be granted after the Listing Date. (v) LHRBREISE—FTROBRE -
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RIZE R AR EBAERER 818 RIFR R
RMTERBEFEEIINT -

Particulars of the outstanding Options conditionally granted under the Pre-IPO Share

Option Scheme are set out below:

Number of Number of
Options outstanding
Number of exercised/ Options as at
Options held Number of  cancelled/lapsed 31 December
asat  Options granted  during FY2016 2016
I January 2016 during FY2016 #2016 R20165F
Number of R2016F R0l BMBFETR/ 128318
Grantees Date of grant of Options Options granted |BIB®E HREERL H8/Ku0 RTEM
ERA RiuBRERH ROBREHE WBERERE ORREZE BREZA BRERA
Directors/People who
were directors in FY2016
2 /00168HEE
REZMA
Huang Dehong 30 November 201 | 4,000,000 4,000,000 - - 4,000,000
A 2011114308
Wang Lianzhou 20 March 2013 300,000 300,000 - - 300,000
TEN 2013534208
Lam Chi Yuen Nelson 20 March 2013 300,000 300,000 - - 300,000
HER 2013F3/208
Other employees 30 November 201 | 56,630,000 49,665,000 — 660,0009 49,005,000
RS 2011114308
Other employees 16 October 2012 9,190,000 5,690,000 - - 5,690,000
HitE& 2012108168
Former Director
AIEES
Wong Choihing® 30 November 201 | 11,600,000 5,800,000 — - 5,800,000
THED 2011411 A30R
Total 82,020,000 65,755,000 - 660,000 65,095,000
At
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Notes:

(1) In accordance with the terms and conditions of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, the
Board resolved in the Board meeting held on 22 August 2014 that the Options granted to
Mr. Wong Choihing, the former Chairman and executive Director of the Company, which
were vested pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are still exercisable, and the
remaining Options granted which were not vested pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Option

Scheme were cancelled on 25 August 2014.

(2)  In accordance with the terms and conditions of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, the
outstanding Options granted to certain employees pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Option

Scheme have been cancelled due to their resignations from the Company, and these Options

ceased to be exercisable from the effective dates of their resignations.

The Options shall vest according to the following schedule:

For Options granted on 30 November 20/ |

Respective Vesting Date

31 December 2012
31 December 2013
31 December 2014
31 December 2015

For Options granted on 16 October 2012

Respective Vesting Date

31 December 2013
31 December 2014
31 December 2015
31 December 2016

£yl b

202F 12A31H
2013F 128318
2014F 12 A31H
2015 12 A31 H

ZEEAH

2013F 12 A31H
2014 12 A31 H
2015 12 A31H
2016F 12 A31H
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() BEERARERAERETE BRI
o BEEERWI4FANAERANERE S
RRBETHELE (RDRREERERAT
ER) REAROEREERALHAERAE
BB FTERNT BB LR BRERE -
BEERAAAERNERESEETHESR
BENFHHD E2014F8 25 BRKM -

Q) BREERRFE KA RET SRR R G
e BTEIRBERAMHERANBRET
BMESHHATENERERREALF
MaLsH - B EBHEER BRI A BT -

BRERBUATRRREE

201111 F30 ELBIEKRE

Percentage of Shares under an

Option that shall be vested

ERBERESRAROEDIL
25%
50%
75%
100%
R2012F 105 16 AR BIBRE

Percentage of Shares under an
Option that shall be vested

EEERRESRNROEDL

25%
50%
75%
100%
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For Options granted on 20 March 2013

Respective Vesting Date EERAH

3| December 2014 2014 12831 8
31 December 2015 2015% 12 /831 H
31 December 2016 2016512831 B
3| December 2017 2017 128318

Details of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are set out in note 32 to the financial

statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during FY2016 and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wang Jianli (Chairman)

Mr. Wang Dewen (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Huang Dehong

Non-Executive Director
Mr. Yuan Bing
Mr. Wang Wei (resigned on 2| September 2016)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Zhao Lihua

Mr. Wang Lianzhou

Mr. Lam Chi Yuen Nelson

In accordance with Article 16.18 of the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Yuan
Bing, Mr. Huang Dehong and Mr. Zhao Lihua shall retire from the Board by rotation at the
companys forthcoming annual general meeting (*“AGM") to be held on Monday, |5 May

2017 and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The Board has received an annual confirmation of independence from each of the
independent non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). The Board considers all

independent non-executive Directors to be independent.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
Each of Mr. Wang Jianli, Mr. Wang Dewen and Mr. Huang Dehong, being the executive

Director of the Company, has entered into a service contract with the Company for a
term of three years. All of the service contracts may be terminated by either party thereto

giving no less than 3 months' prior written notice.

Mr. Yuan Bing, non-executive Director of the Company, has entered into a letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of three years. The letter of appointment may
be terminated by either party thereto giving no less than 14 business days' prior written

notice.

Each of Mr. Wang Lianzhou, Mr. Lam Chi Yuen Nelson and Mr. Zhao Lihua, being
the independent non-executive Director of the Company, has entered into a letter
of appointment with the Company for a term of three years. All of the letters of
appointment may be terminated by either party thereto giving no less than 14 business

days’ prior written notice.

None of the Directors has entered into any service contract with the Company which
is not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of compensation

other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

None of the Directors has or had material beneficial interests, whether directly or
indirectly, in any significant contract in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, its holding companies or a subsidiary of its holding

companies was a party during FY2016.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

None of the Controlling Shareholders (as defined below) or its subsidiaries (if applicable)
has or had material interests, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance,
whether for the provision of services or otherwise, to the business of the Group to which

the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during FY2016.
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BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The biographical information of Directors and senior management of the Company are
set out in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”

on pages 106 to |17 of this annual report.

ENFORCEMENT OF THE DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Pursuant to the deed of non-competition dated 27 September 2013 (the “Non-
Competition Undertaking”) entered into by Mr. Wong Choihing, Mr. Wang Dewen,
Mr. Wang Jianli, Mr. Wang Quanguang, Mr. Wang Desheng, Mr. Wang Dekai, Mr.
Huang Dehong and Mr. Wong Sheung Tak (the “Ultimate Controlling Shareholders"),
Most Trend Holdings Limited (“Most Trend"), Mr. Wong Kim and Eminent Ascend
Limited (“Eminent Ascend”) (collectively, the “Controlling Shareholders”), each of the
Controlling Shareholders has unconditionally and irrevocably undertaken to the Company
that he/it would not, and would procure that his/its associates (other than any members
of the Group) would not, during the Restricted Period (as defined below), directly or
indirectly, either on his/its own account or in conjunction with or on behalf of any person,
firm or company, among other things, carry on, participate, be interested or engaged in,
acquire or hold (in each case whether as a shareholder, director, partner, agent, employee
or otherwise, and whether for profit, reward or otherwise) any activity or business which
is or may be in competition directly or indirectly with the business referred to in the
Company's listing prospectus dated 18 October 2013 carried on or contemplated to be
carried on by any member of our Group from time to time (the “Restricted Business").
The restricted period is the period during which (i) the shares of the Company remain
listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange"); (i) the relevant Controlling Shareholder and his/its associates hold an equity
interest in the Company; and (iii) the relevant Controlling Shareholder and/or his/its
associates jointly or severally are entitled to exercise or control the exercise of not less

than 30% in aggregate of the voting power at general meetings of the Company.
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The Controlling Shareholders have further undertaken to procure that, during the
Restricted Period, any business investment or other commercial opportunity which
directly or indirectly competes, or may lead to competition with the Restricted Business
(the “New Opportunities”) given, identified or offered to him/it and/or any of his/its
associates (other than any members of the Group) (the “Offeror”) is first referred to the
Company in the following manner: (a) each of our Controlling Shareholders is required
to, and shall procure his or its associates (other than members of our Group) to, refer, or
to procure the referral of, the New Opportunities to the Company, and shall give written
notice to the Company of any New Opportunities containing all information reasonably
necessary for the Company (the “Offer Notice"); and (b) the Offeror will be entitled
to pursue the New Opportunities only if (i) the Offeror has received a notice from the
Company declining the New Opportunities and confirming that such New Opportunities
would not constitute competition with core business of the Company, or (i) the Offeror
has not received such notice from us within 10 business days from the Company's receipt
of the Offer Notice. Upon receipt of the Offer Notice, the Company shall seek opinions
and decisions from the independent non-executive Directors who do not have material

interests in the matter.

The Controlling Shareholders have confirmed with the Company their compliance with
the Non-Competition Undertaking for disclosure in this annual report during FY2016.
Independent non-executive Directors have also reviewed the Controlling Shareholders'

compliance with the Non-Competition Undertaking during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Particulars of the Directors’ emoluments and five highest paid individuals for FY2016 are
set out in notes 8 and 9 to the financial statements and the emolument policy of the
Company is set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 90 to 105 of this

annual report.

No Director has waived or has agreed to waive any emoluments during FY2016.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During FY2016, none of the Directors or their respective associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) had any interest in any business which was in competition or was likely to

compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

R R — F G - @R RAIHRE IR ER
BIRRR,/ S HEAHEA(FEEERMKER
AIRIN(TERADERE  MESRRZA
SRHUXGERIRERF A EEHREF
EREBREIEMAREE (THEH]) - o

THHABEEN FARA : () BRERBRRL
BAREREEBEA(KREKBDRRINE
NeeEENHEAET ARG YBRAARF]
FHEFAFEENEEEA 83— NaEM
FEHUEARBZE(ROBA) : R (b) B
WANEBETIBR T BENBH AR : ()&
MAREARR R BRLERN BRI S
EARRANBOEBBRRFNEDBA - X
(i) BOARK A RRBIZHBAE T HEXEE
AT EZERPNBRN - NEEBOBAEK

ARARAEEBERT L BENERMNBL
FRTEESKEARRE °

FRIRRE AADERRBESR 2016 HBEE
BEFE ?%mﬁ$¢ﬁ¢ﬁﬁ?°%i#
BTEFNEBRERBRRARFETHF R
HHERIER

ESFMREERSHFMAL

BEARRAIR0IIBFENEETMEAS
EREMATHBEERNBREMIIR - M
ARAMFMBCK AR AFREIOZEINGE
MR RRE -

BEEER 206 MR FERELRERELM
W o

| ER GRS £
ROIHEER  EFARZEENBEA
(TR LTI EERRAENLERT
TR E TR R S -

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 & m



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHRE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions of the Directors in the shares,

underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations

(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as

notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part

XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which he/she is taken or deemed

to have under such provisions of the SFO), or as recorded in the register maintained by

the Company under section 352 of the SFO, or as notified to the Company and the Stock

Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed

Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in the Listing Rules, were as follows:

EENESER

R2016F12A31H - EERARDAHEAEM
HEEZB(EEREFRNERA(TESRE
BRG1)EXVE)ERRG - ARG RESFT
BERBEZRBERIIEXVEHET RSN E
RAGARRAI KM e R KR (BIERE
ERLBEGRINEBRXMEEIERESR
MEZEREAR)  HBABLRADAREES
R ERE (R0 5 352 16 A 17 B B 5C T 69 #E 28 ok
B REBEETRAMEHN EHETAESE
TEFRZNEETH(EEFR ) ERER
A KRBT S RARINT

LONG POSITION IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE READBRGREBRG TR
COMPANY
Approximate
percentage of the
Company’s
total issued
share capital®
Corporate Personal N
Name of Directors ~ Class of Securities interest interest  Share Options Family interest Total BRITARK
£33 ozl LAER A%z B kg CEU: A
Wang Jianli Ordinary shares 2,070,000,00") — - - 2,070,000,000 51.56%
TR LRk
Wang Dewen Ordinary shares 2,070,000,000") — — — 2,070,000,000 51.56%
IEX Lak
Huang Dehong Ordinary shares/Share option 2,070,000,000 ") — 4,000,000 @ — 2,074,000,000 51.66%
BRE Rk B
Wang Lianzhou Share option — — 300,000 @ - 300,000 001%
B RikE
Lam Chi Yuen Nelson  Share option — — 300,000@ — 300,000 001%
W& BhiE
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Notes:

These shares are held by Most Trend. The entire issued share capital of Most Trend is wholly-
owned by the Ultimate Controlling Shareholders. By virtue of an acting-in-concert declaration
executed by the Ultimate Controlling Shareholders on 22 March 2013, the Ultimate
Controlling Shareholders confirmed, among other things, that since | January 2010, they had
been operating the Group collectively and would through discussions reach consensus among
themselves before reaching any commercial decisions on an unanimous basis. As such, the
Ultimate Controlling Shareholders are deemed to be interested in 2,070,000,000 shares of
the Company through Most Trend.

This represents the Options granted pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme. Details
of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are set out in the section headed "“Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme” on pages 41 to 44 of this annual report.

The percentage shareholding is calculated on the basis of 4,014,844,000 shares issued as at
31 December 2016.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, to the knowledge of the Board, none

of the Directors or chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions

in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated

corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be (i)

notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part

XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which the Directors and chief

executive were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); (ii) recorded

in the register kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO; or (iii) notified

to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2016, according to the register kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO and so far as is known to, or can be ascertained after reasonable
enquiry by the Directors, the following person/entity (other than the Directors or chief

executives of the Company) had an interest or short position in the shares, underlying

FERRES

EA20|6¢|2H3|E| BEARRIRRBRES K
g5 ﬁIJ%3361@?&7&5%&5&%%%
<ﬁ (EHEBEREERR  RESK
$’um££ﬁﬁAa%vT@Ai/fW

AR REEEEZE(ER REFRPERIE

>5F

shares and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or was directly
or indirectly interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital

carrying rights to vote on all circumstances at general meetings of the Company:

XV &) B tn
REEHBIFEXVEE 2 K35 H ) SRR A
RAI R AEEORRIAE -
BREBEMA

BERDRESFTREEREES

FEKLRH
RIBA(MAE— IR FEARD

AR ARG IR AN ) B 5% A LHEzs

LONG POSITION IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE REARRARAEERGHER
COMPANY
Approximate
percentage of
the Company’s
total issued
Number of Shares share capital®
BRHBE fEEAT
Name Nature of interest Corporate interest Share Option ERITERAE
L EittE DR Bk BEAE DO
Most Trend Beneficial owner 2,070,000,000 — 51.56%
ER EalBA
Mr. Wong Choihing Interest in controlled corporation/Share Option 2,070,000,000 @ 5,800,000 ') 51.70%
THELE Rt LD BRE
Mr. Wang Quanguang Interest in controlled corporation 2,070,000,000 @ - 51.56%
et REtEEES
Mr. Wang Desheng Interest in controlled corporation/Share Option 2,070,000,000 @ 4,000,000 1" 51.66%
Irmts R EEERBE
Mr. Wang Dekai Interest in controlled corporation/Share Option 2,070,000,000 @ 4,000,000 "1 51.66%
TREREE Rt LD BRE
Mr. Wong Sheung Tak Interest in controlled corporation/Share Option 2,370,000,000 @110 4,000,000 (1 59.13%
gt REH RS BRE
Top Amuse Holdings Limited  Beneficial owner 600,000,000 — 14.94%
REZRARA EalBA
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Name

&8

Nature of interest

BHEME

Number of Shares

BHEE

Corporate interest

DAER

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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Approximate
percentage of
the Company’s
total issued
share capital®
EARRF
ERTARE
BRE OBREIRO

Share Option

Hony Capital Fund 2008, LP. Interest in controlled corporation 600,000,000 @ — 14.94%
R EE S
Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP, LP. Interest in controlled corporation 600,000,000 - 14.94%
REHEEES
Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP Limited Interest in controlled corporation 600,000,000 © - 14.94%
REH)EE R
Hony Group Management Limited Interest in controlled corporation 600,000,000 © — 14.94%
XL E S
Hony Managing Partners Limited Interest in controlled corporation 600,000,000 - 14.94%
REHEEES
Exponential Fortune Group Limited Interest in controlled corporation 600,000,000® — 14.94%
REtEEER
Mr. Zhao John Huan Interest in controlled corporation 600,000,000 @ — 14.94%
HeBEE XL E S
Eminent Ascend Beneficial owner 300,000,000 - 747%
=t EEHEAA
Notes: Pt et

(1) The percentage shareholding is calculated on the basis of 4,014,844,000 shares issued as at (1

31 December 2016.

(2)  These shares are held by Most Trend. The entire issued share capital of Most Trend is (2)

wholly-owned by the Ultimate Controlling Shareholders. By virtue of an acting-in-concert

declaration executed by the Ultimate Controlling Shareholders on 22 March 2013, the

Ultimate Controlling Shareholders, among other things, confirmed that since | January

2010, they had been operating the Group collectively and would through discussions reach

consensus among themselves before reaching any commercial decisions on an unanimous

basis. As such, the Ultimate Controlling Shareholders together control 51.56% interest in the

issued share capital of the Company through Most Trend.
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(3)  Top Amuse Holdings Limited (“Top Amuse”) is wholly-owned by Hony Capital Fund 2008,
L.P., hence Hony Capital Fund 2008, L.P. is deemed to be interested in the 600,000,000
shares held by Top Amuse.

(4)  Hony Capital Fund 2008, L.P. is controlled by Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP, LP., hence Hony
Capital Fund 2008 GP, L.P. is deemed to be interested in the 600,000,000 shares held by
Top Amuse.

(5)  Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP, LP. is controlled by Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP Limited, hence
Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP Limited is deemed to be interested in the 600,000,000 shares
held by Top Amuse.

(6)  Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP Limited is controlled by Hony Group Management Limited,
hence Hony Group Management Limited is deemed to be interested in the 600,000,000
shares held by Top Amuse.

(7)  Hony Managing Partners Limited controls 80% of the shares of Hony Group Management
Limited, hence Hony Managing Partners Limited is deemed to be interested in the

600,000,000 shares held by Top Amuse.

(8)  Hony Managing Partners Limited is controlled by Exponential Fortune Group Limited, hence
Exponential Fortune Group Limited is deemed to be interested in the 600,000,000 shares
held by Top Amuse.

(9)  Mr. Zhao John Huan controls 49% of Exponential Fortune Group Limited, hence Mr. Zhao
John Huan is deemed to be interested in the 600,000,000 shares held by Top Amuse.

(10)  Eminent Ascend is wholly-owned by Mr. Wong Sheung Tak, hence Mr. Wong Sheung Tak is
deemed to be interested in the 300,000,000 shares held by Eminent Ascend.

(') This represents the Options granted pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme. Details
of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are set out in the section headed "Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme” on pages 4| to 44 of this annual report.

Save as disclosed above, as at 3| December 2016, to the knowledge of the Directors, no
other person (other than a Director or chief executive of the Company) had, or were
deemed or taken to have interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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(6)  Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP LimitedEiHony
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBT SECURITIES

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Directors’ Interests in Securities” and “Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme” in this report and in note 31 to the financial statements, at
no time during the fiscal year under review was the Company or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors or chief executives of the Company
(including their spouses or children under 18 years of age) to acquire benefits by means of

acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

The Board confirmed that none of the related party transactions set out in note 37
to these financial statements constituted non-exempt connected transactions or non-
exempt continuing connected transactions under Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules.
During FY2016, the Group had not entered into any connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions which are required to be disclosed in this annual report pursuant

to the Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, the Company and its subsidiaries have not purchased, sold or redeemed

any of the Company's shares listed on the Stock Exchange.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles, or the laws of Cayman
Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated, under which would

oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of the bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2016

are set out in note 26 to the financial statements.
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REDEMPTION AND REPURCHASE OF 7.00% CONVERTIBLE NOTES DUE
2020

On 23 January 2015, the Company had issued the 7.00% convertible notes with an
aggregate principal amount of US$120,000,000 (the “Notes") due in 2020, to Pingan
Real Estate Capital Limited (the “Sole Noteholder™). The Notes are exchangeable into
shares of the Company, and are unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed by certain

subsidiaries of the Company.

On 15 January 2016 the Company had redeemed an aggregate principal amount of
US$40,000,000 of the outstanding Notes at the early redemption amount (being an
aggregate amount of approximately US$43,594,100), pursuant to a notice of exercise

delivered by the Sole Noteholder on 14 January 2016.

The Company repurchased the remaining Notes of an aggregate principal amount
of US$80,000,000 at the early redemption amount (being an aggregate amount of
approximately US$88,536,900) from the Sole Noteholder on 31 August 2016 and 20

September 2016. Following the repurchase, all of the Notes were cancelled.

Please refer to the Company's announcements dated 9 January 2015, 26 January 2015,
7 July 2015, 1'1 January 2016, 14 January 2016, 31 March 2016, 31 August 2016, 20
September 2016, its annual report for the year ended 31 December 2015, its interim
reports for the periods ended 30 June 2015 and 30 June 2016 for details on the Notes.

ISSUANCE OF 13.75% SENIOR NOTES DUE 2018

On 15 December 2015, the Company issued 13.75% senior notes with an aggregate
principal amount of US$ 100,000,000, which are due in 2018 (the “Senior Notes"). The

Senior Notes are listed and traded on The Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited.

On 14 September 2016, the Company issued additional Senior Notes with an aggregate
principal amount of US$60,000,000, which are consolidated and formed a single class with
the US$100,000,000 aggregate principal amount of |3.75% Senior Notes due 2018 issued
by the Company on |5 December 2015. The proceeds of the additional Senior Notes will
primarily be used for the refinancing of indebtedness of the Company and the remainder

for its working capital purposes.
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Please refer to the Company's announcements dated 2 December 2015, 8 December
2015, 17 December 2015, 8 September 2016 and 18 September 2016 for details on the

Senior Notes.

ISSUANCE OF | 1% SENIOR NOTES DUE 2019

On 25 August 2016, the Company and certain subsidiary guarantors entered into a
subscription agreement with China Orient Alternative Investment Fund, pursuant to which
the Company agreed to issue and China Orient Alternative Investment Fund agreed to
subscribe for US$60,000,000, |1% senior notes due 2019. The issuance was completed
on 30 August 2016. The proceeds of the senior notes will primarily be used for the
refinancing of indebtedness of the Company and the remainder for its working capital

purposes.

Please refer to the Company's announcement dated 25 August 2016 for details on the

notes.

TERM LOAN FACILITY OF UP TO RMB150,000,000

On 18 November 2016, the Company as borrower and certain subsidiary guarantors
entered into a facility agreement (the “Facility Agreement”) with Nanyang Commercial
Bank, Limited in relation to a term loan facility of up to RMB 150,000,000 (or its equivalent
in Hong Kong dollars or US dollars). The rate of interest is five percent (5%) plus HIBOR
in respect of HK dollar loans, or five percent (5%) plus LIBOR in respect of US dollar

loans.

Under the Facility Agreement, it shall be an event of default if, among others, either

the Ultimate Controlling Shareholders or their respective spouses or family
members or any trust established by the aforementioned shareholders, and any
person directly or indirectly controlling, controlled by, or under direct or indirect
common control with any aforesaid person cease to, directly or indirectly, hold at

least 51% of the issued share capital of the Company; or

il Mr. Wang Jianli ceases to be the chairman of the Board.

Please refer to the Company's announcement dated 23 November 2016 for details on

the loan facility.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board is of the opinion that the Company had complied with the code provisions as
set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the "CG Code") contained in Appendix 4
to the Listing Rules during the Year. Principal corporate governance practices adopted by
the Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 90 to 105 of

this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors as at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this
annual report, the Company has maintained the public float of the issued shares of the

Company as required under the Listing Rules.

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 10 May 2017 to 15 May
2017, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares of the Company will
be effected. In order to determine the identity of members who are entitled to attend
and vote at the AGM, all share transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company's share registrar, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops |712—1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen'’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 9 May 2017.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five
years is set out on pages 36 to 37 of the annual report. This summary does not form part

of the audited consolidated financial statements.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

During FY2016, no contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed

during the year ended 31 December 2016.

AUDITORS

KPMG has acted as the auditors of the Company for the financial year ended 3|
December 2016. The consolidated financial statements of the Company for FY2016 have
been audited by KPMG.

KPMG will retire at the forthcoming AGM and a resolution for the re-appointment of
KPMG as the auditors of the Company for FY2017 will be proposed at the AGM.

For and on behalf of the Board
WANG JIANLI

Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2017
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BoHERERBRSE

INTRODUCTION

Pursuant to Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules, this report identifies and discloses
environmental, social and governance issues that have material environmental and social
impacts and are relevant to the business of the Group for the Year. This report describes
the Group's measures for environmental protection, provision of good working conditions

for its staff and contribution to its customers by operating with conscience.

Environmental protection and social responsibilities are opportunities for enterprises to
present a positive image to the public. In the current society, investors also value the
contribution by an enterprise to the environment and the society in addition to its ability
to enhance business performance for the best interests of its shareholders. High senses
of social responsibility and environmental protection could bring good reputation to an
enterprise, evoking investors investment interests and confidence. As a developer and
operator of trade and logistics centers and a company listed in Hong Kong, the Company
not only creates value for its shareholders, but also takes on social and environmental

responsibilities while focusing on business performance.

ENVIRONMENT

A. Emissions

The Group develops and operates trade and logistics centers in China. We comply
with the Environmental Protection Law of the PRC ( {1 #E A R XM BEIRIFR
&%) ), and put our awareness of environmental protection into practice in every
step of the development and operation of each project. We categorised our main
types of emissions as follows: (i) noises created by various construction machineries;
(i) dust and exhaust gas created by construction machineries and transport
vehicles, and gas generated from organic wastes during decoration and renovation;
(iii) wastewater produced at construction sites and domestic sewage generated
by construction workers; (iv) waste materials left at construction sites and garbage
disposed by construction workers; and (v) greenhouse gases, such as carbon
dioxide, generated from the energy consumption of buildings. Relevant policies,
system and procedures are then set up and corresponding pollution prevention
and environmental management measures are adopted to reduce the impacts on
the surrounding environment and to achieve a win-win goal of social and economic

benefits.
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Noises created by construction machineries

Construction noises are created by various kinds of construction machineries,
including foundation piling machines, excavators and bulldozers. Noises are
also generated by various types of machines used for internal decoration
and renovation, which includes drills, collecting machines, cutting machines
and electric saws. The Group complies with the Law of the PRC on the
Prevention and Control of Noise Pollution ( {7 2E A R LA B )5 2407
JAYE) ) to reduce the impacts on the surrounding environment so that the
boundaries of the construction sites meet the requirements of the national
"“Emission Standard of Environment Noise for Boundary of Construction
Sites” (GB12523-2011) ( (BERTHZRIRZRSHIIZE) ). The
Group required construction companies to adopt the following measures to

reduce the impact of such noises created by construction machineries:

a. Machineries with high noise levels are prohibited during non-working
hours, noontime and nighttime, and any extension of operating hours
due to special circumstances must be reported to and approved by

the relevant authorities.

b. Encourage the use of mechanical equipments with low noise levels
or those equipped with sound-proof or muffler facilities, and make

efforts to reduce noise level,

C. The entrances and exits for construction trucks at construction sites
should be arranged at places away from sensitive areas, such as

government properties.

d. For any high noise-level machineries, proper shielding should be
installed as an integrated measure for temporary sound insulation,

sound muffling and vibration damping.
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Air Emissions

Air emissions mainly include dusts created from constructions, exhaust gas
emitted from various construction machineries and transportation vehicles,
and organic emissions generated during decorations and renovations.
Dusts are mainly created from the process of handling, transportating and
piling of construction materials. Exhaust gases produced by various kinds of
construction machineries are mainly sulfur dioxide (SO,) and nitrogen oxide
(NOx). Organic air emissions are produced from toxic gases vaporised
from various paints and coatings on plywood boards, fine wood boards,
medium-density fibreboard and particle boards. These toxic gases include
formaldehyde, benzene, ethanol, radon, polyvinyl chloride, ethyl benzene and
polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbons. The Group complies with the Prevention
and Control of Atmospheric Pollution Law of the PRC ( {FZE A R A BT
RESAFEZ) ) to minimise the environmental impacts of dust created
from construction. To reduce air emissions, the Group requires construction

companies to adopt the following measures:

a. Construction sites should be fully enclosed, and road surfaces at

construction sites should be fully hardened.

b.  Certain level of humidity should be maintained during the excavation
and drilling process by watering the operation surface; watering
should be carried out regularly on loose and dry soil at construction
sites; and proper watering should be carried out on dry surface of soll

when backfilling the soil, in order to prevent the creation of dusts.
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Air Emissions (Cont d)

Dedicated locations should be set up with enclosure for the stacking
and storing of building materials, and misplacements should not be
allowed. Unwanted residual materials should be transported away
as soon as possible, and accumulation of such wastes should not be
allowed. Sand and soil at construction sites should be covered at all

times when they are not in use.

During the process of demolition, watering should be made to

suppress dusts.

Machineries should be turned off when idle to reduce generation of

exhaust gas from combustion.

Car wash facilities and ground surface water trenches should be
set up at the entrances and exits of construction sites for rinsing
of transportation trucks. Transportation trucks should be rinsed
thoroughly before leaving the construction sites to reduce dirt carried
by the vehicles and chassis from scattering on the roads. Soil scattered
on the roads should be removed immediately to reduce the creation

of dust during operation.

During the construction process, the use of disposed building materials
as fuel is strictly prohibited. Accommodation and canteen facilities
should not be allowed at construction sites. During the construction
period, bare soil on the site should be covered completely or by
greenery. When construction is completed, ground space, roads and
vegetation previously occupied by construction should be restored

immediately.

Ready-mix concrete must be used for construction projects located
on both sides of the roads or within designated areas. In order to
reduce dust pollution, concrete mixers should not be installed at

construction sites.
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Discharges into water

The Group's discharges into water mainly include wastewater generated
from office operations and operation at construction sites. When dealing
with wastewater generated from office operations, the Group strictly
complies with the “Wastewater Quality Standards for Discharge to
Municipal Sewers” ( {V57KEEASEE F/KBKERE) ) in directing all
discharges into municipal sewage. Wastewater discharged from operation
at construction sites mainly include surface runoff of heavy rain, domestic
sewage from construction workers and wastewater from rinsing of
ground surface. Pollution is created mainly from suspended solids (SS),
dichromate chemical oxygen demand index (CODCr), biochemical oxygen
demand indicator (BODS5) and ammoniacal nitrogen indicator (NH3-N)
in the wastewater. The Group complies with the Law of the PRC on the
Prevention and Control of Water Pollution ( {F 2 A R A B K5
B3787%) ) to minimise the pollution created during constructions so that
the discharge of wastewater is in compliance with the requirements of the
“Integrated Wastewater Discharge Standard” (GB8978) ( {)57K&r& HERL
24) ), a national standard set by China. To reduce discharges into water,

the Group has adopted the following preventive measures:

a Construction companies shall strictly follow the Construction
Organisation Design and Special Plan for Construction Safety as
reviewed and approved by the Company and the project supervisors,
formulate design plans for the discharge of surface water, and prohibit
unorganised discharge, pollution to roads and the environment, or

flooding of municipal facilities.

b.  Wastewater generated during foundation piling work must be treated
immediately through dredging and discharge management. Pollutants
in wastewater generated from washing and rinsing machineries and
construction vehicles are mainly suspended solids, for which rinsing
and washing facilities should be set up at designated locations.
Surface water ditches should be directed to temporary sedimentation
tanks to allow suspended solids in watewater to sediment. After
sedimentation, wastewater can then be recycled for use to reduce the

Group's use of clean water.
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Discharges into water (Contd)

C Muddy water generated during operation and sludge by punching pile
drivers and bored piles must not be discharged without treatment.
Temporary settling basins should be set up at backfill dumps and at
locations where sludge is produced. Rainwater containing sediments
and muddy water should only be discharged after sedimentation
in settling basins to remove floating specks and reduce sediments
concentration so as to prevent any sewer blockage. No unorganised

discharge is allowed.

Solid Wastes

The Group's solid wastes include harmless wastes generated in offices
and at construction sites. All wastes generated in offices are handled and
recycled through the Group's property management. Solid wastes produced
at construction sites consist of mainly large quantities of silt, muck, sludge
resulted from surface excavation, residual waste construction materials,
domestic garbage from workers and wastes generated from renovation,
including residual wastes such as mortar surface cement, flexible packaging,
scrap metal wire, sawdust, and hazardous wastes, such as waste oil drums,
waste plastic cloth, waste chemical materials and packaging, and waste
asbestos. The Group complies with the PRC Law on the Prevention and
Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Wastes ( {2 A R EFEE

BEEEMSAIRENAE) ) to reduce pollution by solid wastes generated
during construction, and has required construction companies to adopt the

following measures:
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4 Solid Wastes (Contd) 1 EREY(E)

Different types of solid wastes generated from construction should be

collecteded and handled separately.

Domestic waste should be disposed regularly after collection.

Construction wastes that may cause flying dust should be separated

with enclosure.

Only proper quantities of residual mud should be loaded to
transportation trucks to ensure no spillage nor flying dusts during
transportation. Wastes should only be dumped to landfill sites

designated by the relevant authorities.

Wastes such as brick rubbles can be treated through the general piling
method. Wastes that can be reused, such as wood and bamboo,

should be recycled for the conservation of resources.

Dump sites selected should not occupy farmlands or be placed close
to rivers or reservoirs. They should be located in low-lying areas, with

diversion ditches set up at upstream of the dump sites.

All'hazardous wastes should be handled and transported by waste

recycling companies approved by the government.
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Greenhouse gases 5. BERE

Energy consumption produces greenhouse gases, such as carbon dioxide, RRNEATMES BRI AR
and exacerbates global climate change. Buildings are one of the major MER RNt gES —aRS
sources of energy consumption in cities. The Group places great importance BERE - MBIRIRRIRECPTE
on various indicators of energy consumption. In addition to complying R ERBUE - @fkfmmﬁiﬁﬁ
with China's energy efficiency standard, the Group strives to achieve the E’\J_ffzzﬁ‘jﬁ REZRTH
Assessment Standard for Green Building ( (4% ZZEFEIRE) ) issued REEREANSIEER 8 #R
by the national government to improve energy efficiency. In order to avoid I,El%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ REMER - UEXR
over-consumption of energy and to reduce the emission of greenhouse TR e e R ENBEE)
gases, the Group focuses on saving energy, water, space and materials during RENNFR - E—FRBEERN
the development and operation of projects as well as the Group's daily Ae REARER ERARE - HEERRY
operation. Please refer to “B. Use of resources” and “C. Environment and gk - &t - B3N S| AR B R
natural resources” below for details of the relevant measures adopted. MEZUREEARHLERES -
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m

Use of resources

The Group emphasises the impact of its projects to the social environment and
living standards of human beings. From the choice of building materials to the layout
of project designs, the Group's projects are humanised and accommodate to the
natural environment in minimising the use of resources (in terms of energy, space,
water and building materials), protecting the environment and reducing pollution,
so as to provide its residents with a healthy, comfortable and highly efficient space,

and buildings that stand harmoniously with the nature.

The Group has been infusing this environmental protection concept into its ongoing
construction projects, imposing strict control on these construction projects to
ensure adherence to the relevant construction regulations. The overall designs of
all ongoing projects of the Group aim to accommodate the surrounding natural
environment and fully utilise the local natural resources. Constructions should be
sustainable, eco-friendly and integrated with the nature, with high energy efficiency,
and should not harm the local eco-system. The interior design of buildings under
construction should fully utilise daylight to save energy. Buildings should bring a
sense of proximity to the nature and provide a healthy living environment to their
residents. By controlling and reducing the exploitation and destruction of the
natural environment, the Group's endeavours to strike a balance between taking
from and giving to the national environment. To better protect the environment

and optimise the use of resources, the Group has adopted the following measures:
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Conservation and use of energy

Construction plans are designed based on China's energy efficiency
standards for buildings, with an energy efficiency review report issued

by local authorities.

Structural forms, architectural orientations, spacing between buildings
and proportion of windows to walls are designed to utlise the natural
conditions of the venues, so that residents can enjoy adequate
sunlight, ventilation and lighting. Shading facilities are installed as

necessary.

Street lights and the lights installed at marketplaces use LED lights

with time or light control.

Make full use of solar, geothermal and other renewable energy

resources according to local climates and resources conditions.

Make use of natural lighting and ventilation (directly or indirectly from
entrances and exits, open yards, side windows and skylights) in the

underground area.

Adopt insulation design for exterior walls and roof surface.
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Conservation and Use of Water Resources

a.

Water system planning should be devised at the project planning
stage in order to coordinate, oversee and integrate various water

resources.

Adopt effective measures to prevent damage or leakage of water

pipes.
Use water-saving appliances and equipment.

Municipal supplied water and groundwater should not be used for
landscape purpose. Circulating water supply systems should be used

for landscape purpose.

When using non-traditional water sources, such as recycled water,
water safety measures should be taken to ensure that there is no

adverse effect to human health and the surrounding environment.

Properly design rainwater runoff channels on ground surface and on
roof tops to reduce surface runoff, and adopt various methods of

infiltration to increase rainwater infiltration.

Non-traditional water sources such as recycled water and rainwater

are used for non-potable purposes such as irrigation and car wash.

Use high efficiency and water conserving irrigation methods such as

sprinkler irrigation and micro irrigation.

Reasonable rainwater collection and utilisation schemes should
be established, taking into account technical and economical

considerations.
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3. Conservation and Use of Material Resources 3 BB HERFH
a. Materials used in construction must meet the relevant technical BREFRAOVMHEFAER

indicators and regulations set by the PRC government. The
content of harmful substances in building materials are in line with
the requirements of current national standards, including “Indoor
Decoration and Refurbishing Materials — Limit of Formaldehyde
Emission of Wooden Based Panels and Related Finished Products”
GBI8S8O( (EARMEEMBABRREZE DR RERK
fRE) ), “Limit of Ammonia Emission of Concrete Admixture”
GB18588( CRELINNEIFBRAMPBE) ) and “Limit of
Radioactive Nuclide from Building Materials” GB6566( &M #HR
SHEZERE) ).

HHEORTMERRAE
Hep BEMMGTEED
BEERaRTEREE
(EREMEEMEAER
RERGATEERRRE)
GB18580 * (& & 1 5h o0 &l
RERA MR 2 )GBI8588
FOCER S0 R DR GT ME R BUR
2 )GB6566 HEK ©

b.  The architectural designs should be plain and simple, and without REENEXMEH BAE
large quantities of decorative elements. REERE -

¢ Ready-mix concrete should be used for purpose of in situ concrete. RERRTRBEHERER

j: o

d. High-performance concrete and high-strength steels should be used BELBVHERASILE
as structural building materials. BEL  BREH -

e The solid residual wastes resulted from construction work, old EigEmT - BRERK
building demolition and site clean-up should be classified for different Mt RIR R E N E B E
treatments, and materials which can be reused should be recovered EMOERIE - WHEPA
and recycled. BRAME - TBERME

BB FIA o
f Use self-insulation wall materials for buildings” exterior and lightweight BEIMERA B REEEN

hollow wall for the interior.

B ERAEEELE
R -
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C.  Environment and Natural Resources C.

Project development activities inevitably affect the surrounding environment, and
conflicts exist between environmental protection and development construction
throughout the process of project development, which commences from
land development to project completion. To resolve such conflicts and create
constructive interactions between the two, project development plans must adopt
designs that are friendly to the ecosystem, avoid over-development, improve
the allocation of social resources, conserve the city's resources in its design and
layout, employ reasonable designs of building structures and utilise energy-saving
technologies to lower energy consumption. The Group has adopted the following

measures:

a. Facilities established at construction sites should not damage any local
cultural relics, natural water systems, wetlands, farmlands, basic farmlands and

other protected areas.

b.  The locations of construction sites should be free from threats such as
floods, landslides and radon-containing soil. No sources of hazards such as
electromagnetic radiation, fire, explosives and toxic substances should be

found within the perimeters of the construction sites.

C Architectural layouts in park areas must ensure that requirements of indoor
and outdoor sunlight environment, lighting and ventilation are in line with the
current national standards as set out in “Code of Urban Residential District
Planning and Design” GB50180 ( (3B X R REIRFTHE) ) with

respect to standard sunlight requirements for residential buildings.

d.  Adopt native landscaping by planting appropriate native plants that are
accustomed to the local climate and soil conditions. The preferred choices
are those that require little maintenance, are resistant to extreme weather

conditions and pests, and not harmful to human health.

e. No pollution sources with discharge exceeding the standards should exist in

the park district.
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Environment and Natural Resources (Contd)

Specific environmental protection measures during the construction process
should be developed and implemented for the control of atmospheric
pollution, soil pollution, noise pollution, water pollution, light pollution and

impact to the surrounding areas resulted from the constructions.

Public service facilities in the park district are set up according to the planning
for the specific district and for sharing with the adjacent districts. Integrated

building designs are adopted as reasonably necessary.

Environmental noise levels in the park district should comply with the

requirements in the national “Standards for Acoustic Environmental Quality”
GB3096 ( (BIRIEFEESIFE) ).

Landscaping should be carried out according to local climate conditions
and the natural distribution of vegetation. Different types of plant such as
trees, shrubs and grass should be combined to form variations in the plant

communities.

Construction sites should be designed according to the original landscape

topology.

Underground areas should be reasonably developed and utilised.
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SOCIETY e

Employment and Labour Standard ERREIEA

A.  Employment A EE

I Overview of Human Resources . ADEREX

The Group has compiled the “Human Resources Process Management AEEEREANERRIZER
Manual”, setting out strict guidelines on the Group's human resources F) - BRHEEBANERS
policies, which fully respect and uphold human rights, create legitimate and R FMAIEENEEAE
fair work opportunities, and set out smooth channels for employees career LEEE  NTHIERE - T8
advancement. The manual contains 20 sets of rules, including “Operational B E 8 TE @G - ek -
Guidelines on Annual Human Resources Planning”, “Operational Guidelines (FEANERAEERES)
on Recruitment Management”, “Operational Guidelines on Internal (BEEAEEREXES) (BT
Recommendation Management”, “Operational Guidelines on Trainees and NEHEEERIEZES) (EE
Interns Management”, “Operational Guidelines on Training Management”, EREELEEERERS) OF
"Operational Guidelines on Employee Incentive Management”, “Operational IIERERES ) (BEIREE
Guidelines on Employee Benefits”, “Operational Guideline on Remuneration BExEs) (BIRANERE
Management”, “Operational Guidelines on Labour Contract Management”, %%5l) (FMERERES)
"Operation Guidelines on Staff Internal Transfer” and “Operational (BBaRERERES) (BT
Guidelines on Attendance Management”, covering recruitment and EFEREZRES) (EHERE
promotion, internal competition, dismissal and compensation, working hours, XEaDZ20EHE  RERER
paid leave and other benefits. Fach rule is formulated in compliance with Bt REBRE  mERBE T
relevant laws and regulations, including but not limited to the PRC Labour 1ERSFE ~ KR R E M IEF F
Law ( (FREARLMEIZE)E) ) and the Labour Contract Law ( {55 8 - GERUERREWERER
BA[RE) ). The Group strictly complies with the above guidelines and HIE - BEEIRRFE(EEE)
relevant laws and regulations during the Year. Meanwhile, the Group offers S BERE) - REBF NG
its employees equal opportunities in recruitment, training, development BF FE S| RAAEER - RIE
and benefits. Employees would not be discriminated against or deprived AEEERE  BIRER UK
of equal opportunities on the ground of sex, racial background, religion, BHNEFEHREIRHETSHE -
colour, sexuality, age, marital status, family background, retirement, disability, BIUTERARMR  ERER
pregnancy or any other discriminatory factors prohibited by law. TH - BE AR - FRR - B

o RERR ~ RIK - BE &
ey At AR TSR L AOE A H A
BREMEZBRRABHEFEH

PN

&= o
=}
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Overview of Human Resources (Cont d)

Our employees come from different age, sex and racial groups. As of 31
December 2016, the Group employed approximately 1,786 staff, 564 of
which are undergraduates, representing 31.58% of the Group's total number
of employees. The Group's employees are relatively young, with 75.42%
under the age of 40. The work force of the Group is relatively stable, with

39.4% having worked with the Group for three years or more.

Recruitment and Departure Management

Recruitment of the Group's employees is in accordance with the
"Operational Guidelines on Recruitment Management” and in compliance
with the requirements of the relevant labour regulations at national and
regional levels, and strictly restricting child labour and forced labour. The
Group strictly complies with the above regulations during the Year and
reviews its recruitment practices from time to time to prevent potential
non-compliances. The Group strives to ensure that the entire recruitment
process complies with relevant laws and regulations, and employees are
required to truthfully complete the application forms upon entries, with their
personal particulars (including copies of documents, such as resume, identity
documents, academic certificates, proof of qualifications, title certificates,
business qualification certificates, work licenses, driver's license, original
copy of proof of departure fom previous employments, and career profile

background files) verified by the human resources department before hiring.

The Company would organise recruitment events for outstanding talents
from the society. In addition, to ensure that its future middle to senior level
work force are equiped with compound skills necessary for its development,
the Group has launched the “Hydoo's Apprentices” scheme by recruiting
excellent graduates from key colleges and universities since 2015. Through
various types of training for “Hydoo's Apprentices”, such as internship
rotation of different positions, mentoring, on-the-job practice and project

experience, outstanding graduates are provided with comprehensive training.
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Recruitment and Departure Management (Cont d)

The departure of the Group's employees complies with the Group's
"Operation Guidelines on Staff Internal Transfer”, which regulates how
resignation, and discharge and termination of labour contract are handled,
and is in compliance with the PRC Labour Contract Law ( {FZEA R
MEBEILEERE) ), the Labour Law ( (FEAREMBEALEE) )
and other relevant rules and regulations of the Company. In relation to
resignation, the Group's human resources department would arrange a
departure interview, requiring the relevant staff to complete the “Staff
Departure Survey” and the “"Departure Interview Record” before and after
the interview for filing and analysis, and for the human resources department

to optimise human resources management decisions.

Working hours and holidays

The Group has formulated the “Operational Guidelines on Attendance
Management”, regulating employees’ working hours to the standard of 40
working hours per week. The Group advocates efficiency at work. Staff who
are required to work overtime should complete and deliver the “Application
Form for Overtime Work”. Upon approval, staff may apply for alternative
leave. The Group's employees are entitled to national holidays, company
holidays, annual leave, funeral leave, marital leave, matemity leave and sick

leave.

Development and training

To strengthen the Group's operation and to meet the needs in its business
development, the Company has formulated systems including “Operational
Guidelines on Training Management”, “Operational Guidelines on Induction
Training Management for New Employees”, “Operational Guidelines on
Position Mentoring”, “Operational Guidelines on In-service Immersion
Management”, “"Operational Guidelines on Staff Internal Transfer” and
"Operational Guidelines on Promotion Management” to train outstanding

talents.
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Development and training (Cont d)

The Group has placed great importance on the training and growth of
its employees, giving them promotion potential in both technical and

management directions.

Every vear, the Company would offer promotion to employees with
outstanding performance. In principle, when there are vacancies, internal
promotion will be considered first. Only a certain proportion of positions are

reserved for external recruitment.

At the end of each vear, in light of its development plans and the actual
needs of its various departments, the Company would formulate its annual
training plans, including interal and external training. In the middle of each
year, the Group will conduct reviews in light of the training operations,
adjusting its training plans for the second half of the year. All training plans
closely reflect changes in employees” working environment and aim to

enhance their work efficiency.

In 2016, the Group organised approximately 800 trainings in total for its
employees at different levels, including both intemal trainings and external

trainings. The trainings mainly include:

a. Induction training for new employees. Such trainings mainly introduce
the Company's development history, corporate culture, organisation
and structure, and rules and regulations to help new employees
familiarise themselves with the Group’s operation as soon as possible
and improve their work efficiency. In addition to employee training,
the Group would also assign a mentor to new employees to guide

them through the Company's operation and management;

BoHEREBRSE

REREF(E)

SE-EERETMEIINKE
RTREIEXTRAMERAME
ERNETER

BF  ARBEHRRFEENET
EF o RAIE - AR

—REeBLEBERADER B

BREB—THHIETTINEREE o

AIBFEREREBAERASINE
B ERB KB EFEEIEE -
BREARBEIRINFE - FRR
BIEYI TENRRBEREL R -
HAETFFNEIN TS - 1A
FilEHE - BREREYIRBRET

TERENEE - UMREIHNT
TERRE

0165 AEEHETN\BRS
TRBHREIHEIN  RENIE
ARANER A - FARNDEER
1

a  HMEIABSEI: X2NA
NEEREL - REXE -
BRER RAREHES
Z BHABEIGRAL
SEEENRAEIER
EoBREIABEIN BB
MEB TRH RS - %
ENMEIREABAALE
B REERR

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 F#



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
BoHEgRkEs

4

BE

Development and training (Cont d)

b.

Middle to senior level management training. The Group would
regularly organise training classes for management staff at middle to
senior levels every vear, and hire professional lecturers to deliver.
Through systematic learning, the classes can enhance the technical
knowledge and management skills of the Group's employees at
middle to senior levels, helping them become leaders with the ability

to create commercial values;

Expansion training. The Group regularly conduct outdoor team-
building expansion trainings, creating an effective and interesting
platform through which communications between leaders and

employees, and among employees themselves, can be enhanced;

External learning. To serve the objective of cultivating talents for
the society, the Group regularly sends employees away on external
learning to study the latest trends in the industry, broaden their

horizons and enhance their skills;

“Yi Class”. It is the Group's pocket mobile learning platform for
its employees, enabling them to learn at any time anywhere. The
Company can set the curriculum structure in light of its development
strategies and its employees’ professional competence and, through
the management and monitoring of the learning process, assist its
employees in mastering the knowledge and skills necessary for their

positions, in order to enhance the Company'’s performance;

Continuing education. In order to enhance their professionalism and
qualifications, and eventually improve their comprehensive quality, the
Company supports employees to pursue in-service studies through
three channels, namely professional research and learning, education
advancement and EMBA/MBA.
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Remuneration and benefits

Every year, the Group adopts an annual remuneration policy based on its
market remuneration investigation and in light of its development strategies,
which ensures that the remuneration policy can effectively support the
Company's business. In principle, remuneration would be regularly adjusted
once or twice annually to give staff timely incentives. The Group has built
a sound benefits system, which mainly includes but is not limited to “5
Insurances and | Pension”, phone allowance, meal allowance and accident
insurance. In addition, the Company also adopted measures, such as
distributing gifts and benefits and lengthening holidays, to further enhance
the benefits system and its staff satisfaction.

Incentives and praises

The Company has formulated a sound staff incentive mechanism. At the
end of each year, the Company would assess its staff for their performance
to select outstanding teams, managers and employees, who would receive
commendations and bonuses in recognition of their contribution to the
Company and of their efforts in jointly reaching the Company's goals.
Throughout the year, the Company would also offer immediate promotion
to staff with excellent daily performance and give commendation to staff
from time to time in recognition of their handling of emergencies or as an
award for their early fulfilment of targets, thereby encouraging other staff
to contribute to the Company. In addition, the Company has adopted
comprehensive incentive measures in light of its various businesses to fully
mobilise the enthusiasm of the staff and ensure the Company's sustainable

development.
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7. Employee Activities

To enrich its staff's pasttime, the Company organised various group activities,
including the New Year banquet, group basketball matches, badminton
matches, Women's Day event, staff birthday parties, outdoors walks,
hikings, fluorescent night runs and photography events, which offers its staff
a platform to showcase their talents and enhance communication among
themselves and between different centers and departments, and strengthen

its staff's sense of belonging and team cohesion.

Health and Safety

The Company strictly complies with PRC's laws and regulations to protect
employees’ occupational safety and health. The Company has developed its
occupational health guidelines in accordance with national occupational health
and safety standards including OHSMS ( (B RREELZZEREZR) ), ISO
9000 ( (EERFEEZ) ) and ISO 14000 ( GRIEEEEBRIZE) ), to
prevent occupational diseases, protect workers' health, enhance employees' safety
awareness and ensure safety at construction sites. The Group has purchased
accidental injury insurance for each employee in addition to social insurance
purchased in accordance with the relevant laws and regulations, offering its staff all-
rounded protection. Furthermore, the Group also arranges annual health check-ups

for all employees to help identify potential health risks in advance.
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Health and Safety (Contd)

The Company has compiled with the “Operation Guidelines on the Management
of Construction Safety and Legitimacy”. Through prevention and control
measures, the Company strives to reduce the probability of workplace accidents in
construction projects, improve construction site environment, standardise safety-
management procedures and equip its workers with accident-handling knowledge.
Project companies assess the management measures adopted by contractors,
conduct independent patrolling, sample-checking and monitoring at construction
sites, report to the relevant person-in-charge and the relevant contractors when
problems are identified, and monitor the relevant rectification measures. The
Group's projects management division monitors project companies” execution of
safety management policies. The Company requires contractors to hold frequent

trainings on safety education and techniques.

The Group's projects management division has set up internal safety management
teams to regularly inspect the safety and incident prevention measures on the
sites of ongoing constructions, the results of which will be reported directly to the
Company's management. During the Year, the Group has strictly complied with

relevant laws, regulations and guidelines to prevent accidents from happening.
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Usual Practices in Operation

A

Supply Chain Management

The majority of the Group's construction work and technical work are
outsourced to contractors selected through a bidding process. The selection
process of suppliers and technical service providers is very rigorous. The
Group has set up the “Tender Procurement Management Process” to
regulate the selection and management of suppliers to maximise the use
of the Company's external resources and help to achieve the Company's
project targets and strategies. The Company has a stable relationship with
its suppliers. No difficulties were encountered in the process of supplier
selection, and the requirements in all the Company's development projects
were met. As most construction materials are procured locally at the place
of the development project, there should be no problem in locating an
alternative supplier of major construction materials in the event that any
supplier is unable to meet the demand of the Group. The Company has
compiled with the “Supplier Management Process” and set up a supplier
information management platform through which suppliers information are
input to the database by category, after qualification assessments or on-
site reviews. With the setup and maintenance of the suppliers database,
suppliers information is collected and processed systematically to ensure
that quality services and products can be delivered to the Company. At
the end of each year, the contract tender management division works
with other management divisions and project companies in reviewing and
assessing suppliers’ contract performance, and screens out suppliers that
have not complied with the relevant rules and regulations, and have brought
environmental and social risks to the Company (such as bringing harm to the
Company's reputation by causing environmental pollution at construction
sites or employing illegal workers). To ensure that qualified suppliers can
provide the Company with quality service and have good reputations,
suppliers’ ratings are updated in the database according to the assessment
reports approved by the Group's management, while those failing to pass

the assessment are eliminated.
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B.  Product Liability

1.

Monitoring of Product Quality

To ensure that the properties built by the Company comply
with relevant regulations and standards as set out in the national
Unified Standard for Constructional Quality Acceptance of Building
Engineering” ( GRS T LmEBRKA —1R%E) ) and "Quality
Evaluation Standard for Construction” ( (22 T2 T mE FHE
Z4E) ), the Company has compiled the “Operation Guideline on
Engineering Quality Control” and the “Operational Guidelines on
Engineering Inspection”, which are used to ensure that construction
works comply with the relevant regulations and technical standards,
and fulfill the requirements as set out in the relevant construction
work/service contracts. Project companies review construction plans,
quality assurance measures and business qualifications submitted
by contractors and suppliers, conduct site inspections and make
sample-checks on the quality of construction. The Group's project
management division provides technical support to project companies

and review such quality assurance measures.

Customers’ Feedback

To improve the quality of the Company's products, services and
management, it is important to ensure that customers’ complaints
are handled in a timely, accurate and reasonable manner. In order to
continuously enhance its products and services, the Company has set
up the “Operational Guidelines on Engineering Maintenance Services”
and "Operational Guidelines on Merchant Service and Supervision”,
and established the “Information File of Merchant's Complaints and
Feedbacks”. Project companies’ sales department and property
management center are the channels through which customers’
complaints can be made. The Group's business management center is
responsible for dealing with more serious problems from customer's
feedbacks, and conducting regular review and analysis of the
“Information File of Merchant's Complaints and Feedbacks”, in order
to give project companies’ property management centers instructions

on how to improve their service quality.
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Protection of intellectual property rights

The Group has formulated the “Trademark Management System” in
accordance with the Trademark Law of the PRC ( {2 A R F0
BIFG1R/%) ) to encourage all staff and customers to participate in
Hydoo's brand protection. All staff and customers are encouraged
to collect evidence to assist the Group's legal division and other
relevant departments in the handling of intellectual property rights

infringement.

Advertising

The Group strictly complies with the PRC Advertising Law ( {FZE
ARKMBEEEE) ).

Privacy

In accordance with the Labour Law of the PRC ( {##E A R
FMEIZE))E) ), the Group's template labour contracts stipulate
that its staff are obliged to keep confidential the Group's business
secrets, which, in accordance with the Law of the PRC against Unfair
Competition ( (FEARLMERTIEEHREFE) ), refer to
matters that are not known by the general public, can bring economic
benefits to the Group, are of practicality, and include technical secrets
and operational information protected by the Group's confidentiality

measures. These secrets include but are not limited to the following;

a. Technical information. Technical information generally includes
technical solutions, engineering solutions, circuit designs,
manufacturing methods, prescriptions, crafting processes,
technical indicators, computer software, databases, test results,
drawings, samples, prototypes, models, molds, operating
manuals, technical documentation, business correspondence

involving trade secrets and so forth.
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5. Privacy (Contd) 5 EBE(E)
b. Operational information. Operational information generally b. BEER - KEER
includes customer lists, marketing plans, procurement MEE-—RaEEP
information, pricing policies, non-public financial information, LE - 2HHE R
trading contracts, purchase pipelines, production and marketing BEM TEHE-
strategies, bidding and tender content and so forth. TRENFBEER

N

XHpaR  £ER
B EHKRE AR
BRNENRIEER
C Matters to be kept confidential in accordance with the C KEEERE (IR
provisions of laws (such as the confidential information of the RNBERHENES
other contracting parties) and the terms of relevant agreements BEEANME)NEH
(such as technology agreements). BEBA T (MR E
R ) GINEAERE

EBNERE -
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Anti-corruption

The Group is committed to protecting its business from any illegal behaviour
in its operating environment. Honesty, integrity and fairness are the core
values of the Group which all employees are required to uphold and
safeguard. In order to establish such values, the Group's “Staff Manual”
sets out disciplinary actions against offenders of anti-corruption regulations.
The provision or recipient of bribery in any forms (including commissions,
handlings, rebates, rewards, vouchers, gifts, etc.) from business-related
persons or entities are deemed as serious violations of the Company's
regulations. Meanwhile, all staff are required to attend relevant trainings and
execute the “Undertaking on Honest Work™ so as to ensure that all staff
refrain from corrupt practices and uphold honesty. In addition, the Group has
formulated the "Operational Guidelines on the Investigation and Prosecution
of lllegal Acts” to closely supervise and prevent its staff's acts which violate
the PRC Criminal Law ( {FZEARLFBIMZ) ) or the Company's rules
and regulations, which include but not limited to bribery, extortion, fraud
and money laundering. In the event that illegal acts have been discovered, a
set of investigation procedures will be activated for evidence collection. The
Company may give such offenders warnings, demerits or demotion. The
Company shall rescind the employment contract of serious offenders and

hand over the case to the judiciary authority.

To facilitate its staff's supervision of its management and operations, and
maintain the legitimate rights and interests of the complainants, the Group
has formulated the “Operational Guidelines on the Reporting of Violations
of Laws and Discipline”. Staff may report violations by phone, express

delivery, letter, e-mail and face-to-face reporting
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OMMUNITY

Community Investment

An enterprise is not only an economic entity but also a member of the society. The Group
sees contribution to the society as a responsibility, as its value and as a display of positivity.
The Group has formulated the “Donation Management System”, standardising the act
of donating and integrating it into the Group's daily management. In 2016, the Group
donated a total amount of RMB9.392 million to the society. Our staff have participated in

various charitable activities to help the indigents.

A.  Community activities
Our project company in Ganzhou visiting the elderly on Chung Yeung Festival

In the morning of 8 October 2016, our project company in Ganzhou visited
the elderly in celebration of the Chung Yeung Festival. More than 10 volunteers
representing the Company visited Tandong Nursing Home (&R a1#R), bringing
festival blessings to all 46 seniors. The volunteers visited the nursing home to
understand the elderly’s urgent needs and brought them a closet, towels, shower

sets, milk and fruits.

Our project company in Bengbu visiting officers and soldiers of a fire brigade on

Army Day

As the Chinese People’s Liberation Army was celebrating its 89th anniversary,
the Deputy General Manager and the staff of the General Manager's office of our
project company in Bengbu represented the Company to visit the officers and
soldiers of the Huaiyuan fire brigade, bringing them blessings and gifts. The visit
was warmly welcomed by the fire brigade, who celebrated Army Day with the
volunteers. Through the visit, the volunteers expressed the Group's respect for the

soldiers.
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Staff of our project company in Bengbu visiting Huaiyuan Children Welfare

Institute with love

As Children’s Day was approaching, the loving volunteers of our project company
in Bengbu visited the local children welfare institute, and represented the Company

to bring blessings and love to the children.

Our project company in Xingning visiting the elderly

As the Chinese New Year was approching, on | February 2016, staff of Xingning
Trade Center visited Ms Liu Yuying, an elderly in Shangjing Village, Yetang, bringing

New Year's blessings with gifts and consolation money.

Hydoo’s “Love Train” event in Wuzhou —“Let’s Spread Warmth Together in
2016”

As the Chinese New Year was approaching, on 2| January 2016, Wuzhou Trade
Center joined hands with the Wanxiu District Committee of Wuzhou, Changzhou
District Committee, Municipal Work Committee and Party Committee of
Wouzhou Daily to carry out the activity named “Love Train - Let's Spread Warmth
Together in 2016", giving rice, bread, edible oil and sausages to 160 families in
need in the Wuzhou region so that they could have a warm New Year. Relevant
representatives of Changzhou District, Municipal Work Committee, Wuzhou Daily

and representatives of Wuzhou Trade Center also attended the event.
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Sponsorship for sports activities

Successful completion of “Xingning Hydoo City Cup’, the first Central China
100 km ride in Wuhua County

On 22 May 2016, sponsored by Xingning Trade Center and hosted by the Publicity
Department of Party Committee of Wuhua County of the CPC, National Health
County Office of Wuhua County, Provincial Civilisation County Office of Wuhua
County, Sports Burea of Wuhua County and Cycling Association of Wuhua
County, “Xingning Hydoo City Cup”, the first Central China 100km ride in Wuhua

County, was successfully completed.

The main venue of the ride was located in Wuhua County and was the first
“Xingning Hydoo City Cup” Central China 100 km ride event hosted in Wuhua
County. The ride was |16 km long, covering five towns, 30 villages, one popular
tourism destination of rare resources and one eco-tourism destination at provincial
level, reaching more than 600,000 people. It was estimated that approximately 1,000
people participated in the ride and many media, including the Wuhua County TV

Station, reported on the event.

2016 “Hydoo Cup” UAV aerial competition began in Mianyang Trade Center

On 7 May 2016, as exclusively named by Mianyang Trade Center and hosted
by Mianyang General Aviation Industry Development Leading Group and
Beichuan General Aviation Industrial Park Administrative Committee, the opening
ceremony of “Hydoo Cup’ Chinese Dream UAV aerial competition 2016",
grandly commenced in Mianyang Trade Center. The event gathered more than 30
participants, including the China UAV Association, Civil Aviation Administration
of Southwestern China, China General Aviation Association and Sichuan Fanfei
Aviation Enginerring, and attracted many UAV aerial and aviation lovers to the

commencement ceremony.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
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Successful completion of the “Hydoo Cup” table tennis tournament in Xingning

As the new year began, the front gate of the Xingning Cinema was full of festival
sentiment, with colourful flags hanging at the doors and eye-catching couplets on
two red pillars that wrote “The operations of Hydoo are spanning across China,
with unique edges in southeastern China. We enjoy distinguished reputation in the
industry and are well known by many. Prosperity is shared between the Company
and its customers.” The “Hydoo Cup” table tennis tournament in celebration of the
New Year's Day, as hosted by Xinging Trade Center, Xingning Sports Bureau and
the City Table Tennis Association, was held at the venue, presenting a rich festival

event for the general public celebrating New Year's Day.

Education Fund Sponsorship

The Group sponsoring the class opening ceremony of “Hydoo Hongzhi Class” of
Lichuan No.2 Middle School

On 16 January 2016, the Group sponsored the class opening ceremony of “Hydoo
Hongzhi Class” at Lichuan No.2 Middle School in Fuzhou City. Lichuan Province
is located in the remote mountainous area of Gandong, and the studies of a lot of
students from the rural areas are affected due to financial difficulties. The Lichuan
Province Committee and Province Government proposed to open a “Jujizhi Clas”
to admit grade 6 students from poor families but with excellent academic results.
Through this event, Hydoo Group donated RMB500,000 to sponsor 100 students
to help them successfully graduate. At the class opening ceremony, the Standing
Committee of Fuzhou City, deputy head of the Publicity Division of the Municipal
Committee and Li Jianlin, the Secretary to the Municipal Committee, presented a

pennant to the Group.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Wuzhou Trade Center joining “Dreams Come True 1+1”, a public welfare

activity for the youth

Around Children's Day, “Dreams Come True |+1" was held as a public welfare
activity in Wuzhou, with its commencement ceremony taken place in Wuzhou
Zhengyang Primary School. The event was aimed to help a primary school student
named Ni Qian, who was awarded the title of “Moral teenager of the City", so that
he could continue his studies. Wuzhou Trade Center offered him some consolation
money and gifts, including rice, oil and flour. As the annual Children’s Day was
approaching, Wuzhou Trade Center also brought other gifts, including books,
watercolor pens, lamps and sweets, so that school children could spend a happy

festival together.

Yuzhou District Government joining hands with Yulin Trade Center in holding

visiting event

As Children's Day was approaching, on 31 May 2016, Hu Jianhai, the Deputy
General Manager of our project company in Yulin, visited Chengbeizhen Xi'an
Primary School in Yuzhou District, accompanied by representatives from several
governmental authorities, including the Propaganda Department of the Yulin City
Yuzhou District, Education Bureau and Women's Federation, to bring learning tools,
domestic tools and consolation money to the children, giving them an unforgettable
Children’s Day.

Lanzhou Trade Center sponsoring primary school, making the football dream in

the deepest mountains come true

To support football education in mountainous areas and make students’ football
dreams come true, at the end of October 2016, Lanzhou Trade Center donated
RMB200,000 and two 32-inch televisions to Zhonglianchuan Primary School in
Yuzhong County, Lanzhou City, so as to improve students’ living and learning
condition, their nutrition, provide professional football training equipment for four
football teams of 60 school children, and assist the school in building multi-media

rooms and activity rooms.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
REARE

The Board is pleased to present this corporate governance report in the annual report of

the Company for FY2016.

The Company recognizes the value and importance of achieving high standard of
corporate governance to enhance the corporate performance accountability and is
committed to doing so. The Board is also committed to the principles of the CG Code.
Save and except for the deviation disclosed in this annual report, the Directors are of
the opinion that the Company has complied with the provisions set out in the CG Code
during the Year and up to the date of this annual report. The Company will continue to
review and enhance its corporate governance practice to ensure compliance with the CG

Code.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises seven Directors, including three executive Directors, one
non-executive Director and three independent non-executive Directors. Brief biographical
details of the Directors are set out in the section headed “Biographical Details of the
Directors and Senior Management” on pages 106 to |17 of this annual report. The overall
management and supervision of the Company's operation and the function of formulating

overall business strategies are vested in the Board.

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, the Board has complied with the
requirements of Rules 3.10 and 3.10A of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of
at least three independent non-executive Directors with at least one independent non-
executive Director having appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related
financial management expertise, and the requirement that independent non-executive

Directors represent at least one-third of the Board.

The Company has received annual confirmation from each independent non-executive
Director pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that
each of the independent non-executive Directors is independent in accordance with the
independence guidelines as set out in the Listing Rules. All the Directors, including the
independent non-executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business
experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective
functioning. Independent non-executive Directors are invited to serve on the audit
committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”), the remuneration committee of
the Company (the “Remuneration Committee”) and the nomination committee of the

Company (the “Nomination Committee”).

_ HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED SREEIMIZRER D H

EZEMARNARAAH 016 HRFENFR
AENALEERRS

AREEBIERRERERRENRR LR
FENAAHNEERBRENE  YSHNEK
IER - EZETAHETEEE AT - K

BRAFHEMEEOREN  EZRAN
RAAEFEREEAFRIEBHDETLE
BRTRIMENERN - ARABFEEZ KM
BECRERTRUBRETEREE AT -

s
s

e

g

&

ETCeHRALRERANR  AE-AHTE
£ AERITEEN A BUNTES
ﬁﬁ%%%%)@ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ&% 106Z 117

BEERRRERERE |- E=888
%%ﬁﬁ&%% RAIMEE  ARHIEBE
KR o

RAFEREEAFRTZAE  E£8E
FEMRAE3I0K3I0A K *ﬁ‘ﬁaﬁ%ﬂ
ERUFPTESTEEFRL - BB IIENT
EERAEC IR ARIBHIERMBER
EXNBREANBUFNTESTREES
=D HHE o

ARRERELMRANRTE  EEGREY
FPTESELNFERRE - BELTHR
T8 B EESl - ARARABSBUIERITE
EYBEY  c AEEE(BEBUERITES)
HREZEHERTLEMEENEBLR A
BREERD  REEEQRMRBEREE -
%M#ﬂﬂ%%%ﬂﬁ&$’ﬂ ERZE®
([BRZEE.)) AARFTMZES([FME
EgRAR Th%éﬁaﬁkﬁi gHm

=

E

%8



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The CG Code requires Directors to disclose to the Company, the number and nature
of offices held in public companies or organizations and other significant commitments as
well as their identity and the time involved. The Directors have agreed to disclose their

commitments to the Company in a timely manner.

ROLE AND FUNCTION AND DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for and has general powers for the management and conduct
of the business of the Company. It delegates day-to-day management of the Company to
executive Directors and the senior management of the Company within the control and
the authority framework set by the Board. The delegated functions and responsibilities are

periodically reviewed by the Board.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters of the Company, including approving
and monitoring all policy matters, overall strategies and budgets, intemal control and risk
management systems, material transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of
interests), financial information, appointment of Directors and other significant financial and
operational matters. Directors may seek independent professional advice in performing
their duties at the Company's expense and are encouraged to consult the Company's

senior management independently.

In addition, the Board has also delegated to the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee various responsibilities as set out in their
respective terms of reference. Further details of these committees are set out on pages 96

to 99 of this annual report.

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good faith, in compliance with
applicable laws and regulations, and in the interest of the Company and its Shareholders at

all times.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to indemnify its Directors in

respect of legal actions against them.

Relationship between Directors

Save that Mr. Wang Jianli (the Chairman and executive Director) is the uncle of both Mr.
Huang Dehong (an executive Director) and Mr. Wang Dewen (the chief executive officer
of the Company and an executive Director), there are no financial, business, family or

other material relationships among members of the Board.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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TREBRSE

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR

MANAGEMENT

The changes to the information of the Directors and senior management since the date
of the 2015 annual report of the Company are set out on page 48 of the 2016 interim
report of the Company dated 29 August 2016 (the “2016 Interim Report”). For details of

the changes during the above period, please refer to the 2016 Interim Report.

The changes of the information of the Directors and senior management since the date of

the 2016 Interim Report of Company and up to the date of this annual report are set out

below pursuant to Rule 13.51(B) of the Listing Rules:

Name of Director

ExEB

Mr. Wang Wei (a former non-executive Director)

IRAEGINTES)

Mr. Wang Lianzhou

EEMEE

Other than those disclosed above, there is no other information required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(l) of the Listing Rules. There is no change to the information
of Directors and senior management since the date of the 2016 Interim Report and up

to the date of this annual report, and no other information is required to be disclosed

pursuant to Rule 13.51B(I) of the Listing Rules.
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Changes
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Mr. Wang WEei resigned on 2| September 2016.
FEREER 201659 A21 REHE

Mr. Wang Lianzhou has resigned as independent director of Beijing Tongrentang
Co. ltd GtRRAEZERM AR QA a company listed on Shanghai Stock
Exchange), Huabao Trust Co. Ltd. (EEFFLAMEMELF]) and Heaven-Sent
Capital Management Group Co. Ltd (W AREEEEEEE).
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INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Each appointed Director is provided with necessary induction and information to ensure
that he has a proper understanding of the Company's operations and business as well as
his responsibilities under relevant statutes, laws, rules and regulations. According to the
records of the Company, all Directors have attended training sessions conducted by the
Company's legal advisers as to Hong Kong laws on duties and obligations of directors of
companies listed on the Stock Exchange including connected transactions and corporate
governance. The Company also provides periodic legal updates and developments on
the Listing Rules, the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, news updates from the Stock
Exchange and the Securities & Futures Commission of Hong Kong and other relevant
legal and regulatory requirements to all of the Directors, as well as regular updates on the
Company's performance, position and prospects to enable the Board as a whole and each

Director to discharge their duties.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the code of conduct of the Company
for Directors’ securities transactions. Having made specific enquiry to all Directors, all
Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the required standard set out in
the Model Code during the Year. Employees who are, or likely to be, in possession of
unpublished inside information in relation to the Company or its shares are prohibited

from dealing in the shares of the Company during the black-out period.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board is of the opinion that the Company had complied with the code provisions as

set out in the CG Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules during the Year.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Each of the Directors has entered into service contract or letter of appointment with
the Company, which may be terminated in accordance with the respective terms of the
service contracts or letters of appointment. For details, please refer to page 45 of this

annual report.
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None of the Directors has a service contract which is not determinable by the Group

within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

In accordance with Articles 16.2 and 16.3 of the articles of association of the Company (the
"Articles"), any Director appointed by the Board or by an ordinary resolution either to
fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board, shall hold office only until the following
annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at that
meeting. At every annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being
shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director (including those appointed
for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three

years. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election at the annual general meeting.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal of Directors are
set out in the Articles. The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board
composition and making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in particular the Chairman

and chief executive officer.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Company has adopted the practice of holding Board meetings at least four times
a year at approximately quarterly intervals pursuant to code provision A.l.l of the CG
Code. Notice of not less than fourteen days are given for all regular board meetings to
provide all Directors with an opportunity to attend, and include matters in the agenda for

a regular meeting pursuant to code provision A.1.3 of the CG Code.

All Directors are provided with the meeting agenda and relevant information related to
the agenda in advance before the meeting. They have access to the senior management
and the company secretary of the Company at all time and may, upon reasonable request,

seek independent professional advice at the Company's expense.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREARE

Minutes of the meetings are kept by the company secretary of the Company with copies CHRLHFARRANRARERT  BIXEH
circulated to all Directors for information and records. Minutes of the board meetings and PREFEN  UHBZEREH - EFERE
committee meetings record sufficient details of the matters considered by the Board and BEEgENeRLHO R IIIESTERES

the committees and the decisions reached, including any concerns raised by the Directors. EMEREZENFRBERIENNRE  BREE
Draft minutes of each Board meeting and committee meeting are sent to the Directors ENEMRR ZREFEREZECLENEE
for comments within a reasonable time after the date on which the meeting was held. DTHRERARSZRTHBE - BRABRERR
Minutes of board meetings are open for inspection for the Directors. REEREH -EFeeRNgRACHAME

EBH -

Ten Board meetings and one general meeting were held during the Year. Individual RAFR  BITIOREZGEER I ARE
attendance of the Directors is as follows: Ag HFERNEZMT

No. of meetings attended/No.

of meetings held

HEERRE BHEERE

Directors Board Meetings General Meeting
B=x Exges BRRAE
Executive Directors HITES

MrWang Jianli (Chairman and executive Director) TRAE (TEFHTEE) 9/10 1/l
Mr. Wang Dewen FEXEE 10/10 11
Mr. Huang Dehong BEREE 3/10 /1
Non-executive Director FHITES

Mr. Yuan Bing RERSE 6/10 0o/l
Mr. Wang Wei (resigned on 2| September 2016) FHEEE (R2016F9821 BEHE) 7/10 o/l
Independent non-executive Directors BYFHTES

Mr. Zhao Lihua WU ERSE 10/10 0/1
Mr. Wang Lianzhou FEMEE 3/10 o/l
Mr. Lam Chi Yuen Nelson MWEEREE 9/10 /1
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee, to handle particular
responsibilities of the Board and certain affairs of the Company. All board committees
of the Company are established with defined written terms of reference which have
been uploaded to the website of the Stock Exchange and that of the Company, and are

provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee on 27 September 2013 in compliance
with Rule 3.21 and Rule 3.22 of the Listing Rules and with written terms of reference in
compliance with the CG Code and Corporate Governance Report as set out in Appendix
I4 to the Listing Rules and the roles and the responsibilities delegated to the Audit
Committee by the Board. The revised terms of reference has been adopted by the Board
on 29 December 2015 to comply with the new CG Code which became effective on
I January 2016. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review the financial
information of the Company, to oversee the financial reporting process, risk management
and internal control systems of the Group, to oversee the audit process, to make
recommendation on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditor

and to perform other duties and responsibilities as assigned by the Board.

The Audit Committee consists of two independent non-executive Directors and one
non-executive Director. The three members are Mr. Lam Chi Yuen Nelson, the chairman
of the Audit Committee and an independent non-executive Director, Mr. Zhao Lihua, an
independent non-executive Director, and Mr. Yuan Bing, a non-executive Director. During
the Year, two Audit Committee meetings were held to, among other matters, (1) review
and recommend the half-yearly and annual results to the Board for approval; (2) review
the Group's financial controls, internal control and risk management systems; (3) review
the Group's financial and accounting policies and practices; (4) review and consider the
whistleblowing policy and system; (5) review the external auditor’s independence and the
objectivity and effectiveness of the audit process; and (6) review the terms of reference of

the Audit Committee.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The attendance of the Directors at the Audit Committee meetings was as follows: —

AN A
EREBRSE

ESLFEERZESRRNBRNT :

Number of
Directors Attendance
B=x HERE
Mr. Lam Chi Yuen Nelson (Committee Chairman) wEELE (FEGTR) 212
Mr. Yuan Bing REEHE 212
Mr. Zhao Lihua U ERE 22

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 27 September 2013 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code and Corporate Governance
Report as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules and the roles and the responsibilities
delegated to the Remuneration Committee by the Board. The primary duties of the
Remuneration Committee are to make recommendations to the policy and structure of
the remuneration for Directors and senior management and to review and approve the

compensation payable to Directors and members of senior management.

The Remuneration Committee comprises two independent non-executive Directors and
one executive Director. The three members are Mr. Wang Lianzhou, the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee and an independent non-executive Director, Mr. Lam Chi
Yuen Nelson, an independent non-executive Director, and Mr. Wang Jianli, an executive
Director. During the Year, two Remuneration Committee meetings were held to, among
other matters, (1) determine the policy for the remuneration of Directors and senior
management; (2) assess the performance of executive Directors; (3) approve the terms
of executive Directors’ service contracts; and (4) make recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration packages of individual executive Directors, non-executive Directors,

independent non-executive Directors and members of senior management.

The attendance of the Directors at the Remuneration Committee meetings was as

FMEES
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follows: —

Number of
Directors Attendance
E= IR E
Mr. Wang Lianzhou (Committee Chairman) TENEE (REEGERE) 272
Mr. Wang Jianli FRMEE 22
Mr. Lam Chi Yuen Nelson MEREE 2/2
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The primary goal of the Group's remuneration policy for executive Directors is to enable
the Company to retain and motivate executive Directors by linking their compensation
with their individual performance. The remuneration package includes basic salary,
performance and/or discretional bonus, participation in the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
and other benefits. Remuneration of the non-executive Director includes mainly the
Director’s fee, which is a matter for the Board to decide by reference to the duties and
responsibilities of the non-executive Director. Remuneration of the independent non-
executive Directors includes the Director's fee which is determined by the Board based
on the duties and responsibilities of independent non-executive Directors and their

participation in the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 27 September 2013 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the requirements of the CG Code and
Corporate Governance Report as set out in Appendix [4 to the Listing Rules and the
roles and the responsibilities delegated to the Nomination Committee by the Board.
The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review the structure, size and
composition of the Board and make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
and removal of Directors. In the nomination procedures, the Nomination Committee
makes reference to criteria including candidates’ reputation, integrity, accomplishment,

experience and professional and educational background.

The Nomination Committee comprises two independent non-executive Directors and
one executive Director. The three members are Mr. Zhao Lihua, the chairman of the
Nomination Committee and an independent non-executive Director, Mr. Wang Lianzhou,
an independent non-executive Director, and Mr. Wang Jianli, an executive Director.
During the Year, two Nomination Committee meetings were held to, among other
matters, (1) review the structure, size and composition of the Board and to review the
diversity policy of the Board; (2) assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors; (3) review, consider and approve the nomination policy, and (4) make

recommendations to the Board on the re-appointment of Directors.
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The attendance of the directors at the Nomination Committee meetings was as follows: —

AN A
EREBRSE

ESHFRAZESERNBENNT :

Number of
Directors Attendance
= HERE
Mr. Zhao Lihua (Committee Chairman) HUESE (FEGTR) 212
Mr. Wang Jianli FhEMTE 212
Mr. Wang Lianzhou FEMEE 212
STRATEGIC REVIEW COMMITTEE KRELTZEEE
The Company established a strategic review committee (the “Strategic Review ARAIRWIBFIRARURREEZES (K
Committee”) in September 2013, as an additional corporate governance measure to W§§§§E 1) EREIMERERE AT

evaluate any potential investment opportunities in Harbin presented to the Group. The
Committee consists of one non-executive Director and three independent non-executive

Directors.

The Strategic Review Committee is aware of the restrictions under the non-competition
undertaking (“Harbin NCU") entered into by Mr. Wong Choihing and Mr. Wang Dewen
in favour of Harbin China South City Company Limited in 2012. The duties of the
Strategic Review Committee include reviewing and assessing any investment opportunities
in Harbin that are presented to the Company, at least once every six months, and
identifying the steps to be taken in respect of such opportunities. Neither Mr. Wong
Choihing nor Mr. Wang Dewen will participate in any review, assessment or the decision-

making process by the Strategic Review Committee.

The Strategic Review Committee met on 30 March 2016 and 29 August 2016, and

concluded that there was no potential investment opportunities in Harbin for the Group.

EASENERENBEERERSE 28 EH
—EFRTEER=RBUFNTESENL

KEEEZEeMBIBELARIR AL
RO12FRITNARBEZAUER AR BT
SANAHEFAGE((REETHEEE])OR
o REESZEGNRER %%éﬁﬂﬁk
EFARTAERRAENEAREKSE -

PERAEAET X TREEEE ﬂJh

e TRREERTIRXEER T2 ERRE
EZBQRTNENEL  FHEIRR -

REESZEEN 2016538308 K2016F8
AEHEE  RRASERKEETET
MEERE#S -

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 & m



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
REARE

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY
The Board has adopted a board diversity policy with effect from 24 March 2014 and

discussed all measurable objectives set for implementing the policy. The Company
recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board with a view to enhancing
its effectiveness and achieving a high standard of corporate governance. It endeavours
to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the requirements of the Company's business. Selection of candidates will
be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, experience (professional or otherwise), talents, skills,
knowledge, length of service and other qualities of Directors. The ultimate decision of all
Board appointments should be based on meritocracy and the likely contributions that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board. The Nomination Committee has reviewed

such board diversity policy in the Year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing corporate governance duties including:

(@) to develop and review the Company's policies and practices on corporate

governance and make recommendations to the Board;

(b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional development of

Directors and senior management;

() to review and monitor the Company's policies and practices in relation to its

compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d)  to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual (if

any) applicable to employees and Directors;

(e) to develop, review and monitor the implementation of the shareholders’
communication policy to ensure its effectiveness, and to make recommendation
to the Board where appropriate to enhance shareholders’ relationship with the

Company; and

() to review the Company's compliance with Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules (the
CG Code).
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the financial statements for
FY2016 which give a true and fair view of the affairs of the Company and the Group and
of the Group's results and cash flows. The Directors also acknowledge their responsibilities

to ensure that the financial statements of the Group are published in a timely manner.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation and information as are
necessary to enable the Board to carry out an informed assessment of the Company's
consolidated financial statements, which are put to the Board for approval. The Company
provides all members of the Board with updates on Company's performance, positions

and prospects.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Group's ability to continue as a going

concemn.

The statement by the auditors of the Company regarding their reporting responsibilities
on the consolidated financial statements of the Company is set out in the Independent

Auditor's Report on pages |18 to 127 of this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group and for reviewing their effectiveness. The risk management and internal control
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss. A defined management structure with specified limits of
authority and responsibilities is developed for safeguarding assets against unauthorized use
or disposition, the maintenance of proper accounting records for the provision of reliable
financial information for intemal use or for publications and the compliance of applicable

laws, rules and regulations.

An internal audit department has been established to perform regular financial and
operational reviews and recommend necessary actions to the relevant management. The
works carried out by the intemal audit department ensure risk management and internal

control measures are in place and function properly as intended.
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The results of the internal audit and reviews are reported to the executive Directors and
the Audit Committee, who carried out annual review on the interal control and risk
management systems for the Year, and they were satisfied with the effectiveness and the

adequacy of such systems of the Group during the Year.

An information disclosure policy is in place to ensure potential inside information being
captured and confidentiality of such information being maintained until consistent and
timely disclosure is made in accordance with the Listing Rules. The policy regulates the

handling and dissemination of inside information, which includes:

o Designated reporting channels from different operations informing any potential

inside information to designated departments;

o Designated persons and departments determining further disclosure as required;

and

o Designated persons being authorised to act as spokespersons and respond to

external enquiries.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION BIZHAMES

The Group's independent auditors are KPMG, For FY2016, the remuneration paid and ~ ASBR B ZHMAESH ST EHA -
payable by the Group to the independent auditors in respect of audit and non-audit RI6HBEE  AEERBIZEMRES

services provided by them were as follows: PRt ERZ IGEERRB DN LEMBME 0
T
RMB’000
AR®T R
Audit and review services(" Bz RERREO 3,750
Other consulting services H A AR 300
Total st 4,050
Note: P sE -

(1) Including fees for statutory audit of annual financial statements and review of interim financial () BEEEVWERERNEZTCENENTBHG
report. BRENBHRBE -

COMPANY SECRETARY DRAWE

Ms. Fong Yuk Yu Tracy of Hongkong Managers and Secretaries Limited, an external SNBREGIRHERACEWERRATNAE
service provider, has been engaged by the Company as the company secretary. The R ETHETAARAR BN A BWE - AAEH
primary corporate contact persons of the Company are Mr. Wang Jianli, the Chairman TECEBBRARTIRILTE(EERINE
and executive Director, and Ms. Fong Yuk Yu Tracy, company secretary of the Company. E)RAEMERLE(RRRAARWE) -

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, Ms. Fong Yuk Yu Tracy has RAFEARBEERERHERE  AERX
undertaken not less than |5 hours of relevant professional training in compliance with TEER FMAERNE 29T T RDRI5N
Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, E3:0pE ] 32
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONSHIP

The Company believes that effective communication with Shareholders and other
investment community is essential. During the Year, the executive Directors, the chief
financial officer and the head of investor relations of the Group held regular briefings,
press conferences and analysts meetings of annual results, attended investor forums and
participated in roadshows and conducted meetings with institutional investors and financial
analysts in China, Hong Kong and overseas countries to keep them abreast of the Group's
business and development. Investors can also communicate with the Company through

email at if@hydoo.com.cn.

Shareholders' meetings provide a useful forum for Shareholders to exchange views with
the Board. Directors and the chief financial officer of the Group will attend Shareholders’
meetings to answer the questions raised by Shareholders. Published documents together
with the latest corporate information and news are available on the Company's website at

www.hydoo.com.cn.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening of extraordinary general meeting

Besides the request of the Board, the extraordinary general meeting shall also be

convened through the following measures:

(a)  on the written requisition of any two or more Shareholders who hold not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which carries the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company as at the date of deposit of the requisition of
the Company deposited at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or; in
the event the Company ceases to have such principal office, the registered office,

specifying the objects of the meeting and signed by such Shareholders; or
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(b)  on the written requisition of any one Shareholder of the Company which is a
recognized clearing house (or its nominee(s)) who holds not less than one-tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company which carries the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company as at the date of deposit deposited at the principal office
of the Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have such
a principal office, the registered office, specifying the objects of the meeting and
signed by the Shareholder.

Putting forward proposals

Shareholders may put forward proposals for consideration at a general meeting in
accordance with the applicable laws and the Articles. If a Shareholder, who is entitled to
attend and vote at the relevant general meeting, wishes to nominate a person (not being
the nominating shareholder) to stand for election as a Director, he or she should give to
the secretary of the Company notice in writing of the intention to propose a person for
election as a Director and notice in writing by that person stating his or her willingness to
be so elected, commencing no earlier than the day after the dispatch of the notice of the
relevant general meeting and ending no later than seven days prior to the date of such

general meeting.

As regards proposing a person for election as a Director, the procedures are available on

the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders who intend to put forward their enquiries about the Company to the Board
could send their enquiries to the headquarters of the Company in Shenzhen at Level 42,
Block E, China Resources Land Building, No.8 First Dachong Road, Nanshan District,
Shenzhen, the PRC (email address: ir@hydoo.com.cn).

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During FY201 6, there was no change in the constitutional documents of the Company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERGREEERBE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Wang Jianli (EfZ7), aged 57, has been the Chairman of the Group and executive

Director since 2014, and is primarily responsible for formulating the overall development
and strategic plans of our Group. Mr. Wang has over 20 years' experience in the
development and operation of large scale trade centers. As disclosed in the Company's
prospectus dated 18 October 2013 (the “Prospectus”), since 1995, Mr. Wang Jianli,
together with his siblings and their families (the “Wang Family Group™), has engaged in the
development and operation of trade center projects. As one of the key family members,
Mr. Wang Jianli was directly involved in the development and operation of a number of
trade center projects. Except for the foregoing, Mr. Wang did not have any management
role within the Group prior to the appointment of the positions. Mr. Wang has been a
member of the | Ith Jiangxi Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference (FEIARBUAHE ®F/LAE S T —JEZ 8 ®) (the “Jiangxi CCPPCC")
and a member of the | Ith Jiangxi Federation of Industry & Commerce (T A& H+—
[ETHE¥EAE) ("Jiangki FIC") since January 2013, an executive member of the 3rd
Jlan Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference (F B A R
AHEEETEMEZEELZEE) (J'an CCPPCC") since September 201 and the
chairman of the Federation of Industry & Commerce of Jian City (%M LB ¥EE®)
since April 2008. Mr. Wang was also a member of each of the 9th and the [0th Jiangxi
CCPPCC and a member of each of the 9th and the [0th Jiangxi FIC from December
2002 to January 2013, and a member of the 2nd Ji'an CCPPCC from December 2006
to September 201 I. Mr. Wang has received numerous awards, including the outstanding
member of the Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference of
Jian City for the year 2013 (2013 FEELRTEFMKIHZEE) in December 2013;
an honorary citizen of Jian City (F X M&EME) in March 2005; and the outstanding
contributor to the building of socialism with Chinese characteristics in Jiangxi Province (/T
AEEATEFEMETREEERERSE) in December 2004. Mr. Wang is the
uncle of Mr. Wang Dewen, an executive Director and the chief executive officer of the
Company, and Mr. Huang Dehong, an executive Director of the Company, and Mr. Wang
Dekai, the chief operating officer of the Company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Wang Dewen (E/2X), aged 38, has been an executive Director since 2015, and
has been the chief executive officer of our Group since 2014. Mr. Wang Dewen is
primarily responsible for the overall business operations and management of our Group.
Mr. Wang Dewen has over eight years of experience in the development and operation
of large scale trade centers. From October 2009 to December 2012, Mr. Wang Dewen
served as the president of China South City Xi'an Company Limited (FAZZ =B R
A7), a subsidiary of China South City Holdings Limited, a company listed on the main
board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1668). In this role, he was primarily responsible
for project management and operation. From January 2008 to October 2009, he served
as the chairman and general manager of Jingdezhen Howard Commercial and Trade
Center Development Company Limited (RIEHESEE 5 EHHE AR 2 ]) and was
primarily responsible for project management and operation. He also served as the general
manager of Shenzhen Howard Investment Co., Ltd. (YT SEIREBR A F]) from
July 2006 to October 2009 and was primarily responsible for the company's management
and operation. Prior to that, he served as the project manager of the investment banking
department of China Great Wall Securities Company Limited (R3:EHERET A

a]) from August 2004 to May 2005 and the analyst of research department of Guosen
Securities Co,, Ltd. (Bl{E:8 70 BR A R]) from September 2003 and August 2004.
Mr. Wang Dewen is the nephew of Mr. Wang Jianli, an executive Director and Chairman
of the Group, and a cousin of Mr. Huang Dehong, an executive Director of the Company,

and Mr. Wang Dekai, the chief operating officer of the Group.

Mr. Huang Dehong (F127%), aged 38, has been an executive Director since 2013,
and is primarily responsible for the day to day management of the business of our
Group. Mr. Huang has ten years of experience in the trade center development and
operations industry. He has been the director of Ningxiang Hydoo Guangcai Trade
Center Development Company Limited since July 2009, the general manager of Ningxiang
Hydoo Guangcai Trade Center Development Company Limited since December 2010
and the director and general manager of Wuzhou Hydoo Commercial and Trade
Center Development Company Limited since April 2012. He was also the deputy
general manager of Ningxiang Hydoo Guangcai Trade Center Development Company
Limited from July 2009 to December 2010. From January 2006 to June 2009, he served
as the executive deputy general manager of Shuozhou Howard Commercial and Trade
Center Development Company Limited (M ZEE 5 E5HEER A A), and
was responsible for assisting the general manager with the company's operations and
management. Mr. Huang graduated from Sun Yat-sen University with a diploma in law
in June 1998. Mr. Huang is the nephew of Mr. Wang Jianli, an executive Director and
Chairman of the Group, and a cousin of Mr. Wang Dewen, an executive Director and
chief executive officer of the Company and Mr. Wang Dekai, the chief operating officer of

the Group.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yuan Bing (%), aged 48, has been a non-executive Director since 201 I, and
is primarily responsible for providing strategic advice and guidance on the business
and operations of our Group. Mr. Yuan has more than |4 years of experience in the
investment banking industry and has extensive knowledge in corporate financing, listings
and mergers and acquisitions transactions. Mr. Yuan joined Hony Capital in April 2009 and
has served as managing director of the investment department of its Hong Kong office
since January 2010. Mr. Yuan has been a non-executive director of Haichang Holdings Ltd.
(BEERRABRRAR]) since August 2012, whose shares are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2255). Prior to joining Hony Capital, Mr. Yuan served as
managing director of the direct investment department of Morgan Stanley Asia Limited
from October 2006 to 2009. Before that, Mr. Yuan served as managing director of the
PRC enterprises corporate financing department of Morgan Stanley Asia Limited from
April 2004 to June 2006. Mr. Yuan also served as the vice president of Credit Suisse First
Boston (Hong Kong) Limited from September 2001 to March 2004. Mr. Yuan received a
bachelor of arts degree in English from Nanjing University in July 1990. He also obtained
a master's degree in international relations in June 1993 and a juris doctorate’s degree in

June 1998 from Yale University.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

VRN

Mr. Zhao Lihua (#373), aged 74, has been an independent non-executive Director
since 2014. Mr. Zhao is currently a professor and a tutor of doctorate candidates of
Hunan University (1B KX2). He graduated from Hunan University in 1965 with a
bachelor's degree majoring in physics. He was a visiting scholar of the University of
Wisconsin-Madison in the United States from August 1979 to August 1981. He was a
visiting professor of the University of Hanover in Germany in 1989 and the vice president
of Hunan University from March 1992 to March 2000. He served as the chairman of the
board of Hebei Huda Technology & Education Development Co,, Ltd. (] b8 AEH%
HEERRMHBRAF) from March 2000 to October 2002 and the chief supervisor
of Sinosafe General Insurance Co. Ltd. CEL BT ERBARID B R A F]) from July 2003
to June 201 1. Mr. Zhao has been an independent non-executive director of China Glass
Holdings Limited ({fBIKIBIERR AR A A]) since June 2011, whose shares are listed
on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 3300). He was
formerly an independent non-executive director of China Fiberglass Co., Ltd. (1 B34
BRinBBR A A]) from July 2003 to April 2011, whose shares are listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange (stock code: 600176).

Mr. Wang Lianzhou (F#&/ll), aged 77, has been an independent non-executive
Director since 2013. Currently, he serves as an independent director of Great Wall Fund
Management Co. Ltd,, and the director of the editorial committee of Securities Investment
Fund Yearbook. He also acted as an independent director of China Asset Management
Co., Ltd and the independent supervisor of Baoying Fund Management Co. Ltd.,, and
the president of the Trust and Fund Institution of the People’s University of China. He
previously worked at finance and economy committee of National People's Congress
("NPC Finance and Economy Committee") and was responsible for coordinating the
work between the NPC Finance and Economy Committee and the relevant departments
of the PRC central government and to launch the legislation on economic matters. He
successively served as the vice chief and the chief of the finance group of the NPC Finance
and Economy Committee office, the deputy director of the office and economic law
office, bureau-level inspector of research institute. He also served as the group leader in
drafting the Securities Law, Trust Law, and Investment Fund Law of China, consistently

dedicating to the construction of legal system for capital market.
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Mr. Lam Chi Yuen Nelson (FR%3&), aged 48, has been an independent non-executive
Director since 2013. He has extensive experience in professional accountancy in Hong
Kong. Currently, he is the chairman of Nelson CPA Limited. He has been appointed as a
non-official non-executive director of the Urban Renewal Authority Board of Hong Kong
SAR since May 2013. He has been the independent non-executive director of China
Resources Cement Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 1313), since August 2008. He has also been appointed as a member of the Financial
Reporting Review Panel since July 2013 and a member of the Air Transport Licensing
Authority since August 2013. Mr. Lam is a practicing fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and a member of several professional bodies in Australia, the USA
and the United Kingdom, including CPA Australia, the American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Institute of Chartered Accountants of England and Wales.
He is also a CFA charter holder and a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Directors. Mr. Lam was the president of the Society of Chinese Accountants and Auditors
from December 2011 to December 2013 and is currently the chairman of Accounting
Development Foundation Limited. Mr. Lam received a bachelor of business administration
degree in accounting from the Hong Kong Baptist University (formerly known as Hong
Kong Baptist College) in January 1992, a master of business administration degree from
the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology in November 1998 and a master of

science degree in finance from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in November 2001.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Wang Dewen (FE/Z30), aged 38, has been an executive Director since 2015, and
has been the chief executive officer of our Group since 2014. For details of Mr. Wang
Dewen's biographical details, please refer to the disclosure as set out in the section
headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management - Executive Directors”

in this annual report.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Wang Dekai (E1£f), aged 40, has been the chief operating officer of our Group
since 2014, and is primarily responsible for the daily operation and management of the
Group. Mr. Wang has approximately |6 years of experience in the development and
operation of large scale trade and logistics centers. From February 2000 to May 2006,
he served as the chairman and the general manager of Henan Xinyang Commercial and
Trade Center Development Company Limited (AU R{E/5E 2 EBSHREER A ),
and was primarily responsible for the company’'s management and operation. From June
2006 to October 2009, he served as the chairman and the deputy general manager of
Liaoning Chaoyang Howard Commercial and Trade Center Development Company
Limited (REHEREESHRESHEEMAE]), and was primarily responsible for
project management and operation. From November 2009 to July 2012, he also served
as the chairman and general manager of Jining Howard Lunan Modern Trade Center
Development Company Limited (BEZSEERRRYAHAZEBRAR]), and was
responsible for project management and operation. From August 2012 to July 2014,
he served as the general manager of Mianyang Western Trade Center Development
Company Limited (#3F5 P8 #03R K¥iRHF & AR 2 7)), and was responsible for
project management and operation. Mr. Wang Dekai is the nephew of Mr. Wang Jianli,
the Chairman and an executive Director of the Group, a cousin of Mr. Wang Dewen,
an executive Director and the chief executive officer of the Company, and Mr. Huang

Dehong, an executive Director of the Company.

Mr. Jia Xinjiang (E{5)1), aged 62, has been the vice president of our Group since
2014, and is primarily responsible for the overall financial operations of our Group. He
has also been appointed as the president of Shenzhen Qianhai Hydoo Finance Holding
Company Limited since June 2015, and is primarily responsible for the overall business
operations and management of the finance affairs. Mr. Jia is a senior economist. He
obtained bachelor degrees in science of Marxist Basic Theory from Jiangxi University (1
FaKE) and in finance from the Economics Department of Zhengzhou University (25
JNRE), and a master degree in finance from Hunan College of Finance and Economics
ORI EPT). Mr. Jia has 36 years of experience in management and operations
of banking business, including 21 years of experience in the Central Bank and 15 vyears
of experience in commercial banks. He has a deep understanding of China's financial

markets, and is familiar with China’s monetary credit policy and financial regulations, as
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well as the methods of managing commercial bank business, risk-management and internal
control. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Jia served as the director of corporate banking
department of Ping An Bank Company Limited (a joint-stock commercial bank whose
shares are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 000001), hereinafter
referred to as “Ping An Bank”) from September 2012 to September 2013, and was
responsible for the corporate banking business of its Chengdu branch, Chongqing branch,
Kunming branch, Wuhan branch and Haikou branch. From May 2007 to September
2012, Mr. Jia served as both the director of corporate banking department of Ping An
Bank and the general manager of Ping An Bank's management department in Shenzhen,
and was responsible for the overall operations of business department in Ping An Bank's
business in the southern part of China. From May 2005 to May 2007, Mr. Jia served as the
deputy president of the Shenzhen branch of China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited (a
joint-stock commercial bank whose shares are listed on both the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 0998) and Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 601998)), and was responsible
for corporate banking, credit operations and foreign exchange business. From April 2004
to May 2005, Mr. Jia served as the deputy president of the Guangzhou branch of China
Everbright Bank Co., Ltd. (a joint commercial bank whose shares are listed on both the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 6818) and Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 601818),
hereinafter referred to as “CCB"), and was responsible for corporate banking, asset
management and operation management. From September 1998 and April 2004, Mr.
Jia served as the deputy president of the Shenzhen branch of CCB, and was responsible
for credit management, risk review, corporate banking, retail business and integrated
management. From February 1993 to September 1998, Mr. Jia held several positions
in the Jiangxi branch of People’s Bank of China, including the assistant to president and
deputy president, and was responsible for foreign exchange management, financing
planning management and issuance of currency management. From October 1977 to
February 1993, Mr. Jia held several positions in the Shangrao district branch of People's
Bank of China, including deputy president and president, and was responsible for financing

planning, credit management, integrated management and the overall management.
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Mr. Chan Sze Hon (F&/2%9), aged 43, has been the chief financial officer of our Group
since 2014, and is primarily responsible for the overall financial affairs of our Group.
Mr. Chan is a certified public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
Mr. Chan holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Accountancy from City University of Hong
Kong and a Master Degree in Corporate Finance from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. He has about 20 years of experience in accounting and financial management
and had worked for Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu in Hong Kong for over 8 years. Prior
to joining the Company, Mr. Chan had held various positions with companies listed on
the Stock Exchange. From October 2012 to June 2014, Mr. Chan was the chief financial
officer and company secretary of Wuzhou International Holdings Limited (stock code:
1369). From 2009 to 2012, Mr. Chan has been an executive director, company secretary
and chief financial officer of Fantasia Holdings Group Co., Limited (stock code: 1777).
Mr. Chan was the independent non-executive director of each of BLU SPA Holdings
Limited, currently known as SkyNet Group Limited (stock code: 8176) and China Mining
Resources Group Limited (stock code: 340) from 2007 to 2012 and 2007 to 2011,
respectively. From 2007 to 2012, Mr. Chan also served as an independent non-executive
director of ERA Information & Entertainment Limited, currently known as ERA Mining
Machinery Limited, a company whose shares were listed on the Stock Exchange and
delisted in 2012. Mr. Chan was an executive director, chief financial officer and company
secretary of Greater China Holdings Limited, currently known as Greater China Financial
Holdings Limited (stock code: 431) from 2005 to 2008, and later re-designated as a non-
executive director from 2008 to 2015. Prior to that, Mr. Chan worked in Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu from 1995 to 2004, where he held various positions such as staff accountant,

senior accountant and manager.
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Mr. Huang Wenbin (30/&), aged 53, has been the vice president of the Group since
2011, and is primarily responsible for sales and marketing management of the Group. Mr.
Huang has 2| years of experience in sales and marketing. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Huang was the vice general manager of Hong Kong Howard Group Company Limited
from February 2005 to November 2011, and was principally in charge of the sales and
marketing of trade center projects. Mr. Huang was also the deputy general manager
of Jining Hydoo Logistics Center Development Company Limited from May 2010 to
November 201 |, and was responsible for sales and marketing of the Jining Trade Center.
Concurrently, Mr. Huang served as deputy general manager of China South City Xi'an
Company Limited (FAZZE MM ABRAF]) in charge of marketing from January 2010
to October 2011, and was responsible for sales and marketing management. Mr. Huang
served as the deputy general manager of Jingdezhen Howard Trade Center Development
Company Limited (REHESEE HESMEABRRF]) from January 2001 to June
2005. He also acted as the deputy general manager/general manager of Jiangxi Howard
Group Bioengineering Industrial Co., Ltd. (TFASIEEE AW TIREEBR A F]) from
November 1998 to December 2000 and the deputy general manager of Ganzhou Lifa
Metal Products Company Limited (38173 & B mAR 2 Fl) from March 1994 to
November 1998.

Mr. Zhao Yande (i E12), aged 40, has been a vice president of the Group since 2011,
and a general manager of the Ganzhou project of our Group since December 2012,
From November 2011 to November 2012, Mr. Zhao served as the vice president of
construction management of the Company and was primarily responsible for the overall
construction management of the Group. Mr. Zhao has more than |5 years of experience
in construction management. Prior to joining the Group, he was also the deputy general
manager of Jining Hydoo Logistics Center Development Company Limited from February
2010 to November 201 | and was responsible for construction management of the
Jining Trade Center. Concurrently, Mr. Zhao acted as the deputy general manager of
construction in China South City Xi'an Company Limited (F %2R A R A ) from
October 2009 to October 201 I, and was responsible for managing the construction of
the entire project. From November 2008 to October 2009, Mr. Zhao acted as the deputy
general manager of construction in Jingdezhen Howard Trade Center Development
Company Limited (RIZHFEE ZESFEBR A F]), and was responsible for

managing the construction of the entire project. From May 2006 to November 2008, Mr.
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Zhao worked for Shenzhen China Overseas Construction Limited (FYIIF /G2 T2
B AT, and was responsible for managing the construction of the Futian Shangri-La
Hotel, Kerry Plaza and Zhuhai Silver Bay projects. From July 2000 to May 2006, Mr. Zhao
worked for China State Construction International Holdings Ltd., and was responsible
for managing the reconstruction of Kowloon Hospital, the 101 Area project and other
projects. Mr. Zhao received a bachelor's degree in construction management from
Chongging University in July 2000, and a master of science degree in project management

from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in December 2007.

Mr. Chen Zhongmin (B £[X), aged 62, has been the vice president of the Group
since 2011, and is primarily responsible for the overall project plan and architectural
design management of the Group. Mr. Chen has more than ten years of experience in
city planning, architectural design, commercial real estate development and operations
management. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Chen acted as the chief planner of Hong
Kong Howard Group Company Limited from April 2007 to November 2011, and
was responsible for site selection, design and planning of all the projects of the group.
Concurrently, Mr. Chen acted as the executive deputy general manager of Jining Hydoo
Logistics Center Development Company Limited from February 2010 to November 201 |
and was responsible for the daily management of the company and the design of Jining
Trade Centre. From April 2006 to April 2007, he was the general manager of Shenzhen
Minghao Investment Company Limited (Y| #55#%& A R]), and was responsible for
the property development and operations of the project companies, especially Muyang
project. From August 2002 to February 2006, he successively served as the deputy general
manager of Quanying Weiye (Beijing) Investment Management Company Limited (25
BEALR)REEEER AT, the general manager of Henan Luohe Quanying Weiye
Estate Company Limited (7820 2 & EFREXHFR AT and the deputy general
manager, executive deputy general manager and general manager of Henan Pingdingshan
Trade Center Development Company Limited (I FIBILE 2 ESFREBRAA),
and was responsible for project development. Mr. Chen was the director and architect of
the design department of Jiangxi Ganzhou Architecture Design Institute, the director of
Ganzhou City Planning and Survey Design Institute, the director of Ganzhou City Planning
Bureau, a member of the Management Committee of China Association of City Planning
and vice president of the Jiangxi Association of City Planning. Mr. Chen was granted the
title of senior engineer in city planning by the Professional Title Reform Leading Group
(BB R B/ ME) of Jiangxi province in September 1997. Mr. Chen graduated from
Jiangxi Normal University (/T FBAM 3 A 22) with a diploma in arts in February 1977.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERGREEERBE

Mr. Zhou Zhiyuan (L), aged 44, has been the vice president of the Group since
2012, and is primarily responsible for the construction and cost management of the
Group. Mr. Zhou has nine years of experience in construction management. From
December 2010 to December 2012, he served as the general manager of the planning
and construction management department of Kaisa Group Holdings Ltd. (EJK ¥ 5B
IR BR A F]), responsible for project development, planning and operation and the
construction management of the group. During the same period, he concurrently served as
the general manager of Taijian Construction Engineering Co, Ltd. (REEETEBRA
A]) under the group. He also served as the deputy general manager of Liyu Construction
Design Company (BBRIFEEEERATA A)) under the group, responsible for decoration,
landscape design and management from June 2012 to December 2012. From March 2010
to November 2010, he served as the deputy general manager of Changsha Kaifu Wanda
Plaza Investment Company Limited (R Fi1& & ZEE %R E AR A F), in charge of the
construction work. From July 2007 to February 2010, he successively served as the chief
of general housing management center and project general manager of Dongguan Vanke
Real Estate Co, Ltd (R=&RFEHEBMAR]), and was responsible for its project
development and construction management. From July 2004 to July 2007, he served as
the construction manager of Guangdong Century City Group Company Limited (5 ttt
L BB AT, in charge of its project development and construction management.

Mr. Zhou received a bachelor of science degree in water conservancy and hydropower

engineering construction from Tsinghua University in July 1995.

Mr. Ma Yi (F5#&), aged 47, has been the vice president of our Group since 2014, and s
primarily responsible for the strategic planning and project operations of our Group. Prior
to joining our Group, Mr. Ma also acted as the assistant to president and director of the
commerce department of Diamond Park Creative Design (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd (B &R &l
ERETORINBR 2 A]). From July 2007 to August 2009, Mr. Ma acted as the marketing
director of China South International Industrial Materials City (Shenzhen) Co. Ltd (2=l
B T E R ORI B R D), a wholly-owned subsidiary of China South City Holdings
Limited. Mr. Ma also worked in Guangzhou Intemational Commaodity Exhibition & Trade
Center Company Limited (/N BIF 2 mE BH 5 B2 E]) and Lionda Holdings
(Group) Co, Ltd (a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange). Mr. Ma received a
bachelor of science degree from Guangxi University of Technology (78 T8t in July
1991.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EERGREEERBE

Mr. Wang Xiangui (F#5), aged 59, has been the director of the project development FTEEAE 9% BENOFRAREELAE
department of the Group since 2010, and is primarily responsible for project development ~ EIBE HEHBE TZHEASEMNIEE R
of the Group. Mr. Wang has more than 20 years of experience in project development of ForThABER_TEHEYRPOEERA
trade centers. From January 2010 to November 2010, Mr. Wang served as the manager BB BI0FIAZENI0F11A E4£
of project development department of Hong Kong Hydoo Group Investment Company ~ £ EEEHEREEEKREERAREAHE
Limited and was responsible for the project development of the company. From August HEE BEZARIMIEBME - 8199548
1995 to November 2010, he was the manager of project development department RAEWIFINA MEEEIEEREERE
of Hong Kong Howard Group Company Limited, and was responsible for the project BAREERBEILE  85HEEHE - BRY
development. He was awarded the title of the outstanding entrepreneur with social WI0F N ARSI RAHEREARES D
responsibility of Weifang city in December 2010. ERMH o
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B 2B RS

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of Hydoo International Holding
Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hydoo Intemational Holding
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 128 to
267, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 3|1 December
2016, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and notes to the

consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 3| December 2016 and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs") issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been properly prepared

in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs")
issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section
of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with any HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“‘the Code”) together with any ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the Cayman
Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZBET RS

Transfer of inventories to investment properties and valuation of investment properties

BRTEIRENERRENENMGE

Refer to note |2 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 146.

BRKE IS REN T 12RE |46 BAI@STHE °

The key audit matter

HREELER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BAREEENTEZRRELEE

As at 31 December 2016, the Group held a portfolio of investment
properties located in Jiangxi, Guangxi, Shandong and Hunan provinces
in Mainland China with an aggregate fair value of RMBI,521 million
which accounted for 10% of the Group's total assets at that date. The
investment properties principally comprise commercial trade logistics

centres.

R216F12A318 - EEEREURTERMIA - EA
WREHEENERENFES  BERARE 15218T

h EXEEELENI0% REVEIZERAEZEIMRT
Lo

During the year ended 3| December 2016, the Group transferred
inventories, which principally comprised commercial trade logistics
centres and shops, with an aggregate carrying value of RMB415 million to
investment properties. Management is required to exercise judgement in
determining if the relevant criteria as set out in the prevailing accounting
standards have been met in order to transfer inventories to investment

properties. Such judgements are principally qualitative in nature.
BEWI6F12A3IALFE - BEEENFRBAIIRENSR
MIBBRAXEIWRDORER  HAREE/ARE 415
fr- EEEFEHFEERIRENERENAR TG ER
PRENRBREEL A - ELHEERRTMED

The net changes in fair value of investment properties recorded in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss represented 46% of the Group's
profit before taxation for the year ended 3| December 2016, including
an amount of RMB3 10 million which arose from the fair value gain upon
the transfer of inventories to investment properties.
REHBRRRTMBEBRENEAABFEPRER SEEH
£20165F 12431 BIEFEZBRBATGERN246% - BRRARE
3I0f8T  NEEERAIRENEEELN AL EKE

Our audit procedures assess the transfer of inventories to investment
properties and the valuation of investment properties included the

following;
A EFEREARENE LA ENBERRNEZE
FrE%E

®  challenging management's criteria for determining the change
in use of the properties transferred from inventories to
investment properties by inspecting the lease agreements for
the properties, property management contracts and other
relevant documentation and inspecting management's business
plans for these properties;

o BERBVENHERZ MEEELRMEMERXT
UEmBERBHELNEORG S KBEEERT
NEEERARENERE2ME

®  conducting site visits to investment properties transferred from
inventories, on a sample basis, to observe the leasing activities
of the respective properties and assess the change in use of

the properties as asserted by management;

o HGFRBRIREMENRBETERAR  URES
ABRRENENEELRY UL EEERRONEA
BEE

®  obtaining and inspecting the valuation reports prepared by the
external property valuers engaged by management and on
which the directors’ assessment of the fair values of investment

properties was based;
s BRUREHEEEBZENIININEGEMARHEEER
EXHRENEAABELFENEENGERS
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B 2B RS

The key audit matter

HRERER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

ERRECRNTEERRELEE

The fair values of the investment properties as at 3| December 2016
were assessed by the directors based on independent valuations
prepared by a firm of qualified external property valuers. The
determination of these fair values involves significant judgement

and estimation, particularly in relation to selecting the appropriate
valuation methodology, capitalisation rates, market rents and average
market price of the comparable properties.

REMERWI6F 23 BOARENREZER—REER
SRR MEEMBROBLAEM G - UZFAAENRE Y
REARHE LA - BRHREREENGEEDE  EXMELE
ELBENENTISEE LT EOTERR -

We identified the transfer of inventories to investment properties and
the valuation of investment properties as a key audit matter because
of the exercise of management judgement in assessing if the criteria
for the transfer of inventories to investment properties were met and
because of the inherent risks involved in estimating the valuations of
investment properties, particularly in light of the current economic
circumstances and various property market cooling measures
introduced by local governments in various cities across Mainland
China.

FPEA M EERIRENERREMENGEERBRER
R AAEMERANAHFEERIIREMENTER - A
REREHRENENBESROERRR - FhRERE RN
OER BN B B B S B E T 5
RN EEERRITRAE -

®  assessing the external property valuers' qualifications,
experience and expertise in the properties being valued and
considering their objectivity and independence;

o FHINBHRGEMEMEENENEE  LRNERA
B UEEHEFEMNBLIE

®  with the assistance of our internal property valuation specialists,
discussing with the external property valuers their valuation
methodology and the key estimates and assumptions adopted
in their valuations;

o ERMNOABDEHEZEXHE T - BIEEHEGERM
it ETEARBERBOEZAEFMRE

®  challenging the key estimates and assumptions (including
capitalisation rates, prevailing market rents and comparable
market transactions) adopted in the valuations, on a sample
basis, by comparison with available market data and/or
government produced market statistics; and

o RBERAMSRBENABTRENTIHRTBBETY
5 BERHEEFRANIRENRR(BREMELE
RmsEeNALBETERS) : R

®  comparing tenancy information, including committed rents
and occupancy rates, provided by the Group to the external
property valuers with underlying contracts and related

documentation, on a sample basis.

o  EBEMENN KEEER  ERARNESMAL

=8 BEREREGISDEGEEMOERSRMNERH
XAFEITHLL -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZBET RS

Accounting for government grants

BA#BNEEE

Refer to note 28 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page |74,

BRBAHUBHEM T8 RE 174 AN BT BFE

The key audit matter

HERELER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EARECRNNTEEERELEE

Pursuant to agreements entered into between the Group and local
governments in Mainland Ching, grants are received from the local
govemments to subsidise the infrastructure construction costs of certain
projects undertaken by the Group.

RiIE BEEERVPEAMHBFLO0RE - I BFENE
B ERBEAEETHEEMERRENEZRKK -

Govermment grants are initially recognised by the Group as a deferred
income in the consolidated statement of financial position when an
amount is received and are subsequently recognised or amortised in
profit or loss on a systematic basis when there is reasonable assurance
that the Group will comply with the specific conditions attached to the
government grants.
EREBIBESER - BEBEAKHBRRRP LR
BEERA  YAEAAERE REERET REEHNN
BRI AA R BB R IFES - BRI RS AR M N B
o

During the year ended 3| December 2016, deferred income in respect
of government grants recognised in profit or loss amounted to RMB472
million and unamortised deferred income amounted to RMB860 million
as at 31 December 201 6.

HZE2016F 12431 RILFE - BBUINRHMN A S HRNETR
ARBARKAI AR  MAR20165F 12831 B - REBEL
WARBAREOBST °

The Group is required to fulfil the requirements agreed with the local
governments when conducting the related infrastructure construction and
there is a risk that if the agreed criteria are not met, the respective local
govemments may request recourse or reclamation of the grants already
advanced.

EREEE TR RIEERE - LA R E M T BT ER A
2% Y ARAMRKEZD HEERNER - BHTBRFRAR
KEWHEME LB -

Our audit procedures to assess the accounting for government grants

included the following;

BAFHEBF R @5t R RMMERRF B4

®  inspecting the agreements signed between the Group and
the local governments and identifying the specific conditions
attached to the respective government grants;

o E BEREMHBNRRITNO®BE
8 30 AT B ) LB R

I HETE B B

®  performing physical inspection of the relevant projects and
assessing whether the conditions attached to the respective
government grants had fulfilled or not at the reporting date;

o  HHBEBETEMRE  WHERS AFASBT M

TR REEER

®  obtaining confirmations from the respective local governments
in respect of the fulfilment by the Group of the criteria set out
in the respective agreements;

o  EREMIBAEIBR SRERTRBIETHEENS
BAIERAT -

®  assessing whether the government grants had been properly
recognised in accordance with the requirements of the
prevailing accounting standards with reference to the terms
in the respective agreements, the fulfilment of conditions
as set out in these agreements and assessing management’s
interpretation of the fulfilment of the conditions; and

o BBAZREBHETOER  EEHBREROETER
AEERBYHRTHRIFNEE  NIEBARMESER
BRITSHENNBREGINEERR &
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The key audit matter

HRELSR

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EARECRNTEEBRELSEE

We identified accounting for government grants as a key audit matter
because of its significance to the consolidated financial statements
and because of the exercise of management judgement in assessing
whether the conditions attached to the government grants are met,
particularly in interpreting the fulfilment of conditions which are not
clearly stated in the respective agreements.

ARSI LB BREN S RERBRERER  RRAEYS
HABRROERM - ARBRNEFEBFEROMEEE S
BERRHRERBTEAE - HRRAERES BhET RHE
FLTE BRI B o

®  re-calculating the amount of government grants recognised
in profit or loss for the current year and comparing our
calculations with the amounts recorded by the Group.

o EMMBEATRERSTHIANBABMEE  THRMA
WEtEE SERETENSRETLR
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Provision for land appreciation tax (“LAT”) in Mainland China

RER L EES ( [LHEER] ) BE

Refer to note 7 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 166 to 169

ELHE B RFN 7 RE 166 E 169 A FTHE

The key audit matter

ARENEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EAREEENTEERRELEE

LAT in Mainland China is one of the main components of the Group's
taxation charge.
PEALNTHEERE SEEREHNIRAKETD 2

o

LAT is levied on sale of properties, at progressive rates ranging from
30% to 60% based on the appreciation of land value. At the end of
each financial reporting period, management estimates the provision

for LAT based on its understanding and interpretation of the relevant
tax rules and regulations, the estimated total sales of properties less

total deductible expenditure, which includes lease charges for land use
rights, property development costs, borrowing costs and development
expenditure. When the LAT is subsequently determined, the actual
payments may be different from the estimates.
BEREHERRNEHETER D EERRRBRRERE
30%-60% B L RES - EREMBHR  EEERRY L
BERNGHRERETRE - AELAEENHEGE - TREEH
EXORAARKERIRNORTNERE - Bt HEERHER
FRRAREER AR LKA - BHERERES - FEE
f-REBA% . BEEETMEENEZZAN  BREM
el EEERGNEEFEZR -

We identified provision for LAT in Mainland China as a key audit matter
because of its significance to the consolidated financial statements and
because the estimated provisions for LAT are based on management's
judgement and interpretation of complicated tax laws and regulations.
AR EERNHREAHMBRRNEENL - AEREAFL
RSB RERRARE R ERNEBRENERER
- ABMB L ERNHREN s ERERRERS
I8 o

Our audit procedures to assess the provision for LAT in Mainland

China included the following:
AR EAL DR ER BB RRNEZRFEHE

®  assessing the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of management's key internal controls over the
calculation of the estimated LAT provisions;

o HMEEREBRN T E ML R E B 0B R R
HRE - BHEAEZE AR

®  engaging our intemal taxation specialists to evaluate the
Group's LAT provisions as at 31 December 2016 which
involved challenging management's assumptions and
judgements based on our experience, knowledge and
understanding of the practices of the application of the relevant
tax laws by the various local tax bureaus;

o BRANHBHEBIRFE SRER2016F 12431 B0t
SR EREE - RRRERMINER  MENHE LT H
BKREMEBTZEROER  HEEENRRNHEGR
B

®  evaluating management's assumptions and judgments based
on our assessment of the value of the estimated sales of
properties and the deductible expenditure; and

o RERMEMEMETHEEBEMA MR HFE - E5
EEENRRKLAE &

®  re-calculating the provision for LAT of the Group and

comparing our calculations with the amounts recorded by the

Group.
o  ENFE ZREMIMEEREEG  THRANFE

-
B EEECENSRETLR
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Information other than the consolidated financial statements and auditor’s report
thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
all the information included in the annual report, other than the consolidated financial

statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other

information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is
to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other

information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for
assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no

realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their responsibilities for

overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

- HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED ZREBRKIZERERLDT
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility

towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the

economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and

maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of

internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose

of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

B 2B RS
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0 Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Group's ability to continue as a going concem. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events

or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concemn.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner

that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of
the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the Group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit

opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant

deficiencies in intemal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would

reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is

Wong Chun Pong,

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

30 March 2017
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
B EER

for the year ended 31 December 2016
BZE0I6F 2R3 BILEE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AAEBFIT)
2016 2015
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Pt AR®TR ARETT
Revenue 1§ 3 2,335,777 3,166,351
Cost of sales HERA (1,049,861) (1,532,435)
Gross profit E£7 1,285,916 1,633,916
Other income WA 4 21,988 78394
Selling and distribution expenses HERX (149,754) (194,541)
Administrative expenses THF X (473,240) (459,633)
Other operating expenses HiRERX 5 (78,989) (8,608)
Profit from operations before fair value gain
on investment properties RENEDABERGARERE 605,921 1,049,528
Fair value gain on investment properties REMEL A ERE 12 326,451 296,543
Profit from operation after fair value gain
on investment properties RENENABNGRZERE 932,372 346,07
Share of loss of joint ventures AERERAIER (1,492) -
Fair value change on embedded derivative AERZENRAXITER S &
component of the convertible notes A=k 27 (668) 19,319
Gain on early redemption of convertible notes RABLAERERES 2 Wi 27 14,391 -
Finance income FRBA 6(a) 8,299 9,16l
Finance costs N 6(a) (240,439) (150,549)
Profit before taxation BRBiA1F A 6 712,463 1,224,002
Income tax g 7(a) (357,315) (626,272)
Profit for the year FRFE 355,148 597,730
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
BHERER

for the year ended 31 December 2016

BZ0I6FA3IBILEE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARE3IR)
2016 2015
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Pt AR®T R ARETT
Attributable to: UT&FELR:
Equity shareholders of the Company AREERRE 350,280 556,875
Non-controlling interests IR R 4,868 40,855
Profit for the year FRFE 355,148 597,730
Earnings per share SREF
Basic (RMB cents) ER(ARED) 10 87 139
Diluted (RMB cents) #B(ARED) 10 87 139
The notes on pages |37 to 267 form part of these financial statements. Details of FIVEWTEMEMEBRZTHHRERMN
dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company attributable to the profit for the —H#D - AEREMNADREEBRES M

year are set out in note 33(b). TEEAPMEE33(b) ©
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
EOHEEREMEEHKER

for the year ended 31 December 2016
BZE0I6F 2R3 BILEE
(Expressed in Renminbi)

UAARHFIT)
2016 2015
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBTT

Profit for the year FRFE 355,148 597,730

Other comprehensive income for the year (after tax FREMZEBA(EREAR

and reclassification adjustments) ENDERARE)
ftem that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss: Ef&AJgEEFH A EEERMIER -

Exchange differences on translation of financial MBHRBIRINF DRI B REE

statements of subsidiaries outside the Mainland China  [E 3, 258 (51,230) (19,492)

Other comprehensive income for the year FREMZERA (51,230) (19,492)
Total comprehensive income for the year FR2EBALE 303,918 578238
Attributable to: UT&F R

Equity shareholders of the Company ANEREERR 299,050 537,383

Non-controlling interests IR 4,868 40,855
Total comprehensive income for the year FRE2HEWALE 303,918 578,238
The notes on pages |37 to 267 form part of these financial statements. BIITE2TAFMEM BN A S HREH

—#5 -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

B Ot BAR R R

at 31 December 2016
R2016F 12831 A
(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AAR¥FIR)

2016 2015
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Pt ARETR ARBTT
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment v E Y & [ 472,958 112,331
Investment properties REY%E 12 1,520,800 778,900
Intangible assets EEE 13 2,956 3983
Goodwill eSS 14 3,631 3,631
Interest in joint ventures RegbhEln 15 149,394 150,386
Other non-current financial assets HirIEmeemEE 16 180,131 I'11,187
Deferred tax assets ERRIBEE 17(b) 247,050 316,049
Prepayment for acquisition of property, plant
and equipment WEME - BB KR ENENFIE 8 — 368,535
Finance lease receivables MEMERY A 20 26,672 6,232
2,603,592 1,851,234
Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE 21 9,180,960 9,628,621
Prepaid tax BRHIE 17(a) 105,321 L1116l
Trade and other receivables, prepayments B 5 REMBEYRGIE - BAFIE
and deposits RES® 22 1,550,738 1,393,270
Restricted cash XRHEE 3 1,045,848 430,638
Cash and cash equivalents BekReEEY 24 965,685 1,688,923
12,848,552 13252613
Current liabilities RBAE
Trade and other payables B 5 REMENFIA 25 4,084,024 4,277,132
Bank loans and other borrowings RITERREMEE 26 1,308,053 938,646
Convertible notes BERE 27 — 844,906
Current tax liabilities AEREAE 17(a) 1,066,635 1,106,310
Deferred income EIERA 28 860,994 988,564
7,319,706 8,155,558
Net current assets RBEEFE 5,528,846 5,097,055
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBEE 8,132,438 6,948,289
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
CRLE 2T

at 31 December 2016
R2016F 12831 B
(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AAREST)

2016 2015

Note RMB’000 RMB'000

Pt AR®T R ARETT
Non-current liabilities FRBAER
Bank loans and other borrowings RITERRAMEE 26 1,477,510 464,520
Senior notes BAERE 29 1,519,351 626,894
Corporate bonds NEEH 30 9,674 =
Deferred income EERA 28 3,804 3,524
Deferred tax liabilities ELEHEAR 17(b) 14,815 14771

3,025,154 2,109,709
NET ASSETS EERE 5,107,284 4,838,580
Capital and reserves RAR 33
Share capital & 31,825 31,825
Reserves G 4,852,252 4,604,866
Total equity attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company ERREERRELERAR 4,884,077 4636691
Non-controlling interests R 223,207 201,889
TOTAL EQUITY BDAE 5,107,284 4,838,580
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30 March 2017. R2I7EIRNRESESH ERIEET -
Wang Jianli Wang Dewen
B FBX
Chairman and Executive Director Executive Director and Chief Executive officer
LERHITEE HITEERTHAZ
The notes on pages |37 to 267 form part of these financial statements. FI37EWTEFMENTERZZ M BRKD
—#5 -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

EHERE R

for the year ended 3| December 2016

HZE216F 12831 BILEE

(AARE3IR)

(Expressed in Renminbi)

0898¢8Y  68810C 6995 LWL EITI 0l boL Tl (599119 L9SET SIIeE 9eel  STgle EHRHICHTHS100% §107 4aquiaq | ¢ e 2ouejeg
- - - Gese) - - - - - we o - (1pleg YEAZESTHE el Lomes Qi o Lojdosddy
(9¢¢) — (9¢¢) 15 - — ) - - - - - LYEUFYYUNESTRY  ompesuen paseq-ars pajas Aunbj
00008 00008 _ — — — _ — — — — — ETTHYTE s Bujoauoxou fq uopalul pyde)
o) - o) — - - - - - - (SarTs) (1leg EHEERRE Jeal snoviaud ap o
13adsau Ul panoudde spupIn
BTOS Sy e v (we) - - - - — - - AR IES SO AASLRLRIALO) IO
(o) - (17073) I (o) — = = = = = = YHBE QL0 BASLRLRIALLD J20)
0ELL6S  SS0y GE%S g — = = = - - - = (N Jeak a4 0} Yoyg
BEDHSI00 §107 4o} b ur sa3uey)
oreey 4o 6UITEY 09T 0LO0F 0l 188t (99g119) LISy 08SE0E e swie B H 1 H5100 S0 Aenuef | 12 ouefeg
LY YigadY LrgdY LYigadY LagdY YigdY LigdY YigdY LigdY LhgdY LigdYy LigdY
000dWY  0009WY  0009WY  0008WY  000GWY  OOOGWN  000AWY  0009WY  008WY  000GWY  O00GWY  O0OGWY
(1p)eg WPl (elee  (bke (P Oblee  Cee
1 5 QS LiE BBy  BENE  BE CRUN- 2 EECH L £l
BEYE 8 dibied LB
;%x P OEYE
2Ry
Anba Ssu o] syoud NS BT NS SIS NS NS wnwaid  pyded 30N
10| dujjonuod poURlRY ey uondwepal  lewed  Sujoquod  pidey Noys— aueug ARG
-UON i) PISEQ-RYS  -UOU UM N
PaIs UOBsURL}
funbg - BNRSY

1L TN

Auedwo?) 37 Jo SJapjoya.eus Aunbs 0} SjgeNaLY

1 3

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 %R



Clr— A s RN ER N E YT ST ES 61 &

'SJUSLUSYEIS [BIDUBUI 59U} JO Lied W0} /97 0} /€| s98ed U0 sajou Y |

)

N

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

A L4
SHEREHR
for the year ended 31 December 2016
BZE0I6F 2R3 BILEE
(Expressed in Renminbi)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

A ==
SHRERER
for the year ended 31 December 2016
BZ0I6FA3IBILEE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARHESIR)
2016 2015
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
P & ARBT AREFT
Operating activities REED
Cash generated from/(used in) operations mEEBHE /(AR 24(b) 39,220 (1,206,419)
PRC tax paid B ERE (322,107) (504,223)
Net cash used in operating activities RETHMARELTERE (282,887) (1,710,642)
Investing activities REEH
Proceeds from disposal of property, HENE  BEREEMERE
plant and equipment 230 5586
Proceeds from disposal of other HEHMERDEREE
non-current financial assets PSR 2,000 =
Payment for purchase of property, BEMX - BE KRBT
plant and equipment (35,389) (23211)
Payment for purchase of other BEHMIERDEREENK
non-current financial assets (58,245) (3,030
Net proceeds for available-for-sale investments HERAREEREMBHEEE 547 39,382
Payment for intangible assets BERVAENR (104) (1473)
Dividends received EHRBE 131 1,189
Interest received EKFHE 8,299 9,16l
Prepayment for investment BRNERERE — (245,700)
Payment for investment in a joint venture RESERENNR (500) (150,386)
Net cash used in investing activities RETHAARSTEE (83,031) (368,482)
The notes on pages |37 to 267 form part of these financial statements. FI7ETEFHMTEBRZENBRKN
—Hp °
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

EHREERER

for the year ended 31 December 2016
BZE0I6F 2R3 BILEE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARESIR)
20165 20156
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Pt AR®T R ARETT
Financing activities RETH
Dividends paid BERRE 33(b)(ii) (51,470) (192,485)
Capital retum to non-controlling interests BAREIHRTIEERE R (3,850) —
Proceeds from new bank loans MERTERRAMEE
and other borrowings IS RIR 1,754,473 1,295516
Capital injection by non-controlling FERERHTRREER
interests to subsidiaries 20,300 80,000
Repayment of bank loans and other borrowings BERTERRHEMEE (1,372,076) (454,450)
Interest and other borrowing costs paid ENFEREMEEKR (406,556) (166,384)
Payment of pledged deposits for loans INERMBNERRESR (368,490) =
Net proceeds from the issue of convertible notes ~ Z47 ] 88 R EARFT{S FIBF 58 — 736,104
Redemption of convertible notes BO A ERER (798,344) —
Net proceeds from the issue of senior notes BIIBRAERRMGIIERE 826,379 623,642
Net proceeds from the issue of corporate bonds (TR AIEFTEREFE 9,565 —
Net cash (used in)/generated MEEE(FA) /e
from financing activities ReEFE (390,069) 1,921,943
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents RERRAEEEMALERE (755,987) (157,181)
Cash and cash equivalents at | January RIBIBNBEERESESEY 24 1,688,923 1,819,029
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes NEEXSBNTE 32,749 27,075
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December RNAIBNRERREEEY 24 965,685 1,688,923

The notes on pages 137 to 267 form part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs"), which
collective term includes all applicable individual International Financial
Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards (“lASs") and
Interpretations issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
("IASB") and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). Significant accounting policies adopted by the group are

disclosed below.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs that are first effective
or available for early adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group and the Company. Note |(c) provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application of these developments
to the extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior

accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.

Br R AR MY EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 i 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFRBIN - BAAREIIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 3| December
2016 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the

"“Group") and the Group's interest in joint ventures.

These financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB") rounded to
the nearest thousand. The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except that the following assets
and liabilities are stated at their fair value as explained in the accounting

policies set out below:
- available-for-sale investments (see note 1(g));

= derivative financial instruments (see note | (h)); and

= investment properties (see note |(i)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily

apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

m HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED SREEIZRER D H
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(b)

(©

Basis of preparation of the financial statements (Contd)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of IFRSs that have
significant effect on the financial statements and major sources of estimation

uncertainty are discussed in note 2.

Changes in accounting policies

The IASB has issued a number of new IFRSs and amendments to IFRSs that
are first effective for the current accounting period of the Group. None of
these developments have had a material effect on how the Group's results
and financial position for the current or prior periods have been prepared or

presented.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not

yet effective for the current accounting period.

Br R AR MY EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 i 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFRBIN - BAAREIIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls
an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing whether the Group has
power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are

considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated financial
statements from the date that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but

only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not attributable
directly or indirectly to the Company, and in respect of which the Group
has not agreed any additional terms with the holders of those interests
which would result in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect to measure any non-
controlling interests either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests'

proportionate share of the subsidiary's net identifiable assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (Cont d)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position within equity, separately from equity attributable to the
equity shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling interests in the results
of the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between non-controlling interests
and the equity shareholders of the Company. Loans from holders of non-
controlling interests and other contractual obligations towards these holders
are presented as financial liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial
position in accordance with notes |(p), (q) or (r) depending on the nature

of the liability.

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss
of control are accounted for as equity transactions, whereby adjustments
are made to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative interests, but no

adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as a
disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or
loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised at fair value and this
amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset
(see note 1(g)) or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an

investment in a joint venture (see note | (e)).

In the Company's statement of financial position, investment in a subsidiary is

stated at cost less impairment losses (see note |(m)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 i 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFRBIN - BAAREIIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(€)

Joint ventures

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group or Company and
other parties contractually agree to share control of the arrangement, and

have rights to the net assets of the arrangement.

An investment in a joint venture is accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements under the equity method. Under the equity method, the
investment is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group's
share of the acquisition-date fair values of the investee's identifiable net
assets over the cost of the investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment
is adjusted for the post acquisition change in the Group's share of the
investee's net assets and any impairment loss relating to the investment (see
notes | (f) and (m)). Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group's share
of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the investees and any impairment
losses for the year are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, whereas the Group's share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of the
investees” other comprehensive income is recognised in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(e)

Joint ventures (Contd)

When the Group's share of losses exceeds its interest in the joint venture,
the Group's interest is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee. For
this purpose, the Group's interest is the carrying amount of the investment
under the equity method together with the Group's long-term interests that

in substance form part of the Group's net investment in the joint venture,

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between the
Group and its joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the Group's
interest in the investee, except where unrealised losses provide evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they are recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

When the Group ceases to have joint control over a joint venture, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that investee, with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained
in that former investee at the date when joint control is lost is recognised at
fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition

of a financial asset (see note 1(g)).

In the Company's statement of financial position, investments in joint venture

are stated at cost less impairment losses (see note | (m)).

Br R AR MY EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

EXSHBEE)

()

RELE (8)

EAKERG—AAELENEE
BHERZEENESE - AKE
HMESHRETY SR I RRE—
FEE  BEAREELATE RETE
BEAESRERRRE QAR
Sho BT E - ARER RS
BEEARNREREE  ERE
ELBARERGZRERERR
—E DR o

AREESELRETRIELN
RERHERBBREAREERNE
RERRNED SR TALE B
FEAREHERENCEREAEN
BRME - EULERT - BIEIERE
AR EREE

EAEETEHAERERERR
EHIER - AlREERHEREAT
MRS AR - FTES 2 WEEs
BERBEPER - ARELL
RS B EARIRE R AIRE
MERERARBRARZSBRER
BRSHRASBREENDAE
(R 1() °

EARBRBIRRERA - REED
FOREBERKARAEERRH
&L | (m)) S8R ©

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 &



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 i 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFRBIN - BAAREIIR)

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
()  Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of

()  the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the fair
value of the Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree;

over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities

measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised immediately in

profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill
arising on a business combination is allocated to each cash-generating unit,
or Groups of cash generating units, that is expected to benefit from the

synergies of the combination and is tested annually for impairment (see note

I (m)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any attributable
amount of purchased goodwill is included in the calculation of the profit or

loss on disposal.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(®

Other investments in equity securities

The Group's policies for investments in equity securities, other than

investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures, are as follows:

Investments in equity securities are initially stated at fair value, which is
their transaction price unless it is determined that the fair value at initial
recognition differs from the transaction price and that fair value is evidenced
by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or liability
or based on a valuation technique that uses only data from observable
markets. Cost includes attributable transaction costs, except where indicated
otherwise below. These investments are subsequently accounted for as

follows, depending on their classification:

Investments in securities which are not held for trading are classified as
available-for-sale securities. At the end of each reporting period the fair
value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in equity in the fair value
reserve. As an exception to this, investments in equity securities that do
not have a quoted price in an active market for an identical instrument and
whose fair value cannot otherwise be reliably measured are recognised in
the statement of financial position at cost less impairment losses (see note
I (m)). Dividend income from equity securities is recognised in profit or loss

in accordance with the policies set out in note | (w) (vi).

When the investments are derecognised or impaired (see note |(m)), the
cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity is reclassified to profit or loss.
Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date the Group commits to

purchase/sell the investments or they expire.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 i 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFRBIN - BAAREIIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(h)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value. At the
end of each reporting period the fair value is remeasured. The gain or loss

on remeasurement to fair value is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Investment property

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are owned or held
under a leasehold interest (see note I(I)) to eamn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation. These include land held for a currently undetermined
future use and property that is being constructed or developed for future

use as investment property.

Investment properties are stated at fair value, unless they are still in the
course of construction or development at the end of the reporting period
and their fair value cannot be reliably measured at that time. Any gain or
loss arising from a change in fair value or from the retirement or disposal of
an investment property is recognised in profit or loss. Rental income from

investment properties is accounted for as described in note | (w) (ii).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

U]

Property, plant and equipment

[tems of property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see note | (m)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and equipment includes
the cost of materials, direct labour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the
costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which
they are located, and an appropriate proportion of production overheads

and borrowing costs (see note | (y)).

Construction in progress is transferred to property, plant and equipment
when it is ready for its intended use. No depreciation is provided against

construction in progress.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of
property, plant and equipment are determined as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on the date of

retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property, plant
and equipment, less their estimated residual value, if any, using the straight

line method over their estimated useful lives as follows:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 i 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFRBIN - BAAREIIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(k)

()

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation (where the estimated useful life is finite) and

impairment losses (see note (m) (ii)).

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is charged to profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated useful lives. The
following intangible asset with finite useful life is amortised from the date it is

available for use and its estimated useful life is as follows:

Software 5 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed annually.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of transactions, is or
contains a lease if the Group determines that the arrangement conveys a
right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time in retumn
for a payment or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based
on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of

whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

()

Leased assets (Contd)

()

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which transfer to
the Group substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as being held under finance leases. Leases which do not
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the

Group are classified as operating leases, with the following exceptions:

- property held under operating leases that would otherwise
meet the definition of an investment property is classified as
investment property on a property-by-property basis and, if
classified as investment property, is accounted for as if held

under a finance lease; and

- land held for own use under an operating lease, the fair value
of which cannot be measured separately from the fair value
of a building situated thereon at the inception of the lease, is
accounted for as being held under a finance lease, unless the
building is also clearly held under an operating lease. For these
purposes, the inception of the lease is the time that the lease
was first entered into by the Group, or taken over from the

previous lessee.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 i 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFRBIN - BAAREIIR)

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

()  Leased assets (Contd)

(i)

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating leases,
payments made under the leases are charged to profit or loss in
equal instalments over the accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more representative of
the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset. Lease
incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part
of the aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent rentals are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are

incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease is amortised
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease term except
where the property is classified as an investment property (see note
(i), property under development for sale and completed property

held for sale (see note [(n)).

If a sale and leaseback transaction results in an operating lease, and
it is clear that the transaction is established at fair value, any profit
or loss shall be recognised immediately. If the sale price is below fair
value, any profit or loss shall be recognised immediately except that,
if the loss is compensated for by future lease payments at below
market price, it shall be deferred and amortised in proportion to the
lease payments over the period for which the asset is expected to
be used. If the sale price is above fair value, the excess over fair value
shall be deferred and amortised over the period for which the asset is

expected to be used.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

()

Leased assets (Contd)

(iii)

Assets leased out under finance leases

A finance lease is a lease that transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an asset. Title may or may not

eventually be transferred.

When the Group is a lessor under finance leases, an amount
representing the minimum lease payment receivables and initial
direct costs is included in the statement of financial position as loans
and accounts receivable. Any unguaranteed residual value is also
recognised at the inception of the lease. The difference between the
sum of the minimum lease payment receivables, initial direct costs,
the unguaranteed residual value and their present value is recognised
as unearned finance income. Uneamed finance income is recognised

over the period of the lease using the effective interest rate method
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 i 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFRBIN - BAAREIIR)

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(m)  Impairment of assets

(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities and other receivables

Investment in equity securities and other current and non-current
receivables that are stated at cost or amortised cost or are classified
as available-for-sale securities are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period to determine whether there is objective evidence of
impairment. Objective evidence of impairment includes observable
data that comes to the attention of the Group about one or more of

the following loss events:

= significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

= a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in

interest or principal payments;

= it becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or

other financial reorganisation;

= significant changes in the technological, market, economic or
legal environment that have an adverse effect on the debtor;

and

= a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an

investment in equity securities below its cost.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(m)  Impairment of assets

()

Impairment of investments in equity securities and other receivables
(Contd)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is determined and

recognised as follows:

= For investments in joint ventures accounted for under the
equity method in the consolidated financial statements (see
note |(e)), the impairment loss is measured by comparing the
recoverable amount of the investment with its carrying amount
in accordance with note |(m) (ii). The impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount in accordance with

note | (m) (ii).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 i 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFRBIN - BAAREIIR)

I SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) | EXGHBERE)
(m)  Impairment of assets (Contd) (m) BERMEE)
(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities and other receivables () BREBFHREREMENK
(Cont'd) HAERRE(E)

For trade and other current receivables and other financial
assets carried at amortised cost, the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate
(i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition
of these assets), where the effect of discounting is material.
This assessment is made collectively where these financial
assets share similar risk characteristics, such as similar past due
status, and have not been individually assessed as impaired.
Future cash flows for financial assets which are assessed for
impairment collectively are based on historical loss experience
for assets with credit risk characteristics similar to the collective

Group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in the asset's carrying
amount exceeding that which would have been determined

had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 7% 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) | EXGHBERE)
(m)  Impairment of assets (Contd) (m) BERMEE)
(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities and other receivables () BREBFHREREMENK
(Cont'd) BRI ()

= For available-for-sale securities, the cumulative loss that has - HAUHEEERM
been recognised in the fair value reserve is reclassified to profit 5 EERARLDAE
or loss. The amount of the cumulative loss that is recognised FEORTBEER
in profit or loss is the difference between the acquisition cost PEERH - BRE
(net of any principal repayment and amortisation) and current Baf Rt BEed
fair value, less any impairment loss on that asset previously RYERARCRERK
recognised in profit or loss. SERREEH) BB
RAENEERAHE
RRNERNBEN

EFRERE -
Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss in respect of BB HLERARE
available-for-sale equity securities are not reversed through FRE R K TR R
profit or loss. Any subsequent increase in the fair value of such EEBTRBRER
assets is recognised in other comprehensive income. &R - ZZEENLD
S AE R KR AN
REMEERARR

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 &



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 i 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFRBIN - BAAREIIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(m)

Impairment of assets (Cont d)

()

Impairment of investments in equity securities and other receivables
(Contd)

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding assets
directly, except for impairment losses recognised in respect of
trade debtors and bill receivables included within trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful but not remote. In
this case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts are recorded using
an allowance account. When the Group s satisfied that recovery is
remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is written off against
trade debtors and bill receivables directly and any amounts held in
the allowance account relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously charged to the allowance account
are reversed against the allowance account. Other changes in the
allowance account and subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off directly are recognised in the consolidated statement of

profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 7% 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) | EXGHBERE)
(m)  Impairment of assets (Contd) (m) BERMEE)
(i) Impairment of other assets (i) BEERE
Interal and external sources of information are reviewed at the end AEESERRENRRER
of each reporting period to identify indications that the following AEBRINRERE - AR =
assets may be impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an BEBRBT T EEFRR
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have BB e R ES B
decreased: ARANBEBEETER
ERAREE D
- property, plant and equipment; - BE BERHRE
= intangible assets; - BFEE:
—~  goodwill; and - BBk
- investments in subsidiaries in the Company's statement of - EARTENMHBMRR
financial position. RAHFRARE -
If any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is ERELREMGR - Blg
estimated. In addition, for goodwill, the recoverable amount M EHEEN KL S
is estimated annually whether or not there is any indication of ot BEHEME
impairment. FRFAKBEE - TR
BHRRERR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 i 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFRBIN - BAAREIIR)
| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(m)  Impairment of assets (Contd)

(i) Impairment of other assets (Contd)
- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest group of
assets that generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-

generating unit).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 7% 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) | EXGHBERE)
(m)  Impairment of assets (Contd) (m) BERMEE)
(i) Impairment of other assets (Cont d) (i) RHEEREE)

Recognition of impairment losses BRREEE
An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the carrying BEERHMEBER:
amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit to which it EHEUMREER
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses BEA I E S R
recognised in respect of cash-generating units are allocated REBERER®E
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated R RREELEEN
to the cash-generating unit (or group of units) and then, to BRNAEEE 8

reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit (or
group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be reduced below its individual fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable) or value in use (if

determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment

loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in

which the reversals are recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 i 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFRBIN - BAAREIIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(m)

Impairment of assets (Cont d)

(i)

Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group is required to prepare
an intenim financial report in compliance with I1AS 34, Interim financial
reporting, in respect of the first six months of the financial year. At the
end of the interim period, the Group applies the same impairment
testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at the end of the

financial year (see notes I(m) (i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in respect of
goodwill, available-for-sale equity securities carried at cost are not
reversed in a subsequent period. This is the case even if no loss, or a
smaller loss, would have been recognised had the impairment been
assessed only at the end of the financial year to which the interim
period relates. Consequently, if the fair value of an available-for-sale
equity security increases in the remainder of the annual period, or in
any other period subsequently, the increase is recognised in other

comprehensive income and not profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 7% 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) | EXGHBERE)
(n)  Inventories n #®E
Inventories in respect of property development activities are carried at the BEBENERZZDNFEEUNAER
lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost and net realisable values are AERFEMEFNRESE ALK -
determined as follows: RARAEHRFEE TR AE
E

= Properties held for future development for sale and properties under

development for sale

The cost of properties held for future development for sale and
properties under development for sale comprises specifically identified
cost, including the acquisition cost of land use right, aggregate cost
of development, materials and supplies, wages and other direct
expenses, an appropriate proportion of overheads and borrowing
costs capitalised (see note |(y)). Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price less estimated costs of completion and costs to

be incurred in selling the property.

- Completed properties held for sale

In the case of completed properties developed by the Group, cost
is determined by apportionment of the total development costs for
that development project, attributable to the unsold properties. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price less costs to be

incurred in selling the property.

The cost of completed properties held for sale comprises all costs of
purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the

inventories to their present location and condition.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 i 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFRBIN - BAAREIIR)

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(n)  Inventories (Contd)
- Other inventories

Other inventories mainly include low-value consumption goods
and goods for sale. They are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula and comprises all costs of purchase. When inventories are
consumed or sold, the carrying amount of inventories is recognised
as an expense in the year in which the consumption occurs or the
revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down of inventories
to net realisable value and all losses of inventories are recognised as

an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs.

(o)  Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value and
thereafter stated at amortised cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful
debts (see note I(m)), except where the receivables are interest-free loans
made to related parties without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of
discounting would be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at

cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(P)

Convertible notes

Convertible notes which do not contain an equity component are accounted

for as follows:

At initial recognition the derivative component of the convertible notes
is measured at fair value and presented as part of derivative financial
instruments (see note |(h)). Any excess of proceeds over the amount
initially recognised as the derivative component is recognised as the liability
component. Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible note
are allocated to the liability and derivative components in proportion to the

allocation of proceeds.

The portion of the transaction costs relating to the liability component
is recognised initially as part of the liability. The portion relating to the

derivative component is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The derivative component is subsequently remeasured in accordance with
note |(h). The liability component is subsequently carried at amortised cost.
The interest expense recognised in profit or loss on the liability component

is calculated using the effective interest method.

If the note is converted, the carrying amounts of the derivative and
liability components are transferred to share capital and share premium as
consideration for the shares issued. If the note is redeemed, any difference
between the amount paid and the carrying amounts of both components is

recognised in profit or loss.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-
bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any difference between
the amount initially recognised and redemption value being recognised in
profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together with any interest

and fees payable, using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 i 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFRBIN - BAAREIIR)

[ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(r)  Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value. Trade and
other payables are subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of

discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

(s)  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, demand
deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been

within three months of maturity at acquisition.

(ty  Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits and contributions to defined

contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred and the
effect would be material, these amounts are stated at their present

values.

Obligation for contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC") are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss as incurred, except to the extent that they are included in

properties for sale not yet recognised as an expense.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(®)

Employee benefits (Contd)

(i)

Equity settled share-based payment

The fair value of share options granted to employees is recognised
as an employee cost with a corresponding increase in the equity
settled share-based payment reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at grant date using the binomial option pricing model,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the options
were granted. Where the employees have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled to the options, the total
estimated fair value of the options is spread over the vesting period,

taking into account the probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options that is
expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to the
cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is charged/credited
to the profit or loss for the year of the review, unless the original
employee expenses qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the equity settled share-based payment
reserve. On vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense is
adjusted to reflect the actual number of options that vest (with a
corresponding adjustment to the equity settled share-based payment
reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting
conditions that relate to the market price of the Company's shares.
The equity amount is recognised in the equity settled share-based
payment reserve until either the option is exercised (when it is
transferred to the share premium account) or the option expires

(when it is released directly to retained profits).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 i 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFRBIN - BAAREIIR)

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(t)

Employee benefits (Contd)

(i) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when the Group
can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and when it
recognises restructuring costs involving the payment of termination

benefits.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in deferred
tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year,
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting

period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and
their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and

unused tax credits.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(u)

Income tax (Cont d)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities, and all
deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity,
and are expected to reverse either in the same period as the expected
reversal of the deductible temporary difference or in periods into which a
tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward.
The same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising
from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax

loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities
are those temporary differences arising from goodwill not deductible
for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of a
business combination), and temporary differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible differences,

unless it is probable that they will reverse in the future.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 i 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFRBIN - BAAREIIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(u)

Income tax (Cont d)

Where investment properties are carried at their fair value in accordance
with the accounting policy set out in note |(i), the amount of deferred
tax recognised is measured using the tax rates that would apply on sale
of those assets at their carrying value at the reporting date unless the
property is depreciable and is held within a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
property over time, rather than through sale. In all other cases, the amount
of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities,
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting

period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit
to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes

probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are

recognised when the liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 7% 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) | EXGHBERE)
(u)  Income tax (Contd) (v FBB(E)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements therein, ENEATI TR A R BUR TR TR A oA I H
are presented separately from each other and are not offset. Current tax ZHEF2D| - BATHEE - NE
assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against WA EEAHHIE S B RET
deferred tax liabilities, if the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off MEEERRLERERBERGHER
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following additional SERETEMITENBSARIAEE
conditions are met: BEENARIEAE - YRS T
MSEENBERT - HAIAEE

i
— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Group intends - NEASBEEEREE-
either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the AEEERFEELEL
liability simultaneously; or B SRARERZAEERE

i3

BZaE &

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to - NEBEEHEAEREE-
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either: fsd ftt 175 524 ) 250 765 445 A ot 1A
THEP-BHUNREHRE
7

= the same taxable entity; or -  HHRERHEE : %
—  different taxable entities, which, in each future period in which - TRAERBER &
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are AERHAEEAREE
expected to be settled or recovered, intend to realise the MEEHEBEXE
current tax assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a net EATRELAE
basis or realise and settle simultaneously. HERRERE  &F
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 i 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFRBIN - BAAREIIR)

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(v)  Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent liabilities

()

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer (i.e. the
guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse the beneficiary
of the guarantee (the "holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with

the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair value of the
guarantee is initially recognised as deferred income within trade and
other payables. The fair value of financial guarantees issued at the
time of issuance is determined by reference to fees charged in an
arm’s length transaction for similar services, when such information
is obtainable, or is otherwise estimated by reference to interest
rate differentials, by comparing the actual rates charged by lenders
when the guarantee is made available with the estimated rates
that lenders would have charged, had the guarantees not been
available, where reliable estimates of such information can be made.
Where consideration is received or receivable for the issuance of
the guarantee, the consideration is recognised in accordance with
the Group's policies applicable to that category of asset. Where no
such consideration is received or receivable, an immediate expense
is recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition of any deferred

income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

[ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(v)  Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent liabilities (Cont @)

(i)

Financial guarantees issued (Cont'd)

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as deferred income is
amortised in profit or loss over the term of the guarantee as income
from financial guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are recognised
in accordance with note | (v) (i) if and when (i) it becomes probable
that the holder of the guarantee will call upon the Group under the
guarantee, and (i) the amount of that claim on the Group is expected
to exceed the amount currently carried in trade and other payables
in respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount initially recognised, less

accumulated amortisation.

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group or the Company has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the present value of the

expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation
is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless

the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 i 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFRBIN - BAAREIIR)
| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(w)  Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably,

revenue is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i) Sales of properties

Revenue arising from sale of properties is recognised when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to
the buyers. The Group considers that the significant risks and rewards
of ownership are transferred when the construction of relevant
properties have been completed and the properties have been

delivered to the buyers.

Revenue from sale of properties excludes business tax or other sales
related taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts. Deposits
and instalments received on properties sold prior to the date of
revenue recognition are included in the statement of financial position

as receipts in advance under trade and other payables.

(i) Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss in equal instalments over the periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss as an integral
part of the aggregate net lease payments receivable. Contingent
rentals are recognised as income in the accounting period in which

they are earned.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(w)

Revenue recognition (Contd)

(i)

(iv)

)

(v

Service fee income

Service fee income in relation to property management service,
advertising service and other ancillary services are recognised when

such services are provided to customers.

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered at the customers’
premises which is taken to be the point in time when the customer
has accepted the goods and the related risks and rewards of
ownership. Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes

and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Finance lease income

Finance lease income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the net
investment of the finance lease or a shorter period, when appropriate,

to the net carrying amount of the net investment of the finance lease.

Dividends

Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised when the

shareholder’s right to receive payment is established.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 i 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFRBIN - BAAREIIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(W)

Revenue recognition (Contd)

(vii)  Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest

method.

(viij) - Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement of financial
position initially when there is reasonable assurance that they will be
received and that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching
to them. Grants that compensate the Group for expenses incurred
are recognised as income in profit or loss on a systematic basis in
the same periods in which the expenses are incurred. Grants that
compensate the Group for the cost of assets are initially recognised
as deferred income and subsequently deducted from the carrying
amount of assets and consequently are effectively recognised in profit
or loss when the inventories are sold or transferred to investment
properties upon meeting the relevant conditions, if any, attaching to

them.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are

recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was

measured.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(x)

Translation of foreign currencies (Contd)

The results of foreign operations are translated into RMB at the exchange
rates approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Statement of financial position items are translated into RMB
at the closing foreign exchange rates at the end of the reporting period.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive

income and accumulated separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of the exchange
differences relating to that foreign operation is reclassified from equity to

profit or loss when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of an asset which necessarily takes a substantial period of time
to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of
that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they

are incurred,

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a qualifying asset
commences when expenditure for the asset is being incurred, borrowing
costs are being incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare the
asset for its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing
costs is suspended or ceases when substantially all the activities necessary
to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are interrupted or

complete.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 i 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFRBIN - BAAREIIR)

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(z) Related parties

(@ A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to the

Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group

or the Group's parent.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions
applies:

i The entity and the Group are members of the same Grou
% p P
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary

is related to the others).

i ne entity is a joint venture or joint venture of the other enti
O tity is a joint vent joint vent f the other entity
(or a joint venture or joint venture of a member of a Group of

which the other entity is a member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(z)  Related parties (Contd)

()

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions
applies: (Contd)

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is a joint venture of the third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the

Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a) (i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of the

entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(vii)  The entity, or any member of a Group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group or

to the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person

in their dealings with the entity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 i 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFRBIN - BAAREIIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(aa)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item reported in the
consolidated financial statements, are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group's most senior executive management for
the purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of,

the Group's various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for financial
reporting purposes unless the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products and services, the nature
of production processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not individually

material may be aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES

(@)

Critical accounting judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has

made the following accounting judgement:

Classification between inventories, owner-occupied properties and

investment properties

The Group develops property projects with an initial intention to be held
for sale and retains a portion of properties held for own use. Judgement
is made by management in determining whether a property is designated
as a property held for sale, owner-occupied property or investment
properties. The Group considers its intention for holding the properties at
the early development stage of the related properties. During the course
of development, the related properties under development are accounted
for as (1) properties under development included in current assets if the
properties are intended for sale after their completion; (2) owner-occupied
properties included in properties, plant and equipment if the properties are
intended for own use; and (3) investment properties under development
if the properties are intended to be held to eam rentals and/or for capital

appreciation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BREERIN  IUARKIIR)

2 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES (Conta)

(b)  Sources of estimation uncertainty

Notes 12, 32 and 34 contain information about the assumptions and their
risk factors relating to valuation of investment property, fair value of share
options granted and financial instruments. Other key sources of estimation

uncertainty are as follows:

(i) Recognition of government grants

Government grants are initially recognised by the Group as a deferred
income in the consolidated statement of financial position when an
amount is received and are subsequently recognised or amortised
in profit or loss on a systematic basis when there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the specific conditions
attached to the government grants. The Group is required to fulfil the
requirements agreed with the local governments when conducting
the related infrastructure construction and the Group assesses
whether the conditions attached to the government grants are met
based on management's best estimates, particularly in interpreting the
fulfilment of conditions which are not clearly stated in the respective

agreements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES (Conta)

(b)  Sources of estimation uncertainty (Contd)

(i)

Provision for PRC Land Appreciation Tax (“PRC LAT")

As explained in note 7(a), the Group has estimated, made and
included in tax provision for PRC LAT according to the requirements
set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and regulations. The actual PRC
LAT liabilities are subject to the determination by the tax authorities
upon completion of the property development projects and the tax
authorities might disagree with the basis on which the provision for
PRC LAT is calculated. Significant judgment is required in determining
the level of provision, as the calculation of which depends on the
ultimate tax determination. Given the uncertainties of the calculation
basis of PRC LAT as interpreted by the local tax bureau, the actual
outcomes may be higher or lower than those estimated at the
end of the reporting period. Any increase or decrease in the actual
outcomes/estimates will impact the income tax provision in the

period in which such determination is made.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BREERIN  IUARKIIR)

2 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES (Conta)

(b)  Sources of estimation uncertainty (Cont d)
(iily  Inventories

As explained in note I(n), the Group's land held for future
development, properties under development and completed
properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Based on the Group's recent experience and the
nature of the subject property, the Group makes estimates of the
selling price, the costs of completion in case for properties under

development, and the costs to be incurred in selling the properties.

If there is an increase in costs to completion or a decrease in net sales
value, provision for completed properties held for sale, properties
held for future development and under development for sale may be
resulted. Such provision requires the use of judgment and estimates.
Where the expectation is different from the original estimate, the
carrying value and provision for properties in the periods in which

such estimate is changed will be adjusted accordingly.

Given the volatility of the PRC property market and the distinctive
nature of individual properties, the actual outcomes in terms of costs
and revenue may be higher or lower than estimated at the end of the
reporting period. Any increase or decrease in the provision would

affect profit or loss in future years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES (Conta)

(b)  Sources of estimation uncertainty (Cont d)

(v)

Impairment for trade and other receivables

The Group estimates impairment losses for trade and other
receivables resulting from the inability of the customers to make the
required payments. The Group bases the estimates on the aging of
the trade and other receivable balance, customer creditworthiness,
and historical write-off experience. If the financial condition of the
customers were to deteriorate, actual provisions would be higher

than estimated.

Recognition of deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised and measured based on the
expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount
of the assets, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting period. In determining the carrying amounts
of deferred tax assets, expected taxable profits are estimated
which involves a number of assumptions relating to the operating
environment of the Group and require a significant level of judgment
exercised by the Directors. Any change in such assumptions and
judgment would affect the carrying amounts of deferred tax assets to

be recognised and hence the net profit in future years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BREERIN  IUARKIIR)

2

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES (Contd)

(b)

Sources of estimation uncertainty (Contd)

(vi)

(vi)

Recognition of construction costs on properties under development

Development costs of properties are recorded as properties under
development during construction stage and will be transferred to
profit or loss upon the recognition of the sale of the properties.
Before the final settlement of the development costs and other costs
relating to the sale of the properties, these costs are accrued by the
Group based on management's best estimates. Any variations on
the development costs upon final settlement will impact cost of sales

included in profit or loss in future years.

Determining the deferred taxation on investment properties

The Group has leased out certain of the completed properties to
third parties whereby the directors consider that such arrangement is
not temporary. In the circumstance, the Group has decided to treat
those properties as investment properties (and reclassifying them
from completed properties held for sale to investment properties)
because it is the Group's intention to hold these properties in long-

term for rental income and/or capital appreciation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES (Conta)

(b)  Sources of estimation uncertainty (Contd)

(i)

(il

Determining the deferred taxation on investment properties (Cont @)

Under IAS 12, deferred tax is required to be measured with
reference to the tax consequences that would follow the manner
in which the entity expects to recover the carrying amount of the
assets in question. In this regard, IAS |2 has a rebuttable presumption
that the carrying amount of investment property carried at fair value
under IAS 40, Investment property, will be recovered through sale.
This presumption is rebutted on a property-by-property basis if the
investment property in question is depreciable and is held within a
business model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sale.

In this connection, the Group has reviewed its investment property
portfolio on a regular basis and has concluded that as at 31 December
2016, the Group has determined that each of these properties
are held within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
property over time and consequently the presumption in IAS 12 is
rebutted for these properties. As a result, the Group has continued to
measure the deferred tax relating to these other properties using the
tax rate that would apply as a result of recovering their value through
use.

Accruals for compensations for sub-lease arrangement

As explained in note 25, the Group makes accruals for estimated
compensations in relation to a sub-lease arrangement. The outcome
depends on future negotiations with the relevant parties on the sub-
lease arrangement. Any increase or decrease in the final outcome on
the negotiations would affect profit or loss in future years.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BREERIN  IUARKIIR)

3

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

The principal activities of the Group are development, sales and operation of

commercial trade and logistics centres and residential properties in the PRC.

Revenue represents income from sales of properties, property management
services income and rental income net of business tax and other sales related taxes

and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

The amounts of each significant category of revenue recognised in revenue during

the year are as follows:

W is Ko 2 BP R &
ARENEREGRETHETHED
mPLREENENFRE  HERELE

WEBEMREERA  DEEERSEY
AREEYA  EFEHREXRTRE
thHERERE LIRS -

FRERKT RN EEEAKNE
Bl BT -

2016 2015

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT ARBTT

Sales of properties MEHE 2,226,617 3,102,829
Rental income HEBA 45,130 37,743
Property management services WI¥EE B IR 42,092 18,409
Others Hith 21,938 7370
2,335,777 3,166,351

The Group's customer base is diversified and none of the customers of the Group

with whom transactions have exceeded 10% of the Group's revenue.

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item reported in the
consolidated financial statements, are identified from the financial data and
information provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive management
for the purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of,
the Group's various lines of business and geographical locations. No segment
information is presented in respect of the Group's operating segment as the Group
is principally engaged in one segment in the PRC. The Group does not operate in

any other geographical or business segment during the year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OTHER INCOME

Br R AR MY EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

4  HfslA
2016 2015

RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBTT

Dividend income BEHA 1,308 3567
Government grants (i) B #88 () 5,531 67,082
Net gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments %5 AJ it it & 1% & U 255 88 547 2,382
Net gain on disposal of other non-current HEAEMIERDTREEN
financial assets LhGaa ] 2,000 —
Net gain on disposal of property, plant HENE  BE k&
and equipment Yz F 5 37 30
Fair value gain on derivative financial instrument fTEeRIANA A BENKR 9,132 =
Others it 3,433 5333
21,988 78,394
(i) During the year, the Group transferred certain completed properties held for sale to

investment properties (note 12). The related government grants of RMB2,962,000
(2015: RMB59,701,000) previously recorded as deferred income (note 28) were

recognised in profit or loss as other income during the year.

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Other operating expenses in 2016 includes accrued estimated compensations of

RMB43,050,000 in relation to a sub-lease arrangement (note 25(d)).

EREREME (FF12) - KFAA
B AEERA (M28) MIEREE
FF 5 Bh A R #62,962,0007T (2015 :
AR¥59,701,00070) FARERZEA
RAEMBA

() FR XEEHETHFEETIVE
(
(

5 HttiEERxX

WIFHEMELERY BIETERLH
TRV ES(E & A R 43,050,000 7T
(P 3E25(d)) ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BREERIN  IUARKIIR)

6 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): BB ATFE A MG/ (GEA) T & EE

@)

Finance income and finance costs

6  BRBAAE

/8
F

@) MBRARBEKE

2016 2015
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETT

Finance income BT RS
Interest income FEWA (8,299) 9,161)
Finance costs BE R AR

Interest on bank loans, other borrowings

RITER - BEEERARGEHFNTL

and corporate bonds 170,653 140,176
Interest on convertible notes (note 27) ATERZEN S (ME27) 64,400 108,638
Interest on senior notes (note 29) BERENE (M3FE29) 127,654 3,825
Less: interest expense capitalised into B BRAMEBAERMENN SRS

properties under development * (133,876) (104,361)

228,831 148,278
Net foreign exchange loss X EEFE 11,608 2271
240,439 150,549

The borrowing costs have been capitalised at rates ranging from 4.75% - 9.00% ’ ER M EERARER F X

per annum (2015: 5.15% - 10.23%).

4.75%%9.00% 2 A (20154 :
5.15%%1023%) ©

m HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED SREEIZRER D H



6 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Contd)

(b)

Staff costs:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 7% 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

6  BRBAIAEE)

by BIMZAK:
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB000

AR®FR ARETT

Contributions to defined

EBHFR G S

contribution retirement plans 13,070 16,827
Salaries, wages and other benefits e IERHEMEF 275,996 296,194
Equity settled share-based payments AR EE ARG AR

(note 32) B0 (PR &E 32) (194) (336)

288,872 312,685
Other items: (c) HtEE:
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T ARETT
Depreciation and amortisation E REH 36,282 31,295
Impairment losses REEE
— trade and other receivables (note 22) -85 KA WA (i 22) 7,225 -
— property, plant and equipment (note | 1) ~#1% - BB kR (M 1) 7,340 —
— intangible assets (note 13) -EBREE (M 13) 613 —
Write off of deposits EHETS 1,000 —
Auditor's remuneration 2GS 3,750 3,500
Operating lease charges medEY 57,220 56,631
Rentals receivable from investment properties 1% & #) 3 & 18 & 13,592 8,067
Cost of properties sold (i) EEMERK () 976,697 1,467,992
0) Cost of properties sold is after netting off benefits from government 0] BZ2016F12A31BILLFE -
grants of RMB468,759,000 for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: B E MR MR BT 5 B

RMB303,303,000).

AE#468,759,0007074 15 H
(2015%F : AR#303,303,000
JL) o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BREERIN  IUARKIIR)

7  INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT
OR LOSS

(@)  Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss represents:

7

BHEERANREH
@) EHBERFRANBEE:
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T R ARETT

Current tax ENEA% 8
PRC Corporate Income Tax (“PRC CIT") (ii) FEIMEMEH

([REIERBH i) 164,002 289,458
PRC LAT (iv) B £ IR E T (v) 124,270 344,520
288,272 633,978
Deferred tax B IE
Origination and reversal of TR EENEE
temporary differences (note 17(b)) R = (3 17()) 69,043 (7,706)
357,315 626,272

0) Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands, the Group is not

subject to any income tax in this jurisdiction.

(i) No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax was made as the Group did not earmn

any income subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year (2015: Nil).
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iy BRERSESHIER K
SERZAVERERBAZME
AIFEH -

(i) EBARAEEHNLERRER
BEMBENEHORA - #
WERBBNGHRBHE

(015% - &) o



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7  INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT

OR LOSS (Conta)

(@) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss represents:
(Contd)
(i) PRCCIT

The Group's PRC subsidiaries are subject to statutory tax rate of 25% on their

assessable profits.

In July 2013, Ganzhou Hydoo Commercial and Trade Logistics Park
Development Co,, Ltd. (“Ganzhou Trade Centre") was approved to enjoy a
preferential PRC CIT rate of 15% for the years from 2012 to 2020 according

to a tax notice issued by the local tax bureau.

In December 2015, Wuzhou Hydoo Commercial and Trade Centre
Development Co., Ltd. (“Wuzhou Trade Centre") was also approved to
enjoy a preferential PRC CIT rate of 15% for the years from 2015 to 2020

according to a tax notice issued by the local tax bureau.

The preferential tax treatment was based on various tax rules and regulations
in relation to PRC Government's strategy in encouraging investment and

development of wholesale trading markets in certain regions in the PRC.

Br R AR MY EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BREERIN  IUARKIIR)

7  INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT

OR LOSS (Conta)

(@) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss represents:
(Contd)
(v)  PRCLAT

PRC LAT which is levied on properties developed for sale by the Group in
the PRC, at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the appreciation
value, which under the applicable regulations is calculated based on the
proceeds of sales of properties less deductible expenditures including
lease charges of land use rights, borrowing costs and all qualified property
development expenditures. Deferred tax assets arising from PRC LAT
accrued are calculated based on the applicable income tax rates when they

are expected to be cleared.

In addition, certain subsidiaries of the Group were subject to PRC LAT which
were calculated based on 6% to 8% of their revenue in accordance with the

authorised tax valuation method approved by respective local tax bureau.

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that the authorised tax
valuation method is one of the allowable taxation methods in the PRC and
the respective local tax bureaus are the competent tax authorities to approve
the authorised tax valuation method in charging PRC LAT to the respective
PRC subsidiaries of the Group, and the risk of being challenged by the State

Administration of Taxation or any tax bureau of higher authority is remote.

PRC dividend withholding tax

Withholding tax is levied on Hong Kong companies in respect of dividend
distributions arising from profit of PRC subsidiaries earned after | January
2008 at 5%.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 7% 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT 7 BHHEERANAERE)
OR LOSS (Contd)
(b)  Reconciliation between income tax and accounting profit at applicable tax (b) FBHERBERHEIENGHT
rates: HANHE
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARET T

Profit before taxation A b 712,463 1,224,002
Notional tax on profit before taxation, RABEZERRMEDN

calculated at the rates applicable to profits BEFTEABRTBIFE

in the countries concerned HRERE 207,299 331,755
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses A HB A OB BT E 4,730 6,507
Tax effect of non-taxable income BRRMBANTEZ 2 (327) (892)
Tax effect of unused tax losses AERRSARBEEEN

not recognised b % 56,059 50,509
Utilisation of previously unrecognised A LRI AR SR

tax losses RIBEE (1,287) (3,288)
PRC LAT (note 7(a) (iv)) R + 3 R (E R (P EE 7(2) (iv)) 124,270 344,520
Tax effect on PRC LAT PR MR ERNETE (29,652) (77,764)
Tax concessions (note 7(a) (iii)) BB ERE (KT 7(2) i) (3,777) (25,075)
Total income tax g 357,315 626272
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 i 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEERN  SUARKIIR)

EEHM
BERHMIREEE D FEDIE383(1) &
RAR(RBESENGERN)ROIF 2R

8 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 8

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the companies (Disclosure of Information

about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:

BT -

2016
Equity settled
Salaries Retirement share-based
allowances and scheme payment
benefitsinkind  contributions ~ ABERLEE
Directors' fee ¥ + 2B BIRGHE URGH Total
EEHE  RENEN R ERNAR Azt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRE ARBTR AR%TR ARETR AR%T:x
Executive directors: HITES:
Wang Jianli TR 1,075 2941 — — 4016
Wang Dewen (a) FEX(a) 182 2,885 79 — 3,146
Huang Dehong HER 450 1917 53 = 2,420
Non-executive directors: FBTES:
Yuan Bing rE 240 = = = 240
Wang Wei (b) TH(b) = = = = =
Independent non-executive directors: BUFHTES:
Zhao Lihua B 135 105 — — 240
Wang Lianzhou FEM 135 105 - 30 270
Lam Chi Yuen Nelson MEER 240 — — 30 270
2,457 7,953 132 60 10,602

“ HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED SREEEZRAR D



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 7% 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

8  DIRECTORS EMOLUMENTS (Contd) 8 EEHME)
2015
Equity settled
Salaries Retirement share-based
allowances and scheme payment
beneftsinkind  contributions MRS
Directors' fee ¥4 ~ 28 RIRGHE AR A Total
E30e  REVEN s ERHER @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETL  AREMTT ARETR ARETR AR%TR
Executive directors: HOTES !
Wang Jianli TR — 4016 — — 4016
Wang Dewen (a) FEX(a) - 2836 65 - 2901
Huang Dehong HER - 2506 48 38 2592
Non-executive directors: FUTES
Yuan Bing RrE 240 — — — 240
Wang Wei (b) TH(b) = = = = —
Independent non-executive directors: BUFHTES:
Zhao Lihua ByVE 240 — - — 240
Wang Lianzhou TEM 240 = = 30 270
Lam Chi Yuen Nelson MEE 240 — — 30 270
960 9,358 13 98 10,529
(a)  Appointed on 26 January 2015. (@ M20I5F I A26RERE -
(b)  Appointed on 23 January 2015 and resigned on 21 September 2016. (b) M2ISFIABEEZF LR

201659 B2 BEHE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt RS ER R MY RE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFRBIN - BAAREIIR)

9 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two (2015: three) are directors.

The emoluments of these directors are disclosed in note 8. The aggregate of the

emoluments in respect of the other three (2015: two) individuals are as follows:

BEHAL
TEERFATHEMA(QISE : =
LIRES - ZEESMHMRERIE
8o Ht==2(2015F : M%&) ALAEMH
BET -

2016 2015
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETT

Retirement scheme contributions RIRET B 63 45
Salaries, allowances and other benefits in kind e EMREMEYEF 14,681 6,270

Equity settled share-based payments PARERR A E DARR (D R AT A 3X
(note 32) (Ff5E32) — 38
14,744 6,353

The emoluments of the three (2015: two) individuals with the highest emoluments

are within the following bands:

=Z&(015F : B )&= EH A TR
NFUATEHE

2016 2015
Number Number

of individuals of individuals
N | AZ

HK$3,000,001-HK$3,500,000
HK$3,500,00-HK$4,000,000
HK$4,000,00-HK$4,500,000
HK$6,500,00-HK$7,000,000
HK$7,000,001-HK$7,500,000

3,000,001 77T 2 3,500,000 78 7T
3,500,001 7% 7T E 4,000,000 & 7T
4,000,001 /87T & 4,500,000 7T
6,500,001 7T 2 7,000,000 7T
7,000,001 772 7,500,000 7T

m HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED SREEIZRER D H
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EARNINGS PER SHARE

(@)

Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic eamnings per share is based on the profit attributable
to equity shareholders of the Company of RMB350,280,000 (2015:
RMB556,875,000) and the weighted average of 4,014,844,000 ordinary
shares (2015: 4,014,844,000 ordinary shares).

Diluted earnings per share

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the effect of deemed issue of shares
under the Company's Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme for nil consideration

was anti-dilutive.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share for 2015 was based on the
profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company (diluted) of
RMB556,875,000 and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
4,017,138,000 shares, calculated as follows:

() Weighted average number of ordinary share (diluted)

Br R AR MY EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

BREF

(2)

BREXEF

SRERBFERARAERRAIE
165 71178 A K # 350,280,000 75 (2015
F: AR ¥5568750007C ) & &
i % 0 T 19 £04,014,844,000 %
(20154 : 4014,844,000 %)+ & o

BRBFET

BEWIFENAIBLEE 1B
BADBERRAEEHERET
BT HERIERTRONTE
WREE

WEFEREFRAIZARDA
BaREEGIBEE)ARS
556,875,000 7T & I 18 A% 0 # T35
£04017,138000 5T & + &R W
T

() TEBRMETHH(EE)

2015
RMB'000
AREFT
Weighted average number of R 12 A3 BT @R INETI9 2
ordinary shares at 3| December 4,014,844
Effect of deemed issue of shares under BIBAARMERAHE
the Company's Pre-IPO Share BREAEINTHE
Option Scheme for nil consideration ~ RIEZETTRH M 2 2,294
Weighted average number of ordinary 712 A 31 B#VE @R METHE ()
shares at 3| December (diluted) 4,017,138

(i) For the year ended 31 December 2015, the effect of conversion of

convertible notes was anti-dilutive.

(i) HZENISF12A3IALLEF
B BRiIEREENTE
BIREENE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 i 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFRBIN - BAAREIIR)

Il PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT [ 9% BERRE
Motor Office
Buildings vehicles equipment Total
BF AE WARE #st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT AR®Tn AR¥ETn ARET:x
Cost: A
At | January 2015 R20I5F 1 A1R 9,769 101,247 35,206 146,222
Additions NE = 17,276 5935 23211
Transferred from inventories EEFE 32,739 — — 32,739
Disposals & — (6,790) (190) (6980)
At 31 December 2015 R2015F 12431 H
and | January 2016 K2016%F 1 A1 H 42,508 111733 4095 195,192
Additions NE 379,251 19,391 5282 403,924
Disposals HE — (1,670) (111 (1,781
At 31 December 2016 M2016F12A31H 41,759 129,454 46,122 597,335
Accumulated depreciation: RItirE :
At | January 2015 R20I5E1 AR 908 36,558 16,052 53518
Charge for the year FAZMH 511 20,737 9519 30,767
Written back on disposals & R i =) — (1,353) (1) (1,424)
At 31 December 2015 201512 A31 B
and | January 2016 K2016%E1 BB 1419 55942 25,500 82,861
Charge for the year FAXH 5343 18,693 11,728 35764
Written back on disposals & i o) — (1,521) (67) (1,588)
At 31 December 2016 m2016F 12 A31 B 6,762 73,114 37,161 117,037
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

Il PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Contd) I % BERREE)
Motor Office

Buildings vehicles equipment Total

BF RE WARE @i

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AR®TR AR®BTR AR%®TR AR%®Tx

Provision for impairment: RERE
At | January 2015, R20I5F1A18 -
31 December 2015 201512831 R
and | January 2016 K2016% 1 A 1R = = = =
Charge for the year FAZMH — 6391 949 7340
At 31 December 2016 20165 12H31 R — 6391 949 7,340
Net book value: BRI FE
At 31 December 2016 R2016F 12431 H 414997 49,949 8,012 472,958
At 31 December 2015 2015 12H31 R 41,089 55,791 15451 112,331
The buildings are all situated on land in the PRC. ZERFEHARFBIRA o
The analysis of carrying amount of leasehold land of properties is as follows: BEHETHNYERDESNAT -
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®FR ARETT
In the PRC pastas]
— held under long leases (over 50 years) —BRERBAOGOFAL)HE 37,886 41,089
— held under medium-term leases —BEFHBEO0E0FUE)FE
(10 - 50 years) 377,111 —

414,997 41,089
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(BRAFRBIN - BAAREIIR)

12 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 12 REWR
(a)  Reconciliation of carrying amount IREEH IR
2016
RMB’000
AR®T R
At | January 2015 R20I5F 1A 1B =
Transferred from inventories HEEFE 482,357
Fair value adjustments DREAR 296,543
At 31 December 2015 and | January 2016~ RA2015F 12 A31 BR 201651 A1 A 778,900
Transferred from inventories BERE 415,449
Fair value adjustments DRERAR 326,451
At 31 December 2016 R2016F 128318 1,520,800
Representing ]
Valuation - 2016 fEE—2016 1,520,800
Valuation - 2015 fhE—2015 778,900
Book value fREE
At 31 December 2016 R2016%F 12 A31 B 1,520,800
At 31 December 2015 R20I15F 12 A31 B 778,900

During the year ended 3| December 2016, the Group transferred certain
completed properties held for sale to investment properties when there was
an actual change in use from sale to earning rental income purpose. A fair
value gain of RMB309,551,000 (2015: RMB277,643,000), and corresponding
deferred tax of RMB47,951,000 (2015: RMB58,873,000), upon the transfer

had been recognised in profit or loss.

During the year, an additional fair value gain of RMB16,900,000 (2015:
RMB18,900,000) and corresponding deferred tax of RMB3,675,000 (2015:
RMB4,215,000), have been recognised in profit or loss in respect of the

existing investment properties.

m HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED SREEEZRAR D
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(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

12 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Cont'd) 12 REWXE)
(b)  Fair value measurement of properties (b) YMELAETE
Fair value hierarchy AREER
The following table presents the fair value of the Group's properties TREIRBEHRUEEERA
measured at the end of the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised AENASEMEAAE  URE
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in IFRS |3, Fair value BB REEAE 3R DA EE
measurement. The level into which a fair value measurement is classified is EMRENER=ARRERH -
determined with reference to the observability and significance of the inputs ’Aﬁ@ﬁi%%ﬁ/{?ﬁ@ﬁ}fﬁﬁﬁ
used in the valuation technique as follows: ARNBAZEZIBEERERT
MR RETE R :
Level | valuations:  Fair value measured using only Level | inputs i.e. F—HEE: BERE-—RYE
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical FENARE A
assets or liabilities at the measurement date Rt 8 IR R
Mz H R E E %
BEREAENHR
1
Level 2 valuations:  Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs i.e. observable F_B/HE: FRAE_REE
inputs which fail to meet Level |, and not using ENRRE AR
significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are HEFE—ROAEH
inputs for which market data are not available EHBERRERA
TABRNERH
& TABRAE
DiEBERETS
BRNEE
Level 3 valuations:  Fair value measured using significant unobservable inputs FRHE: ERTIBRNE
EHRAENDA
El
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(BRAFRBIN - BAAREIIR)
12 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Contd)

(b)  Fair value measurement of properties (Cont d)

Fair value hierarchy (Contd)

12 REWMEE)
(b) MELAALETEE)

AREER(E)

Fair value
measurement as

at 3|1 December

2016
Fair value as at  categorised into
31 December level 3
2016 2016 F
R2016F 12A31 B
12A31BH 2EIRE=R
DRE  WNRAEHE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTR AR®TR
Recurring fair value measurement REMLAETE
— Investment properties -REME 1,520,800 1,520,800
Fair value

Fair value as at

measurement as
at 31 December
2015

categorised into

31 December level 3
2015 F20156
P 20156 12R31 B&
12A31B8 DBEARF=R
ARE  WRARERE
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT
Recurring fair value measurement REEAAETE
— Investment properties —REME 778,900 778,900

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED SREEEZRAR D
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12 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Contd) 12 REWXE)
(b)  Fair value measurement of properties (Cont d) (b) MELAALETEE)
Fair value hierarchy (Cont'd) AREER(E)
The Group's policy is to recognise transfers between levels of fair value AEENHERRERBENRS
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in which they occur. MABRBANEREERCHANS
% o
All of the Group's investment properties carried at fair value were R2N16F12A318  A&EfME
revalued as at 31 December 2016. The valuations were carried out by an WA ESIRZIENE BB LA
independent firm of surveyors, Savills, who have among their staff Fellows of EMTE - ATHAEN(EETA
the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with recent experience in the location HEEBNEMEGEEREEZE
and category of property being valued. The Group’s property manager and 1% BEAEMERERE R
the senior management have discussion with the surveyors on the valuation BEAACHEACKR)ETE
assumptions and valuation results when the valuation is performed at each fh - REEYNELBERSREEE
interim and annual reporting date. EREREREERE A Hﬂi’%fﬂﬁ
1ERT BRI 2 R0 &1 i B B I ERR
fhE&ER -
Information about Level 3 fair value measurements ERE=BAnEFEZER
Valuation techniques Unobservable input Range
BER% TABRENEAHE HE
Investment properties Income capitalisation method Yield 5.0% to 5.5%
REYME YR ERE gz (2015: 5.0% to 5.5%)
Market monthly rental rate 194 - 1040
(RMB/sqm.) (2015: 34.1 - 102.6)
M5 AEE
(AREBT/F7HK)
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(BRAFRBIN - BAAREIIR)

12 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Contd)

(b)

Fair value measurement of properties (Contd)
Fair value hierarchy (Contd)

The fair value of completed investment properties is generally derived using
the income capitalisation method. This valuation method is based on the
capitalisation of the income and reversionary potential income by adopting
appropriate capitalisation rates, which are derived from analysis of sale
transactions and valuers interpretation of prevailing investor requirements
or expectations. The prevailing market rents adopted in the valuation have
reference to recent lettings within the subject properties and the estimated

rental incremental observed in other comparable properties.

Certain bank loans granted to the Group were jointly secured by investment
properties with a book value of RMB41,900,000 (31 December 2015:
RMB179,500,000) (note 26).

The Group's investment properties are held on leases of between 3 to
I5 years in the PRC. Total future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases are receivable combined with others which are

stated in note 35(c).

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED 3REBRKIZKRERLD T
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RENE(Z)
(b) MELALETEE)

AREER(E)

RIBRENEODAE-REAR
S EARRET © WRHEDEER
BBRMEE 2EMELE - Hk
ARBEERUARTER  ME
MR BB HER 5 kb E
MAMBERREE 2 BERKHEM
i - fHERAMRANHERS
REZDENTHBBERL R LM
AL BN EEBRRNMEFESE
MMETE

AEEERME TRIETARE
B A R #41900,00075 (20154 12
A3 8 AR 179,500,000 )&
REMEFEER(PE26) ©

AEBRPENREDERN T3
EISFNEMESR - TAHEEL
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(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 13 J|EEE
Software
g4
RMB’000
AR®T R
Cost: B
At | January 2015 20151 A1 H 3512
Additions NE | 473
At 31 December 2015 and | January 2016 R20I15F12A31BR201651 AR 4985
Additions =Y 104
At 31 December 2016 R2016F 128318 5,089
Accumulated amortisation: ESE o
At | January 2015 20151 A1 H 474
Charge for the year FRZH 528
At 31 December 2015 and | January 2016 R20I5F 12831 BR2016F 1 A1 H 1,002
Charge for the year FRX L 518
At 31 December 2016 R2016F12A318 1,520
Provision for impairment: BERE
At | January 2015, 31 December 2015 PR20ISE1A1H20I5F 128318
and | January 2016 K2016F1HIH —
Charge for the year FRX 613
At 3| December 2016 R2016F12A318 613
Net book value: BRTEFE :
At 31 December 2016 R2016F 128318 2956
At 31 December 2015 R20I15F 12 A31 H 3983
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(BRAFRBIN - BAAREIIR)

14 GOODWILL 14 BE
RMB’000
AR®BTFR
Cost: B
At 3| December 2015, | January 2016 R20I15F12A318 - 2016F 1 AI B
and 31 December 2016 K20165 12 A31 H 3,631
Carrying amount: BREE
At 31 December 2016 R2016F 124318 3,631
At 31 December 2015 20154 12831 8 3,63l
The Group carried out impairment testing of the goodwill at the end of each ASEREREHRYBHBETRER
reporting period. In assessing the impairment of goodwill, the recoverable amount Ao EFLBEHER SRTHS
of the cash generating units ("CGU") is determined. The CGU related to the EfEU((REELEM DM RE
goodwill comprises the Company’s knowledge and expertise of the management cH EPERUNREELENLER
and existing customers. The directors determined that no significant provision for ARRAIEBERRREREPNAALE
impairment of goodwill is necessary as at 31 December 2016 and 2015. R EERB N2W0I16F R20I5F 12
A3 BRAHBEREFLEARME
I5 INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES I5 REEbENER
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARETT
Share of net assets DEEERE 149,394 150,386
Management considers that the joint ventures of the Group will not have significant EEERARAEERECEUAEEM
impact on financial position and performance of the Group individually. BRARFEITBEAZE -

m HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED SREEEZRAR D
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (Contd)

Details of the Group's interest in the joint ventures, which is accounted for using

the equity method in the consolidated financial statements, are as follows:

I5 REeEELXNEEE)

ARERRELFNEE(REDENEG

BEEATS KSR RIS T -

Proportion of ownership interest

FrARLA

Place of Particulars of Group's

incorporation issued and effective
and business paid up capital interest Held by Held by Principal
Name AR 3 ERTRE A&EE  the Company a subsidiary activities
L BRI BRRAFE ERER AQARKE  FLEME FERR
Hydoo Best Group Co, Ltd. Thailand ~ Baht 2,196,003,600/ 3643% - 36.43% Property
Baht 2,196,003,600 development
Hydoo Best Group Co., Ltd. ZE 2,196003,6008%,/ 36.43% — 36.43% AR

2,196,003,600 %k

Shenzhen Tiandihui Hydoo Road China RMB2,000,000/ 25.00%
Port Management Limited RMB500,000
RINKERE R mE ARE20000007,/ 25.00%
BEEBRAT AR¥500,0007T

Hydoo Best Group Co, Ltd. (“Hydoo Best") is mainly engaged in the property
development. The Group and the other shareholder of Hydoo Best contractually
agree to share control of the arrangement, and have rights to the net assets of the

arrangement based on the composition of governing bodies.

Shenzhen Tiandihui Hydoo Road Port Management Limited (“Shenzhen Tiandihui”)
is mainly engaged in the logistics service. The Group and the other shareholder
of Shenzhen Tiandihui contractually agree to share control of the arrangement,
and have rights to the net assets of the arrangement based on the composition of

governing bodies.

— 2500%  Logistics service

— 25.00% MR

Hydoo Best Group Co., Ltd([Hydoo
Best ) FENEFHERE - AEER
Hydoo Best Xt IRREA K LIREN =

WRZ B EHIE WERERE
FIMARES L L B FEE

& &

RYIRHERBARAEERERAA

([mﬂ”fiﬁ’,EJ)Igﬁg'M)/mﬂ e
SERARNRBERMRRESOR
DIEZ TR EGIE  YHERERT
HFIRARTER I L EEFE
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEERN  SUARKIIR)

16 OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS l6 HttFReBSmEE

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETTT
Available-for-sale unlisted equity securities A EIE TR E S 152,364 [11,187
Derivative financial instrument TESRIA 27,767 =
180,131 111,187

17 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 17 BHHERRRANFEHR

FINANCIAL POSITION

(@) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of financial position

(@) BHBBRIRANEABIRE

r'epr'esents:
2016 2015
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®T T ARETTT
Prepaid tax: BAAHE
PRC CIT B EFTER 32 34
PRC LAT B+ S E 105,289 111,127
105,321 11,161
Current tax liabilities: ABHEEE
PRC CIT B EREHR 567,839 553933
PRC dividend withholding tax B R S B 33,038 33038
PRC LAT B £ s E 465,758 519,339
1,066,635 1,106,310

m HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED SREEEZRAR D
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(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

17 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 17 SHMBRRRANFER(E)
FINANCIAL POSITION (Contd)
(b)  Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: () EERELHELEERERE:
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised in the RE I AR & R AR IE B
consolidated statement of financial position and the movements during the BE/ (BE)MAERDD REARL
year are as follows: BEMT :
Deferred tax arising from: BERBEHUTREEE !
Fair value
adjustment
for investment Advertising Deferred  Provision for
properties Tax losses expenses income PRC LAT Total
REMEND HE L

MERR  HEER RER  BERA  HEHRRE Eh
RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO
AR®TR AR%Tr ARMTn ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR

At | January 2015 RWISFIAIR - 21528 9,554 193,868 68622 293572
(Charged)icredited tothe  RAPHERR (k)
consolidated statement of  FFA(HIH7(a))

profit or loss (note 7(a)) (63,088) 6l (539 50312 25,763 7,706
At 31 December 2015 RIS 124318 (63088) 21,589 4212 244,180 94385 301,278
At | January 2016 R2016E 1A 1A (63,088) 21,589 4212 244,180 94,385 301,278

(Charged)lcredtedtothe  RABHBER(H1B)/
consolidated statement of P A(KI37(2)
profit or loss (note 7(2)) (51,626) 43,568 (1,370) (30952) (28,663) (69,043)

At 31 December 2016 R2016F 124318 (114,714) 65,157 2842 213228 65,722 232,135
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFRBIN - BAAREIIR)

17 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

17 AHBRBRARANHAEHRE)

FINANCIAL POSITION (Contd)
(b)  Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (Contd) b)) EEIEBEEHEEEREE:
(%)
Representing: &
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®F ARETT
Deferred tax assets BEEHIBEE 247,050 316,049
Deferred tax liabilities EXEHIBRE (14,815) (14771)
232,235 301,278
(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised ) AERELHBEE

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note I(u), the Group
has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of cumulative tax losses
of certain subsidiaries of RMB550,390,000 as at 31 December 2016 (2015:
RMB330,671,000). The directors consider it is not probable that future
taxable profits against which the losses can be utilised will be available in the

relevant tax jurisdiction and entities.

The unrecognised tax losses will expire by the end of the following years, if

BEMF I(WMENEBR -
R2016F 128318 AEEL X
RETFRANZAREBEEA
R # 550,390,000 (20154 : AR
#330,671,0007C ) ERIELE T IBE
Eo-EFRRTAURERANS
AEEERERESIANEHEE
BHRIRRERTFIE o

i RAEEER - REERHOBRIBE R

unused: RIATFERERBER
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREF T AREFTT
2017 20175 80 80
2018 20184 35,342 35,644
2019 2019 £ 91,240 92,909
2020 20205 199,493 202,038
2021 2021 224,235 —
Total Bt 550,390 330,671

m HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED SREEEZRAR D
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION (Contd)

(d) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

As set out in note 7(a)(v), withholding tax is levied on Hong Kong companies
in respect of dividend distributions arising from profit of PRC subsidiaries.
Since the Group could control the quantum and timing of distribution of
profits of the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC, deferred tax liabilities are only
provided to the extent that such profits are expected to be distributed in

the foreseeable future.

At 31 December 2016, temporary differences relating to the undistributed
profits of subsidiaries amounted to RMB2,350,544,000 (2015:
RMB1,922,491,000). Deferred tax liabilities of RMBI 17,527,000 (2015:
RMB96,125,000) have not been recognised in respect of the tax that
would be payable on the distribution of these retained profits as the Group
controls the dividend policy of these subsidiaries and it has been determined
that it is probable that these profits will not be distributed in the foreseeable

future.

PREPAYMENT FOR ACQUISITION OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT

At 31 December 2015, the prepayment for acquisition of property, plant and
equipment represents the prepaid proceeds for an office building. The office

building was handed over to the Group during the year.

17

Br R AR MY EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

AHMBRRRANAEHR(E)

(d) FEREEHEEE

B 7 (2)(v) FTE - MBEBRA]
EEHRBEFRAGHNEENRES
W - AR AEEREHIAS
B B 7 A AR R A 2R I B
- HASEEEZSNEESRK
RABRARREOER TR
EHEEE -

R2M16F 128318 FRAR K
ARFBNERZEARARY
2,350,544,000 (2015 : AR ¥
1,922,491,0007C ) ° A& B R 3R
P IkZ SR E B AT IARER
EREHIEAEARK 17,527,000
L2015 : A K #96,125000
L) BRASEEHZET AT
MR BER BB EE A ER]
BRARRAEFE -

WENE  BERRENEGRE
R2I5F1NA3IH WENE: BE

RENBNFAERESFENEN
PR - ARFECREABI TALE -
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFRBIN - BAAREIIR)

19 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries which principally

affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group. The class of shares held is

ordinary unless otherwise stated.

R¥DENER
TREFNHEAKERE  BEXAE
BEAFENTIBETARMNFE K
HEGRHE DARBARDNERN AL
bl

Proportion of ownership interest

L fl

Place of Particulars Group’s

incorporation of issued effective
and business capital interest Held by Held by Principal
Name of company ML R B8 KEE  the Company a subsidiary activities
AL BRI kAt BHREZR ARAFE FLEME TEEH
Hongkong Hydoo Holding Limited Hong Kong HK$100,000 100% 100% - Investment
BAREERER AR BE 100,000/ 7T management
REEE
Hydoo Estate (Ganzhou) Company Limited The PRC US$32,050,000 100% — 100% Property
("Hydoo Estate (Ganzhou)") H 32,050,000% 7T development
REEX(BEM)FRAR* and investment
(TREEE(EN) ) holding
BHERER
RERR
Ningxiang Hydoo Guangcai Trade The PRC RMB60,000,000 100% - 100% Property
Centre Development Company Limited mE AR 60,0000007T development
ERRRAYESRSREARAR FHERE
Jining Hydoo Logistics Centre The PRC RMB200,000,000 100% - 100% Property
Development Company Limited RE ARK2000000007T development
("Jining Logistics Centre") FHERE

BERENTHREERAA
(AR

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED 3REBRKIZKRERLD T
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INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Br R AR MY EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

19 RFARNERE)

Proportion of ownership interest

Pl
Place of Particulars Group's
incorporation of issued effective
and business capital interest Held by Held by Principal

Name of company B & B8 AE&EE  the Company  asubsidiary activities

NAER EXBH RA#E BERERZ AQAFIRRE  FLARE IERK

Mianyang West Modern Trade The PRC RMB200,000,000 100% - 100% Property
Centre Development Company Limited HE AR 2000000007T development
(“Mianyang Trade Centre”) FiERRE
RERSRRDREAAEBRAR

([RBIRA])

Guangxi Yulin Modern Trade Centre The PRC RMB220,000,000 100% - 100% Property
Development Company Limited HE AR 220,0000007T development
(“Yulin Trade Centre”) FHERRE
BERIHRRRRAEARAA

( TEMRA] )

Shenzhen Hydoo Investment The PRC RMB30,000,000 100% - 100% Investment
Management Company Limited mE  AKR%30,0000007T management
(“Shenzhen Hydoo”) REER
ATREREEEFRAA

Ganzhou Hydoo Commercial and The PRC RMB800,000,000 100% — 100% Property
Trade Logistics Park Development Co,, Ltd. HE AR 800,0000007T development
(“Ganzhou Trade Centre”) EiERE
BNREHENREREBRAR

([RNEEMRE )

Wuzhou Hydoo Commercial and The PRC RMB300,000,000 100% — 100% Property
Trade Centre Development Co,, Ltd. HE AR 3000000007 development
(“Wuzhou Trade Centre”) EiERE
BNREEEDRAREBRAR

(MENEEMRA )
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19 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

19

R¥DRNER(E)

Proportion of ownership interest

LBl
Place of Particulars Group's
incorporation of issued effective
and business capital interest Held by Held by Principal

Name of company B & B8 AE&EE  the Company  asubsidiary activities

DNAER EXBH RA#E BERERZ AQAFIRRE  FLARE ITERHK

Heze Hydoo Commercial and The PRC RMB300,000,000 100% - 100% Property
Trade Centre Company Limited HE AR 3000000007 development
("Heze Trade Centre") FiERRE
TERERENRABRAR

(BTEBEMRA )

Xingning Hydoo Commercial and The PRC RMB200,000,000 80% - 80% Property
Trade Centre Company Limited HE AR 2000000007T development
(“Xingxing Trade Centre”) EiERE
RERERENRUBRAR

((REHEMRA])

Yantai Hydoo Intemational Commercial and The PRC RMB300,000,000 100% - 100% Property
Trade Centre Company Limited HE AR 3000000007 development
(“Yantai Trade Centre’) FHERRE
EaRERRBENERAR

((EaEEMRA])

Lanzhou Hydoo Commercial and The PRC RMB300,000,000 100% - 100% Property
Trade Centre Company Limited HE AR 3000000007 development
(“Lanzhou Trade Centre") FiERRE

BARERERERAR
(TNEES )
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19 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (Contd) 19 RFRANERE)

Proportion of ownership interest

LBl
Place of Particulars Group's
incorporation of issued effective
and business capital interest Held by Held by Principal

Name of company B & B8 AE&EE  the Company  asubsidiary activities

RAER EXBH RA#E BERERZ AQAFIRRE  FLARE ITERHK

Ganzhou Jiuzhi Property Management Services The PRC RMB5,200,000 51% - 51% Property
Company Limited (“Ganzhou Jiuzhi") mE  ARES52000007T management
ENTARNEERERAR services

(TEMAR]) MR ERRS

Huaiyuan Hydoo Commercial and The PRC RMB300,000,000 60% - 60% Property
Trade Centre Company Limited HE AR 300,0000007T development
(“Huaiyuan Trade Centre") FiERE
BEREAERERLAA

(MEEREN )

Jiamusi Hydoo Commercial and The PRC RMB300,000,000 100% — 100% Property
Trade Centre Company Limited HE AR 3000000007 development
EAHREREMRRERA BHERE

Jinan Bright Ocean Business The PRC RMB50,000,000 85% - 85% Property
Management Company Limited mE AR 50,0000007T management
BNt sREERERAR* services

NEEERRG
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 i 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFRBIN - BAAREIIR)

19 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

19 RFARNERE)

Proportion of ownership interest

LBl
Place of Particulars Group's
incorporation of issued effective
and business capital interest Held by Held by Principal
Name of company B & B8 AE&EE  the Company  asubsidiary activities
DNAER EXBH RA#E BERERZ AQAFIRRE  FLARE ITERHK
Heze Hydoo Industrial Company Limited The PRC US$50,000,000 100% - 100% Property
TEREHERARAR i 50,000,000 7T development
BHERR
Shenzhen Qianhai Hydoo Financial The PRC RMB320,000,000 100% — 100% Finance lease
Leasing Company Limited RE AR 320,0000007T MERE
AFEREREBEAR AR

Liuzhou Hydoo Commercial and The PRC RMB300,000,000 100% — 100% Property
Trade Centre Company Limited HE AR 3000000007 development
WNREEEDRUBRA BHERE
Yulin Jingde Real Estate Company Limited The PRC RMBS,000,000 51% - 51% Property
IRRERHEREERAF* mE  AKR¥8000,0007 development
BHERR

* These entities are all PRC limited liability companies. The English translation * ZEEBHAEPREARAR - %%

of the company names is for reference only. The official names of these NEMEHEZZEMRRE 2%

companies are in Chinese.

The directors consider that no individual non-controlling interest is considered

material to the Group as at 3| December 2016 and 2015.

m HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED SREEIZRER D H
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 7% 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES 20 REHEEWRE
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARET T

Finance lease receivables BEHERENIE 67,629 43,061
Less: due within one year (note 22) & I EREE(EE22) (40,957) (36,829)
26,672 6,232
As at 31 December 2016, the total future minimum lease payments receivable R2I6F12A318 REMEHERE
under finance leases were as follows: WARRSERSBEMT
2016 2015
Unearned Uneamed
Lease finance Lease finance
payments income Carrying  payments income Carrying

receivable RERE amount  receivable REREL amount
EyHEE ®ERA REHE ‘e ®EKA REE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR AR®TR AR¥TR ARETT AR®TT ARETRT

Within | year (inclusive) | ER(BEZE) 48,181 (7,224) 40,957 37,772 (943) 36829

After | year but within | ZSF(BEEEMF)
5 years (inclusive) 29,048 (2,376) 26,672 6,794 (562) 6,232
77,229 (9,600) 67,629 44566 (1,505) 43061
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 i 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFRBIN - BAAREIIR)

21 INVENTORIES 20 RE
(@) Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial position comprise: ) AHUBRREANFEERSE:
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®FR ARETT
Properties held for future REARGREDE
development for sale 1,348,045 1,387,844
Properties under development for sale HEEEME 3,680,880 4412710
Completed properties held for sale RECTIYE 4,150,840 3,826,148
Others Hit 1,195 1919
9,180,960 9,628,621
As at 3| December 2016, certain properties under development for R2W16F12A318 EFHERE
sale, completed properties held for sale and properties held for future BYE HREETIMERFER
development for sale were pledged for certain bank loans granted to the RERENEREASEERET
Group (note 26). RITEFEEIR (HEE26) -
(b)  The analysis of carrying amount of leasehold land included in properties (b) FTAMEREMNEELHNEREE
development for sale is as follows: aWWME
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTT
Held under BREUT&RERS
— long leases (over 50 years) in the PRC — R ERRERAD(S0FU L) 446,417 639,915
— medium-term leases (10 - 50 years) — R BT AN (10E505)
in the PRC 2,990,977 3,054,709

m HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED SREEEZRAR D
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 7% 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

INVENTORIES (Cont'd) 2l RE#E)
(c) Properties held for future development for sale in the consolidated () EHIBRERANSERRSH
statement of financial position comprise: BYRERE
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T R ARETT

Expected to be recovered after TRHAR —F AR D]
more than one year 1,348,045 1,387,844
(d)  Properties under development for sale in the consolidated statement of d AHPBERARANEEEENE
financial position comprise: k=
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BT R ARETFT
Expected to be recovered within one year ~ TRHIR —F AU E 931,465 2,291,472
Expected to be recovered after TR —F R E
more than one year 2,749,415 2,121,238
3,680,880 4412710
(e) Completed properties held for sale in the consolidated statement of (e) BHUBRRRAZECSTINY
financial position comprise: X85
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®F ARBTT
Expected to be recovered within one year ~ TREIR —F AU E 3,976,205 3,349,357
Expected to be recovered after TEHR —F LR
more than one year 174,635 476,791

4,150,840 3,826,148
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 i 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFRBIN - BAAREIIR)

22 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS 22 ESZRHMEWIE BEARERE

%
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTR ARETFT
Trade and bill receivables (a) BHRYGTIA R ERRE (a) 48,431 44,948
Less: allowance for doubtful debts (b) w RERE (b) (7,225) —
41,206 44948
Prepaid business tax and other taxes B &R KA 99,530 128,048
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables (c) €& * B3I R EAMEUKFIE (o) 1,350,171 1,183,445

Amount due from a joint venture (d) e E & R RIFIE (d) 18,874 =

Finance lease receivables (note 20) BB E YA (e 20) 40,957 36,829
1,550,738 1,393,270
()  Ageing analysis @) HREIMN

RNHREHR - HHEBEZEUTR
LEBREERBRENNE HE
WA B B SR i (PO R AR 1)

As at the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade and bill
receivables (net of allowance for doubtful debts) based on the date the

relevant trade and bill receivables recognised, is as follows:

BRI ¢
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREF T AREFTT
Within | month 8 A A 32,943 30,078
| to 3 months | £318A 2,378 =
3 to 6 months 3Z6{AA 2,125 2735
Over 6 months 6fE AA F 3,760 12,135
41,206 44948

“ HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED SREEEZRAR D



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 7% 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

22 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS 22 EZREMEWRFRE  BIRERE

(Cont'd) &(&)

(@)  Ageing analysis (Contd) @ HRIW(E)
The details on the Group's credit policy are set out in note 34(a). AREGEREMNFERRME

34(a) °

Trade and bill receivables are primarily related to proceeds from the sale BORRFBERERZETEEY
of properties. Proceeds from the sale of properties are made in lump- XHEEMGRIERM - MEHEM
sum payments or paid by instalments in accordance with the terms of the FRERBERSNGER—RMEX
corresponding contracts. NESE TN

(b)  Impairment of trade and other receivables (b) EBEZREMEKRERE
Impairment losses in respect of trade and other receivables are recorded B 5 K H At R R e R (B S 1 1R
using an allowance account unless the group is satisfied that recovery of the BERDS  BRIEREEEAKD
amount is remote, in which case the impairment loss is written off against el ol = A e G i
trade and other receivables directly (see note |(m) (i)). BT REBEEREESRHE

i 8 W 8 (R EE 1 () (i) ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 i 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFRBIN - BAAREIIR)

22 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS
(Cont'd)

(b)  Impairment of trade and other receivables (Cont @)

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during the year, including

both specific and collective loss components, is as follows:

22 EBEREMEWRE BERERE
&(&)

(b) EBEZRHEMERTEREE)

FREREERERBRARTD
MREEREEREZSNT :

2016

RMB’000

AR®T R

At | January RIAIAB =
Impairment loss recognised EHERNREER 7,225
At 31 December RI12A31 R 7,225

At 31 December 2016, trade and other receivables of RMB7,225,000 (2015:
Nil) were individually determined to be impaired. The individually impaired
receivables were related to customers that were in financial difficulties and
management assessed that only a portion of the receivables is expected

to be recovered. Consequently, specific allowances for doubtful debts of
RMB7,225,000 (2015: Nil) were recognised.

() The balance includes prepayments for leasehold land of RMB486,773,000
(2015: RMB416,852,000).

(d)  The balance of amount due from a joint venture is unsecured, interest free

and has no fixed repayment terms.

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED SREEIZRER D H

R2016F 128318 BHREAM
FEU R IE A R 7,225,00070(2015
F:R)RERNEERLBRRE -
BRI R A ENERFIETEB L
RMBRENEP - BRERET
fETERHE AT I [0 261 FE U AR
It ERLEREEREREERA
R¥7,22500070(2015F : ) o

() ZEHBOEEBENIHRBARE
486,773,0007C(20155F : A B #
416,852,000 7T ) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Br R AR MY EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

RESTRICTED CASH ERERE
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBF ARETT
Pledged to banks for certain mortgage facilities s TRBAEMERTHRT 199,324 224,448
Pledged for bank loans FRITEFHER 574,680 206,190
Pledged for bills payables FRENERER 271,844 —
1,045,848 430,638
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RERAEEEN
(@)  Cash and cash equivalents comprise: ) BRERFLZENEE:
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BT R ARBTT
Cash at bank and on hand ROGHERE 965,685 1,688,923
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt RS ER R MY RE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(RBAHBI - HUARBTIR)
24
(b)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Cont'd) 24 BERBFLEEN(E)
Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash generated from/(used in) (b) PBRBLATFI LR £ AT 8/ (Ff
operations: BINRENEE
2016%F 20155
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBTT
Profit before taxation Bt A 712,463 1,224,002
Adjustments for: st #E
Depreciation and amortisation EREH 36,282 31,295
Impairment loss on property, W¥ - BE RRERHEEE
plant and equipment 7,340 —
Impairment loss on intangible assets ,ﬂ 3 S ERERBE 613 —
Impairment loss on trade and KA ERFIBRERE
other receivables 7,225 —
Write off of deposits HiHE® 1,000 —
Net gain on disposal of property, HEME - BE kR
plant and equipment ekt (37) (30)
Finance income BB (8,299) (9,161)
Finance costs BEKA 240,439 150,549
Change in fair value of embedded derivative  FJERREHERHRANITET A
component of the convertible notes Bz AnER 668 (19,319)
Fair value gain on derivative tTEemIAZ AR BEKER
financial instrument (9,132) —
Fair value gain on investment properties REMEL A ERE (326,451) (296,543)
Equity settled share-based payments PR DA D BER R (194) (336)
Net gain on disposal of available-for-sale HEFHHEREREFHE
investments (547) (2,382)
Dividend income BREMA (1,308) (3,567)
Net gain from disposal of other HEHMRBSREE 2 e T8
non-current financial assets (2,000) —
Share of loss of joint ventures NMEEERCEER 1,492 —
Government grants related to investment A E fﬁqﬂU\ﬁE RIEMERBN
properties recognised in other income BN B (2,962) (59,701)
Gain arising from redemption BO A ERERES 2 W
of convertible notes (14,391) —
642,201 1,014,807
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 7% 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

24 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Contd) 24 BERBFLEEN(E)
(b)  Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash generated from/(used in) b) BHANBRCEEERS (F
operations: (Contd) BINRENEER : (&)
2016%F 20155
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T R ARETT

Changes in working capital: LEERRE
Decrease/(increase) in inventories BERLD/(Em) 166,089 (2,350,664)
Increase in trade and other receivables, B 5 R E MR -
prepayments and deposits BNFIEREREM (186,133) (99,909)
Increase in restricted cash XmRHIR2EM (246,720) (232,483)
(Decrease)/increase in trade BoREMERTECRD), /L
and other payables (211,889) 298,197
(Decrease)/increase in deferred income EEWACRD),/ 1B (124,328) 163,633
Cash generated from/(used in) operations RELBME/(FRA)RE 39,220 (1,206,419)
25 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 25 HAREMEARER
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®F ARETFT
Trade and bills payables (a) BIRNTIEARENTE (a) 2,343,810 2,629,878
Receipts in advance (b) TRUGRIA (b) 1,188,327 1,298,168
Other payables and accruals (c), (d) HtbENHBRETER () ' (d) 551,887 349,086
Total Bt 4,084,024 4277132
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 i 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFRBIN - BAAREIIR)

25 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Contd)

(@) Included in trade and other payables are trade creditors with the following

ageing analysis as at the end of the reporting period:

5 BERHEMEAREE)

(@) REBERK BEZRHMEMKE
BREEAERY - HREIFOT

2016 2015

RMB’000 RMB'000

AREF T AREF T

Due within | month or on demand A1 E A AR IR Z Kk (EE 446,703 274578
Due after | month but within 3 months R E A& ER 3 E A R EE 101,996 644,849
Due after 3 months but within 6 months M3EBBER6EAREH 420912 1,088,462
Due after 6 months R 61 A 1& 215 1,374,199 621989
2,343,810 2,629,878

Trade payables mainly represent amounts due to contractors. Payment to
contractors is in installments according to progress and agreed milestones.

The Group normally retains 2% to 10% as retention money.

At 31 December 2016, included in trade payables are retention payables of
RMB31,525,000 (2015: RMB33,133,000), which are expected to be settled

after more than one year.

(b)  Receipts in advance primarily consisted of deposits and down payments
from customers for purchases of the Group's properties. Such proceeds
were recorded as current liabilities before the associated sales were
recognised. Sale of properties is subsequently recognised to the profit or loss

in accordance with the Group's accounting policy as set out in note | (w) (i).

m HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED ZREBRKIZERERLDT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 7% 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

25  TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Contd) 25 EBEZRHEMENREE)

(c) At 3l December 2016, included in other payables and accruals are deposits () M216F12A318 - H i fE R
of RMB56,531,000 (2015: RMB21,372,000), which are expected to be HREREAERBRERARE
settled after more than one year. All of the other payables and accrued 56,531,0007(2015F : A R %
expenses are expected to be settled within one year. 21,372,0007C) * EAK R —F 1%

B o AR U 3R B TR
BB —FREY -

(d) At 3l December 2016, other payables and accruals included an amount of (d) R216F12A318  HtbEMK
RMB43,050,000, representing estimated compensations in relation to a sub- BERETERBRERTH PR
lease arrangement. Subsequent to year end, the lessor issued a notice to the MBS E S AR 43,050,0007T ° F
Group for termination of the sub-lease arrangement and the Group is in the % EHEAHAREEL TRIEE
process of negotiation with the lessor on the compensations in respect of MZHERE - AEE B AT ERER

such termination. HEFHERGEEN AR RE

THET o
26  BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS 26 RITERRHMEE
At 3| December 2016, the Group's bank loans and other borrowings were R216F12A318 AEBEHRTE
repayable as follows: HEEMEENEERRDNT
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARETT

Current E

Secured HHEA

— short-term bank loans and other borrowings —RERTERREMEE 303,773 309,366

— current portion of non-current bank loans —FRBRITERK

and other borrowings HiEEROREHH 1,004,280 629,280

1,308,053 938,646

Non-current FRE

Secured HHEH

— repayable after | year but within 2 years ——FREMFRER 1,196,660 233,260

— repayable after 2 years but within 5 years —~MEREBRFENER 280,850 1,231,260
1,477,510 1,464,520
2,785,563 2,403,166
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 i 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFRBIN - BAAREIIR)

26

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Contd)

@

Certain banking facilities and borrowings of the Group are subject to the
fulfillment of covenants relating to: (1) certain of the Group's operating
subsidiaries’ statement of financial position ratios; (2) restriction of profit
distribution by certain of its operating subsidiaries; or (3) early repayment
of principal to be triggered when 70% of the gross sellable area for the
underlying property project are sold. These requirements are commonly
found in lending arrangements with financial institutions. If the Group was to
breach such covenants, the drawn down facilities would become repayable
on demand. The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these
covenants and communicates with its lenders as and when the directors

foresee any non-compliance due to business needs.

At 31 December 2016, none of bank loans of the Group (2015:
RMB186,650,000) were not in compliance with the imposed covenants.
Such non-compliance primarily relates to operating subsidiaries which failed
to achieve certain statement of financial position ratio at the end of the
reporting period. All these bank loans were classified as current liabilities in

the consolidated statement of financial position at 31 December 2015.

m HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED ZREBRKIZERERLDT
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27

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Contd)

(b)  Bank loans and other borrowings bear interest ranging from 2.12% to 9.00%
per annum for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: 2.12% to 10.23%

per annum), and are secured by the following assets:

Br R AR MY EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BREEBS - HUARSTITR)
26 WITENREMEBEE)
by REBEE006FENAIBLEEE
TEFREMEED EN T212%
£900%H F F K(Q0I5F : 2.12% %
10.23%)5t 8 » WA THIEEMEEKR :

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®FR ARETT
Properties under development for sale FEEEME 1,370,392 881,683
Completed properties held for sale FREEZTIME 1,035,441 l,146,723
Properties held for future FERREREME
development for sale 651,499 687,252
Restricted cash (note 23) R HRE (FF23) 574,680 206,190
Property, plant and equipment ME - BERRE 377,111 =
Investment properties (note 12(b)) REME (M 12(0)) 41,900 179,500
Prepayment for acquisition of property, WM - BB RREHENR
plant and equipment — 368,535
4,051,023 3,469,883
CONVERTIBLE NOTES 27 HEREE
On 23 January 2015, the Company issued convertible notes in an aggregate R20I5F1A238 - KA AER

principal amount of US dollars (“US$") 120 million due 23 January 2020 (“Maturity

Date"). The convertible notes bear interest at coupon rate of 7.00% per annum

payable semi-annually. Certain subsidiaries of the Company will unconditionally and

irevocably guarantee the due payment of all sums expressed to be payable by the

Company under the convertible notes.

Unless previously redeemed, repaid, converted or purchased and cancelled, the

Company will redeem the convertible notes at 137.48% of its principal amount on

the Maturity Date.

ﬂ%%m,\lzooooooo%m mozo
FIAVA(EMA D - THERKE
BRESERI%:E  BFFIMN—
Ko RARETFRABRAABDRE
AR RIE A AT FIA TR (R R
KR #) R

BRIEBADER €8 EHRED
ETERER - TAIRA TH%MJHH
BIZRN$EH) 137.48% 50 -
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFRBIN - BAAREIIR)

27

CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Contd)

The convertible notes were originally to be convertible at the option of the holder
into ordinary shares at the initial conversion price of HK$1.956 per share upon

issuance and subsequently adjusted to HK$1.67 in 2016.

The convertible notes holder may require the Company to redeem all or some of
such convertible notes when (i) the ordinary shares of the Company cease to be
listed or admitted to trading or suspended for a period equal to or exceeding 30
consecutive trading days on the Stock Exchange; (i) there is a change of control, or

(iii) the Company fails to meet certain sales targets in either 2015 or 2016.

Also, the convertible notes holder shall have the right to require the Company to
redeem all or some of such convertible notes at any time on or after 23 January
2018. If the convertible notes are early redeemed, the Company shall give the
convertible notes holder an internal rate of return of 13.0% upon redemption of

the convertible notes.

On |1 January 2016, amendments was made on the terms of the convertible notes.
The right of the note holder to require the Company to redeem all or some of the
convertible notes was amended to at any time on or after | | January 2016, instead
of 23 January 2018.

On 15 January 2016, 31 August 2016 and 20 September 2016, the Company
redeemed an aggregate principal amount of US$40 million, US$50 million and
US$30 million of the outstanding convertible notes and all the convertible notes
were cancelled accordingly. A gain of RMB 14,391,000 resulted from the redemption

was recorded in profit or loss for the year.

m HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED ZREBRKIZERERLDT
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27 CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Contd)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The convertible notes recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position

Br R AR MY EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

27 TWEREE(E)
RAEEA GBS R FE R 6 o] A

of the Group are analysed as follows: ZEAMMT -
Host liability Derivative
component component Total
TE oTE
a8&EH2 IEXNS st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARMTRT AR®TR
Net proceeds for the issuance FTERERN
of the convertible notes FSTRFER 525,701 210403 736,104
Interest expenses (i)/(note 6()) RIS ),/ (M6() 108,638 — 108,638
Interest expenses paid during the year FREMNMEFX (26,208) — (26,208)
Change in fair value of derivative component ITETARAP AR ENEE) = (19319) (19,319)
Exchange difference BEHER 34,149 11,542 45,691
At 31 December 2015 R20155F 124318 642,280 202,626 844,906
Interest expenses(i)/(note 6(a)) RIS,/ (HEs() 64,400 — 64,400
Interest expenses paid during the year FREMAMERZ (117,962) — (117,962)
Change in fair value of derivative component TET AL ARENES) — 668 668
Redemption of convertible notes B R EBREE (798,344) = (798,344)
Gain on redemption of convertible notes B rER RN KR 193,873 (208,264) (14391)
Exchange difference BEHER 15,753 4970 20,723
At 31 December 2016 R2016512A318 — — —
()  Interest expense (i) FEMEX

Interest expense on the convertible notes is calculated using the effective

interest method by applying the effective interest rate of 22.21% per annum

to the liability component.

(i)  Conversion rights exercised

No convertible notes were converted throughout its existing period.

ERZENFHSATRAER
FIRFZNBEDDHERFFH=E
2221%5 4 -

BATENE R

RAERFEFERRN - fiEEgH
JEBERE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt RS ER R MY RE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFRBIN - BAAREIIR)

28  DEFERRED INCOME 28 EEWA
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARETR
Government grants BUR 5Bl
At | January RIAIH 988,128 882313
Movement during the year FRE
— Government grants received (i) — BB AT B (i) 343,931 468,819
— Amortisation —#iH (468,759) (303,303)
— Recognised in other income related to - BREMFEBDOERE
investment properties (note 4(i)) H A A (B EE4()) (2,962) (59,701)
860,338 988,128
Sales and operating leaseback arrangement HERKEERER
At | January RIAIR 3,960 5,843
Movement during the year FRE
— Deferred income recognised (ii) —BHERETLA (i) [,142 1,028
— Amortisation — % (642) Q911
4,460 3,960
864,798 992,088
Included under: BIA
Current liabilities mEAE 860,994 988,564
Non-current liabilities FRBEE 3,804 3,524
864,798 992,088

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED SREEIZRER D H



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28 DEFERRED INCOME (Contd)

()

Pursuant to the respective agreements between the Group and local
governments, such grants are for subsidising the infrastructure construction
of certain projects undertaken by certain subsidiaries of the Group, including
Ningxiang Trade Centre, Yulin Trade Center, Jining Logistics Center,
Mianyang Trade Center, Ganzhou Trade Center, Wuzhou Trade Center,
Yantai Trade Center, Heze Trade Center, Lanzhou Trade Center, Huaiyuan

Trade Center and Xingning Trade Centre.

In connection with certain sales contracts entered into by Jining Hydoo
Logistics Center Development Company Limited and Wuzhou Hydoo
Commercial and Trade Centre Development Company Limited for sales of
properties, the Group subsequently leased back certain sold properties from
the respective buyers under operating leases for terms of |0 years at agreed
rental rates. Upon recognition of the sales of such properties, a portion of
the sales proceeds, which represents the excess of sales price over fair value
of such properties, is deferred and amortised over the respective terms.
During the year, the deferred revenue arising from such sales and leaseback
arrangements amounted to RMB500,000 (2015: RMB1,884,000). No such
properties were sold during the year (2015: RMB4,429,000).

Br R AR MY EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

28 EEWA(E)

()

REASEE T BRI LNSR
& AR ERNENLKE
ETHBRRENETEENE
RER ZSARBLRESNR
W IMIRA BERE - &
R BHEEMRE - BN
BEYRM  EEBEWRA
ERERE  WNEER 'R
BERLEZRENRA

ENEEREMRAFREERRF
REMNBEEEDRRAZERA
AFEIINETHEHESHD K&
ERERRBENESAEEHEE
FREBREAEEETFEELY
¥ HBRI0F - ZEMERER
HEk  HEEBEAREHAIM
HEE BT AEEH R - F
N BZEEREERERTHE
E BRI A B A R 5000007T
(20154 : AR 1,884,0007T ) °
FRNATEmEEZEME(0I5F -
AR 4429,0007T) °

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 &



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 i 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFRBIN - BAAREIIR)

29  SENIOR NOTES

29 BREE

2016 2015
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET R ARBTT

At | January RIAIA 630,614 =
Net proceeds from notes issued BOIRBMBHEREE 826,379 623,642
Interest expenses FERZ 127,654 3,825
Interest paid B E (118,920) —
Exchange difference BN ER 75,245 3,147
At 3| December RI12A31H 1,540,972 630,614
Less: Interest payable due within | year B R—FARIERE RN TR (21,621) (3,720)
Non-current portion of senior notes at RI2A3 BEEZED

31 December FERENEL D 1,519,351 626,894

(@  On I5 December 2015, the Company issued a senior note of US$100
million (equivalent to RMB646,261,000) at 99.404% with a coupon rate
of 13.75% per annum. The senior note will be due in 2018. The net
proceeds from the senior note, after deducting the transaction costs, of
US$96,500,000 (equivalent to RMB623,642,000) was received by the
Company on |6 December 2015. Interest expense on the senior note is

calculated using the effective interest rate of 15.25% per annum.

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED SREEIZRER D H

R20I5F 128158 KA 7 &
TIVEEEXETHERARS
646,261,000 ) £999.404% 18 % R
B ZEREZBNEEFEER
13.75%  #722018F 215 - /&40
BRR SRR - RRAIR20I5F
A I6RRBBAERBMENE
F 896500000 T(HER AR
#623,642,0007T) © BEZENF
BHRXRERENE 1525%5F o



29

30

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SENIOR NOTES (Contd)

(b)

On 30 August 2016, the Company issued a senior note of US$60 million
(equivalent to RMB400,872,000) at par with a coupon rate of | 1% per
annum. The senior note will be due in 2019. The net proceeds from
the senior note, after deducting the transaction costs, of US$59,720,000
(equivalent to RMB399,002,000) was received by the Company on 30
August 2016. Interest expense on the senior note is calculated using
the effective interest rate of |1.19% per annum. Mr. Wong Choihing, a
controlling shareholder of the Company and therefore, a connected person
of the Company, provides a personal guarantee in favour the performance

of the obligations by the Company.

On 14 September 2016, the Company issued a senior note of US$60 million
(equivalent to RMB400,716,000) at 104.81% of the principal amount plus
accrued interest with a coupon rate of 13.75% per annum. The senior note
will be due in 2018. The net proceeds from the senior note, after including
interest in arrear and deducting the transaction costs, of US$63,992,000
(equivalent to RMB427,377,000) was received by the Company on |5
September 2016. Interest expense on the senior note is calculated using the

effective interest rate of 12.42% per annum.

CORPORATE BONDS

During the year, the Company issued certain unlisted bonds totalling HK$ I 1.5
million (equivalent to RMB10,287,000) with a coupon rate of 5.00% to 8.00% per
annum. The net proceeds from bonds issued, after deducting the transaction costs,
of HK$10,693,000 (equivalent to RMB9,565,000) was received by the Company.

Interest expense on these unlisted bonds are calculated with the effective interest

rate of 8.41% to 13.78% per annum respectively.

29

30

Br R AR MY EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BREEBS - HUARSTITR)

BERE(Z)

(b) M2016F8A308 X 2 A %
TR EXETHERARE
4008720007 ) HEEH B E R
B RERBEZBNEEFEX
Bl1% ER2019F 5 &40
BRR SRR - RRAIR2016F
8 A30 EMGB AR BEMERIEF
#59,720000E L(HE R AR
399,002,000 ) - BAZEHF &
FAXREBREMEILI9%:E
FHREXE  RAARERRER -
FAMARARBEAT - AR
AIBTTEEREER -

() M216F9A148  KARIER
EH 10481 % MNEETMEETOR
EXT(EER AR 400716000
TRNBERE - ZEBEZEN
ZEESREI375%  HR2018
SERIH o 480 F ST A K I HIBR
REGKAE  RRAR2016F9
AISERBEAZRBMERESF
#63992000 € L(HER AR
427,377,0007T) © BERBNF S
FXREBEME 1242%518 ©

AREH

ARBBTETEEFMERS00%E
BOO%MFE LTRAFGHIISEEER
(FBERARM10287000L) RETE
HFF X B500%E800%° AQAE
WHETEFMEREFEENRR
HKA) 106930008 T(HERARE
9,565,0007T) © 3 EMEHFMFERAZ D
RliR841% = 13.78% MERFFI R E -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 i 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFRBIN - BAAREIIR)

31

32

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Defined contribution retirement plans

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“‘the MPF scheme”)
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan administered
by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees'
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000.

Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

As stipulated by the regulations of the PRC, the Group participates in various
defined contribution retirement plans organised by municipal and provincial
governments for its employees. The Group is required to make contributions to
the retirement plans ranging from 10% to 20% of the salaries, bonuses and certain
allowances of the employees. A member of the plan is entitled to a pension equal
to a fixed proportion of the salary prevailing at the member's retirement date.
The Group has no other material obligation for the payment of pension benefits

associated with these plans beyond the annual contributions described above.

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Company has a share option scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”),
which was first adopted on 30 November 201 |, whereby the directors of the
Company were authorised, at their discretion, to invite employees of the Group,
including directors of any entity comprising the Group, to take up options to
subscribe for shares of the Company. Additional options were granted to certain
employees of the Group on |6 October 2012 and 20 March 2013 respectively.
After such grants, a total number of |,715 share options were granted to
employees. Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for | ordinary share

in the Company and is settled gross in shares.

m HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED ZREBRKIZERERLDT
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32

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(@)

The terms and conditions of the options granted are as follows:

32

Br R AR MY EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

NESZEEUROBRBERNAR
(@) BENBREFRRRAEEDOT

Number  Contractual life
of instruments of options
TEZH BRESOH
() Options granted on ()  R20IIFIIA30BELN
30 November 201 | R
— directors -5F 325 85 months
8518 A
— employees —E& [,180 85 months
85 {& A
Percentage of
Vesting date vested shares
HEAH =1 |
REOHE D
31 December 2012 2012612431 H 25%
31 December 2013 2013124318 50%
31 December 2014 2014 12 A31 B 75%
3| December 2015 2015612431 H 100%
(i) Options granted on () R2NRFI0[16BELMN
|6 October 2012 BRE
— employees —E& 191 74 months
7418 A
Percentage of
vested shares
Vesting date EHE
HEAH RIBHWE DL
3| December 2013 20135124318 25%
31 December 2014 2014 12 A31 H 50%
31 December 2015 2015 12 A31 H 75%
3| December 2016 20165 12A318 100%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 i 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFRBIN - BAAREIIR)

32 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Contd)

(@)  The terms and conditions of the options granted are as follows: (Contd)

UEREEURDRERNNRE)

BHNBRERRAREEDT
(&

Number of Contractual life

instruments of options

TAHA BRESNE

(i) Options granted on () M20I13F3A0BFEM
20 March 2013 B
— directors -EZ

Vesting date

SEAH

3| December 2014 20145 12831 B
31 December 2015 201512831 B
31 December 2016 2016%F 12831 H
3| December 2017 20175 12831 B

19 69 months
69 1 A

Percentage of

vested shares

CHRE

BHNE S

25%
50%
75%
100%

The options are exercisable from six months after the Company's Global

offering date to 3| December 2018.

Pursuant to the relevant terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, on 3|
October 2013, being the listing date of the share of the Company in Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, each share with a par value of US$1.00
each under each option granted was automatically adjusted to 48,000
options and the exercise price of each option was adjusted from HK$48,654

to HK$1.014 accordingly.

m HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED SREEEZRAR D

ZEBBRETR AR S HRBER
Hs N EREZE 20185 128318
171 o

BEERCFAESHBRETE
KRR - R2013F10A318
(BIARR AR N EBE SR 5
BARARLEMAH)  EREEH
BRETSRERS | 0ETHR
P B BENFEE A 48,000 17 BE AR HE -
BEEhBRENTEEDAER
48,654 B TLIRBER 1014 8T ©



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 7% 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

32 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Cont'd) 32 MUEREEUROGAERNANRGE)

(b)  The number and the weighted average exercise price of share option are (b) BRENHERMNELITEEN
as follows: T
2016 2015

Weighted Number Weighted Number

average of Share average of Share

exercise price Options  exercise price Options

it 4 BRE il BikiE

FHTHREE 8B FHIEE g

Outstanding at the | January K1 R BRITE HK$1.014 65,755,000 HK$1.014 68,715,000
Forfeited during the year EP R HK$1.014 (660,000) HK$1.014 (2,960,000)

Outstanding at 31 December K12 A3 BRATE HK$1.014 65,095,000 HK$1.014 65,755,000

Exercisable at 31 December RI12A31 BAIATE HK$1.014 64,945,000 HK$1.014 64,032,500
The options outstanding at 31 December 2016 had a remaining weighted R216F12A3IRERTHEER
average contractual life of 2 years (2015: 3 years). BEREBLENBRTMETHENE

(20154 : 35)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 i 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFRBIN - BAAREIIR)

33 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 33 RE - RERKRE
(a)  Movements in components of equity () BRARBINEE
The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of each AEEAOERSEKE DB FA
component of the Group's consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated RELERNHRENS HERS
statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes in the Company's Bk - AR AERERAK B R
individual components of equity between the beginning and the end of the FORFRNEBFEEIMT

year are set out below:

Equity
settled

share- based

payment Retained
Capital reserve profits/
redemption Wikd (accumulated

Share Share reserve Cpital  EEURE  Exchange losses) Total

capital premium Bx reserve SUF] reserve  REEA|/ equity

ke RAEE WOBRE AARE  ERERG  ENRE (R0ER)  ERAR

The Company RMB0OO  RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMBO000  RMBOOO  RMBO00  RMBO0O0  RMB'00
G| Note 3(¢) 3(d)(i) 3(0) 3(d)v) 33(d)(iv) 33(d)(ii

i AR®TT ARBTR ARMTR AR®TI ARBTR ARMTR ARBTR ARETR

At | January 2015 RWISEIAIR 31825 12201 120 1,386,109 13881 8475 3Bl 2662962
Changes in equity for 2015: WISERZES
Loss and total comprehensive EMEFERZENASE

income for the year - - - - - 5097 (91613) (15816)
Dividends approved in respect BEERAHENRE

of the previous year 33(0)(ii) = (19248) - - - - = (19248
Fquity settled share-based WEREENRDA

transactions ERNRS - = = = (1087) = 75l (33)
At 31 December 2015 and RW0ISENAIAR

[ January 2016 WI6EIRIA 31825 1,029,736 120 1,386,109 12794 84272 (0331) 2454305
Changes in equity for 2016: WIeFRERD
Loss and total comprehensive income ~ FREFERZERALE

for the year - - - - - 74647 (181595 (106,948)
Dividends approved in respect BEEERMIEDRE

ofthe previous year b)) ) — - — - )
Fquity seftled share-based HEREELIRAE

transactions RN R - - - - (194) = = (194)
At 3| December 2016 R20I6£12831R 31,825 978,266 120 1,386,109 12,600 158919 (272,126) 2295713

m HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED ZREBRKIZERERLDT



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Contd) 33

(b)  Dividends

()

(i)

Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company attributable

to the year

Br R AR MY EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

BAE - BRERRE(E)

b k=
() BEREEEEMNLLGE
wRERE
2016 2015
RMB'000 RMB'000

AR®FR ARETT

Final dividend proposed after the end AR & AR & B IRAR S
of the reporting period of (20154 = 1.57%1L)
Nil (2015: HK1.5 cents)

per ordinary share

— 50,587

Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company attributable

to the previous financial year, approved and paid during the year

(i) FEEHERKNBEGBR

LA BEEHENERE
2016 2015
RMB'000 RMB'000

AR®T R ARETT

Final dividend in respect of the previous FBE1& 5 & Bt A ROIK {5 &9 L 1881 B

financial year, approved and paid FEARBRESSRTER 5B
during the following year, of (20154 : 6781ll)

HKI.5 cents (2015: HK6 cents)

per ordinary share

51,470 192,485
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 i 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFRBIN - BAAREIIR)

33 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Contd) 3 RA - BERRE(E)
(c)  Share capital () R=X
Authorised and issued share capital AT KRB BITRA
2016 2015
No. of shares Amount  No. of shares Amount
ROHE &8 EiavE 4= i
’000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000
Tk TER T FET
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of BREE00 BT
HK$0.01 each VL imAR 8,000,000 80,000 8,000,000 80,000
Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid: BETRARERAK -

Nominal value of

ordinary shares

EBEREE
Par value  No. of shares Par value  No. of shares
HK$ ROHE HK$'000 RMB'000
HE 000 HE ROA
BT TR TET AR¥ETR
At | January 2015, R2015F1A18 -
31 December 2015 and 015 12A31B%
31 December 2016 20165 12831 H 0.0l 4,014,844 40,148 31,825
Note: There is no change in ordinary shares during 2016 and 2015. BEE : 20165200 | SEL @R EE

& o

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED SREEEZRAR D
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Cont d)

(d)

Reserves

()

(i)

(i)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the share premium
account of the Company may be applied for payment of distributions
or dividends to shareholders provided that immediately following the
date on which the distribution or dividend is proposed to be paid,
the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary

course of business.
PRC statutory reserve

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Group's PRC
subsidiaries and relevant statutory regulations, appropriations to
the statutory reserve fund were made at 10% of profit after tax
determined in accordance with accounting rules and regulations of the
PRC until the reserve balance reaches 50% of the registered capital.
This reserve fund can be utilised in setting off accumulated losses or
increasing capital of the PRC subsidiaries provided that the balance
after such conversion is not less than 25% of their registered capital,

and is non-distributable other than in liquidation.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all relevant exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of operations
with functional currency other than Renminbi. The reserve is dealt

with in accordance with the accounting policy set out in note |(x).

Br R AR MY EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

()

(i)

(i)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 i 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFRBIN - BAAREIIR)

33 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Contd) 3 RE - HERREE)
(d)  Reserves (Contd) d) fREE)
(iv)  Equity settled share-based payment reserve (v) HEREEURGZHIBE

Equity settled share-based payment reserve represents the fair
value of the actual or estimated number of unexercised share
options granted to employees of the Group in accordance with the

accounting policy adopted for share-based payments in note | (t) (ii).

(v)  Capital reserve v)

Capital reserve is resulted from transactions with owners in their
capacity as the equity owners. The balance comprises capital reserve
surplus/deficit arising from the difference between the disposal/
acquisition consideration and its net assets value at the respective
date of disposal/acquisition, and the capital reserve transferring from

the equity settled share-based payment reserve.

(vi)  Reserve-transaction with non-controlling interests (vi)

The balance represents difference between the net identifiable assets

and the consideration paid for acquisition of non-controlling interests.

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED SREEIZRER D H
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Contd)

(e)

Distributability of reserves

As at 31 December 2016, the Company's reserves available for distribution,
calculated in accordance with the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
amounted to approximately RMB2,263,888,000 (2015: RMB2,422,500,000),
which may be distributed provided that immediately following the date on
which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a
position to pay off its debts as and when they fall due in the ordinary course

of business.

Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to fund its property
development projects, provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders, by pricing properties commensurately with the level of

risk and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital structure
to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder returns that might be
possible with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and security
afforded by a sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital

structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

Br R AR MY EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

33 BA - RERREE)

(e)

A7k

RWI6FEI2A3IA RERAE
HERBEENENARRA#HS
K& & % B AR #2263,888,000
TL(20154F © A K #2,422,500,000
7L) HEREAUESK - ERE
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFRBIN - BAAREIIR)

33  CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Contd)
() Capital management (Contd)

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its capital structure
on the basis of gearing ratio. The Group defines this ratio as total interest-
bearing liabilities (includes bank loans and other borrowings, convertible
notes, senior notes and corporate bonds) divided by total assets of the
Group. At 31 December 2016 and 2015, the gearing ratio of the Group was

calculated as follows:

33 BA - RERREE)
n EBXREEE)

BITEREPIEN  AEERREE
BRLXERHERLERE - A5E
KREMLERAFSER(BER
TERRAEMES  TBRER -
BEZRBRARER)BRIALRE
BEHME - R2016%2015F12A
3R AREZEEBRLEN
T

2016 2015
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETT

Bank loans and borrowings from SRRBRITERREMER

financial institutions 2,785,563 2,403,166
Convertible notes AEREE — 844,906
Senior notes BERE 1,519,351 626,894
Corporate bonds ARfES 9,674 =
Total interest bearing borrowings ARER 4,314,588 3874966
Total assets BEE 15,452,144 15,103,847
Gearing ratio BEABL 27.9% 25.7%

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to externally

imposed capital requirements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises in the normal
course of the Group's business. The Group s also exposed to equity price risk

arising from its equity investments in other entities.

The Group's exposure to these risks and the financial risk management policies and

practices used by the Group to manage these risks are described below.

(@)  Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to cash and cash equivalents,
restricted cash, trade and bill receivables and other receivables. Management
has a credit policy in place and the exposures to these credit risks are

monitored on an ongoing basis.

Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash held by the Group are mainly
deposited in financial institutions such as commercial banks which maintain
sound reputation and financial situation. The credit risk is considered low and

the Group has exposure limit to any single financial institution.

In respect of trade and bill receivables, credit risk is minimised as the Group
normally receives full payment from buyers before the transfer of property

ownership.

34
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(BRAFRBIN - BAAREIIR)

34

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Contd)

(@)

Credit risk (Cont'd)

In respect of other receivables due from third parties, the Group reviews the

exposures and manages them based on the need of operation.

The maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of these financial guarantees

at the end of the reporting period is disclosed in note 36.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group's exposure to credit

risk arising from trade and other receivables are set out in note 22.

Liquidity risk

The Group management reviews the liquidity position of the Group on an
ongoing basis, including review of the expected cash inflows and outflows,
sale/pre-sale results of respective property projects, maturity of loans
and borrowings and the progress of the planned property development
projects in order to monitor the Group's liquidity requirements in the short
and longer terms. The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending covenants, to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of funding
from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the

short and longer term.

m HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED ZREBRKIZERERLDT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

34  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Contd) 34 SREREERAAEE)
(b)  Liquidity risk (Contd) (b) FEEERRE)
The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities at the end TR AEBEREE(TRE
of the reporting period of the Group's financial liabilities excluding receipts AEERBRNETINFEEEDN
in advance, which the Group expects to settle by delivery of completed BRFE)IRERSHRNBTE
properties. The contractual maturities are based on contractual undiscounted WHIR - SR EREBEAOKRE
cash flows (including interest payments computed using contractual rates or, BB eNE(BENEOFEY (W
if floating, based on rates current at the end of the reporting period) and the FE)ERERRBANOFNEGEE
earliest date the Group can be required to pay: HMENFORARTEEFTEER
M&F B S E -
2016
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
CEEN: Tk ok
More than ~ More than
Within | | year but 2 year but
year or on less than less than
demand 2 years 5 years Carrying
—FR® BBE-F BBWF Total amount
BREX ELRME BIREF Bt fREE

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARETR AR®TR AR®TR ARETR

Bank loans and other borrowings $81TEFX M H S E 1434342 1,255,520 328040 3,017,902 2785563
Trade and other payables B 5 REMENRIE 2,807,641 88,056 — 2895697 2,895,697
Corporate bonds NEEH 729 7,885 3,209 11,823 9,807
Senior notes BRARER 198,398 1,308,318 462,004 1,968,720 1540972

4,441,110 2,659,779 793,253 7,894,142 7,232,039
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFRBIN - BAAREIIR)

34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Contd)

(b)  Liquidity risk (Contd)

34 SREBEERAAEBE)
(b) FEEERRE)

2015
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
BHRBRBEER

More than More than

Within | year but 2 year but

| year or less than less than
on demand 2 years 5 years Carrying
—FRNy  BE-F HBAEWF Total amount
BER BAIRWE BIRRF a5t RmEE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETE ARBTRT AR®TT ARETR
Bank loans and other borrowings #2178 1,079,279 312,039 1,275,400 2,666,718 2,403,166
Trade and other payables B 5 R HE MR ,TAI,E 2,902,382 72,862 — 2975244 2975244
Convertible notes 943,845 — — 943,845 844,906
Senior notes 89,287 89,287 783291 961,865 630614
5014,793 474,188 2,058,691 7,547,672 6,853,930

()  Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from cash and cash equivalents,

() F=ERRKR

AEENERRIZEREREER

restricted cash and borrowings issued at variable rates and at fixed rates 2EEY  XBRHHE KT X

expose the group to cash flow interest rate risk and fair value interest rate

risk respectively.

The Group does not anticipate significant impact on cash and cash

MEIEMEAETR - TR B FIRME
EFREAZED RIEHRE R
ZRBRAAENEER

Zii‘iﬁﬁ;ﬁfﬁ%&fﬁ%%fﬁw&ﬁ

equivalents and the pledged deposits because the interest rates of bank BREIIEXEAYE BARRE

deposits are not expected to change significantly.

The interest rates and terms of repayment of bank loans of the Group are

disclosed in note 26 to the financial statements. The Group does not carry

out any hedging activities to manage its interest rate exposure.
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(c) Interest rate risk (Cont'd)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Contd) 34 SREREERAAEE)
(0 F=EERE)
(i) Interest rate profile () FEBER
2016 2015
Effective Effective
Interest rate Interest rate
BRRA= BRA=
% RMB’000 % RMB'000
% AR®TR % ARETRT
Fixed rate borrowings: EEFEREER :
Bank loans and BITERREMEE
other borrowings 5.68 831,139 699 1,033,150
Convertible notes AERER — — 2221 844,906
Senior notes BEARE 13.25 1,519,351 15.25 630614
Corporate bonds NEEH 9.88 9,674 = =
Variable rate borrowings: FEIFIEEE :
Bank loans and ROTERRAMEE
other borrowings 5.18 1,954,424 598 1,370,016
Total borrowings BEE 4,314,588 3,878,686
Net fixed rate borrowings  [El7E M RS EF 5L 4
as a percentage of total EEFENBEDL
net borrowings 55% 65%
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(BRAFRBIN - BAAREIIR)

34

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Contd)

©

Interest rate risk (Cont'd)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2016, it is estimated that a general increase/
decrease of 50 basis points (2015: 50 basis points) in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, would have decreased/increased
the Group's profit after tax and total equity attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company by approximately RMB7,329,000 (2015:
decreased/increased the Group's profit after tax and total equity
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company by approximately
RMBS5, 138,000), which has not taken into account of effect of interest

capitalisation.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous change in the
Group's profit after tax (and retained profits) and other components
of consolidated equity that would arise assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the end of the reporting period and
had been applied to re-measure those financial instruments held by
the Group which expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk
at the end of the reporting period. In respect of the exposure to
cash flow interest rate risk arising from floating rate non-derivative
instruments held by the Group at the end of the reporting period, the
impact on the Group's profit after tax (and retained profits) and other
components of consolidated equity is estimated as an annualised
impact on interest expense or income of such a change in interest

rates. The analysis is performed on the same basis as 2015.

- HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED ZREBRKIZERERLDT

34

EREAREERAAEE)

(©)

FEEBR(E)
(i) BBESH

R2016F12A318 £H
twAREEERETENER
T WRIREELH TR’
501 E B (20154 : S0fE &
) EXEFRFEER
LOFET [ AEEN
BREL & FIE A D AR
REGBERER D, /1B
# A R #7329,00070(2015
FRBEFERD,Em
#)AR¥E 5,138,000 7T ) ©

LBRESTBIASE
BB NS (RREBFHE)
ARE B EMEH T
EEEMAEEE - HE
AT IRER A R & B 5 A
REEE  YEAREH:
EXREEFHA TR REH
AEREEEE QR EFE
RBROERTE - BRAE
ERImEBRFANZEBF
RFTETRELENBRER
EFIRER  HARENGR
BieMB(RRE AR ) KA
REHEEMEMAKTD
ME 8 UZFEEEHF
B HIMANFELEM
5o BEAITIR2015FH)
TREEEL -



34

(d)

Currency risk

dollars.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Contd) 34 SREREERAAEE)
d EXEkR
The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily on bank deposits, AEEREINERR  FEXREHE
convertible bonds and senior notes to which the transactions relate. The RHABORITES - TERER
currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily US dollars and Hong Kong RERRE - s EBRARNER
IERFTLIET -
(i)  Exposure to currency risk () E¥mEE
The following table details the Group's exposure at the end of each TRAMAEEN S IE D
reporting period to currency risk arising from recognised assets AHEHNEHERBRNEER
or liabilities denominated in a currency other than the functional MINEEAENEDEREE
currency of the entity to which they relate. For presentation purpose, HBEEEMNEERRE -
the amounts of the exposure are shown in RMB, translated using the 2IME  RESEUAAR
spot rate at the end of each reporting period. BT WRE RS HRE
AREELAT -
2016 2015
United States Hong Kong  United States Hong Kong
Dollars Dollars Dollars Dollars
EYr BT X BT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TR ARWTR AREBTT AR%TR
Cash and cash equivalents & RIFEEEY 92,048 9,557 515462 2,364
Restricted cash RRHRE 444018 — 206,190 —
Derivative financial fTEEMIA
instrument 27,767 — — —
Convertible notes ABRER — — (844,906) —
Senior notes BERE (1,540,972) — (630,614) =
Corporate bonds NEEH — (9,674) — —
Bank loans and RITEFREMER
other borrowings (149,839) — — —
Net exposure arising ERAEERBREESL
from recognised assets HREBR A
and liabilities (1,126,978) (117) (753,868) 2,364
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFRBIN - BAAREIIR)

34  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Contd) 34 SREREERAAEE)
(d)  Currency risk (Contd) d) EXERE)
(i) Sensitivity analysis (i) BBESH
The following table indicates the instantaneous change in the Group's MRBRERREAEERE
profit after tax (and retained profits) that would arise if foreign REEMIME b RN % B A
exchange rates to which the Group has significant exposure at the RS WRRAMEHM
end of the reporting period had changed at that date, assuming all ERZERFITE  TRE
other risk variables remained constant. TAEBEMRBEINB(R
REFIE) T RELHNH
2016 2015
Effect on Effect on
Increase/  profit after Increase/  profit after
(decrease) tax and Effect on (decrease) tax and Effect on
in foreign retained other in foreign retained other
exchange profits  components exchange profits  components
rates HERBi% of equity rates BB of equity
HMELLZ FMER HiER  MNERX MR Hiigm
t#/ REFE  HteH2 /S RERME HtHH
(TK) (02 b7 (TB) iipZ iz
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR AR%TR ARBETT ARETR
United States Dollars 57T 5%l 2,256/ 58,605/ 5%/ 5996/ 37,693/
(5%) (2,256) (58,605) (5%) (5,996) (37,693)
Hong Kong Dollars /87T 5%l =) 6/ 5%/ 118/ 118/
(5%) — (6) (5%) (118) (118)
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(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

34  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Contd) 34 SREREERAAEE)
(d)  Currency risk (Contd) d) EXERE)
(i) Sensitivity analysis (Cont d) (i) BBESF(E)
The foreign currency sensitivity analysis is calculated based on the INEBRESTTIREBEARSE
major net foreign currency exposure of the Group as at the reporting ERmE AN EENER
date, assuming 5% shift of RMB against US$ and HKD on the profit BRFEE(RE AR E
after tax and retained profits and excludes differences that would MNBRREMENS @ AR
result from the translation of the financial statements of foreign BHETRBTLFEESSH
operations into the Group's presentation currency. The analysis is 28)) RTBEHBNE
performed on the same basis for 2015. BOMBHRERAERLEE

H2F|EHRHESR - %
DI THR 2015 FEH AR EE

17 -
(e)  Equity price risk (e) RZREEXRER

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising from equity AEERHDBEARHREE LT
investments classified as available-for-sale unlisted equity securities (see note BAZEFNESREEENERE
16). BE b (R 16)

The Group's unquoted investments are held for long term strategic AEENRBERERKERDR
purposes. Their performance is assessed at least bi-annually against A% - AEEeREMFE LT
performance of similar listed entities, based on the limited information ERRAAGHNARENMEHZE
available to the Group, together with an assessment of their relevance to the REXKBELEMFAMG—R - &
Group's long term strategic plan. (R 18 55 B R £ (B = A SR K 5T 2

BRI -
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34

(

()

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Contd) 34 SREREERAAEE)
Fair value measurement ) AREE
Financial instruments measured at fair value () BARETEHNEHIA
The following table presents the fair value of financial instruments TREINFSHRALE
measured at the end of the reporting period on a recurring basis, |$—?EE‘J AENERIARR
categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in {8 - WIRBIRR B B R & 2R
IFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level into which a fair value FI13% - RAE aJriﬁfrﬁari
measurement is classified is determined with reference to the NEABZERAERA -
observability and significance of the inputs used in the valuation REFERZEZMRIT 0 )
technique is listed in note 12(b). FR5I (B 7 AT R A
FEUBEMEREZEMS
BRETEERR -
Fair value Fair value
measurements measurements
as at as at
31 December 31 December
2016 2015
categorised categorised
Fair value at  into Level 2 Fair value at into Level 2
31 December R2016%F 31| December R2015F
2016 12A31 R 2015 12A31H
R 2016 F 28R RWISF EY:
12A31H EZ&H 12A31H F R
WARE AAERE HARE QAEGFE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR AR¥Trn ARBTT AR®TR
Recurring fair value REMDAAETE
measurements
Assets: BE:
Other non-current HtIEngemEE
financial assets:
— Derivative financial —TESRTIA
instrument 27,767 27,767 — —
Liabilities: af&:
Derivative financial THEEmIA -
instruments:
— Embedded derivative — A EBRREER
component of the BRARITER S
convertible notes — — 202,626 202,626
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34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Contd)

() Fair value measurement (Contd)

()

(i)

Financial instruments measured at fair value (Cont d)

During the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, there were
no transfers between Level | and Level 2, or transfers into or out of
Level 3. The Group's policy is to recognise transfers between levels
and fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in which

they occur.

Valuation technigues and inputs used in Level 2 fair value

measurements

The fair value of wealth management products in Level 2 is the
estimated amount that the Group would receive upon expiry or
termination at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the

related current interest rates.

The fair value of the derivative component of conversion option
and redemption option embedded in the convertible bonds are

determined using binomial tree model.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried at other than fair

value

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial instruments carried at
cost or amortised cost were not materially different from their fair
values as at 31 December 2016 and 2015.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFRBIN - BAAREIIR)

35 COMMITMENTS

35 AR
(a)  Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2016 contracted but not () M2016%F 12431 BEFTAERE
provided for in the financial statements were as follows: BRRABRENETRENT
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBTT
Construction and development contracts BEREREN LITI 114 2,146,456
Land agreements TR 240,550 228,770
1,351,664 2,375,226
(b) At 31 December 2016, the total future minimum lease payments under non- (b) M2016F12A31 8 REFAH

cancellable operating lease are payable as follows:

HEERERNARKERSRE
HEHERMT :

2016 2015
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETT

Within | year —ER 13,728 57441
After | year but within 2 years —FREMER 10,250 51,828
After 2 years but within 5 years MEREBRER 28,926 104,352
After 5 years ik 37,355 47,000

90,259 260,621

The Group leases a number of building facilities under operating leases. The
leases typically run for an initial period of | to 10 years, with an option to
renew the lease after that date at which time all terms are renegotiated.

None of the leases includes contingent rentals.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

COMMITMENTS (Contd)

©

At 31 December 2016, the total future minimum lease payments under non-

cancellable operating leases are receivables as follows:

35

Br R AR MY EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

REEE)
() R2016F12A318  BRETAHK

HEERERYARREES 18
BRI ¢

2016 2015
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET R ARBTT

Within | year —FR 37,043 59,830
After | year but within 2 years —ERERMENR 32,956 57277
After 2 years but within 5 years MERBRER 72219 134,572
After 5 years hFE 47,662 93,830

189,880 345,509

The Group leases out a number of properties under operating leases. The
leases typically run for an initial period of 2 to |5 years. None of the leases

includes contingent rentals.

All properties held under operating leases that would otherwise meet the

definition of investment property are classified as investment property.

AEERBEERERBLREY
¥ - HBONS-RAMFETH
Fo-HEHEREIAES

MAERBRERNBALTSRE
NEEBLDERBRARENE -
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(BRAFRBIN - BAAREIIR)

36

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Guarantees

The Group provided guarantees in respect of mortgage facilities granted by certain
banks in connection with the mortgage loans entered into by purchasers of the
Group's properties. Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, if there is default of
the mortgage payments by these purchasers, the Group is responsible to repay
the outstanding mortgage loans together with any accrued interest and penalty
owned by the defaulted purchasers to the banks. The Group's guarantee period
commences from the dates of grant of the relevant mortgage loans and ends upon
the earlier of the buyer obtained the individual property ownership certificate and

the full settlement of mortgage loans by the buyer.

The maximum amount of guarantees given to banks for mortgage facilities granted
to the purchasers of the Group's properties at the end of each reporting period is

as follows:

36

HAREE
B’R

AEBAETRITRASRENEET
AU MEBERMKHNRBRERME
R - REBERGT - HZEETER
BREAZR WAKEAREEEREN
RBETERZORETEMN TRITOME
RN RER - REBMERDH
HEZBEFRLBHE  EE2ERN
RENEEE R 2BANRBER AR
PERE)RL

RERERRAAERENEE S ERD
BBBEMARTELNEAEREE
mr

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTR ARBTT
Guarantees given to banks for mortgage facilities RAREENXE L ERRNRE
granted to purchasers of the Group's properties BE M RRITIELNER 2,881,778 2,818,864

The directors consider that it is not probable that the Group will sustain a loss
under these guarantees as the Group can take over the ownerships of the related
properties and sell the properties to recover any amounts paid by the Group to the
banks. The directors of the Company also consider that the fair market value of the
underlying properties is able to cover the outstanding mortgage loans guaranteed

by the Group in the event the purchasers default payments to the banks.

The Group has not recognised any deferred income in respect of these guarantees

as its fair value is considered to be minimal by the directors of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 37

Except for the amount due from a joint venture as set out in note 22, the other

material related party transactions are disclosed as follows:

(@)  Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group, including
amounts paid to the Company's directors as disclosed in note 8 and certain
of the highest paid employees as disclosed in note 9, is as follows:

Br R AR MY EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

EABBIRS
B BRI 2 B AT REN - &
BB XS RENT -

) TREEAEHM

AEETRERABHMEREME
BB EMARAIEENNESHE
EMEIMBERETRS5ER
XNEEEE - FIWT

2016 2015

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBTT

Contribution to defined contribution FERMTURIKGTE
retirement plans 516 462
Wages, salaries and other benefits in kind I8 HFekHEMEMEM 30,170 23,500
Equity settled share-based payments PARE & 5 B DARR 10 R ERER R — 554
30,686 24516

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note 6(b)).

(b)  Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to connected transactions

Mr. Wong Choihing provides a personal guarantee in favour the performance
of the obligations by the Company and the subsidiary guarantors under of
the US$60,000,000, | 1% senior notes issued on 30 August 2016. Mr. Wong
Choihing is a controlling shareholder of the Company and therefore, a
connected person of the Company under Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules.
The personal guarantee constitutes a connected transaction of the Company
under Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules. However, as the personal guarantee
is not secured by any assets of the Group and is conducted on normal
commercial terms or better, the personal guarantee is fully exempted
from shareholders” approval, annual review and all disclosure requirements
pursuant to Rule [4A.90 of the Listing Rules.

No other related party transactions falls under the definition of connected
transaction or continuing connected transaction as defined in Chapter [4A
of the Listing Rules.

HeBmgn EIRAI(FLH
BiEE 6(b)) °

(b)) LEHRABBERZNERML

THELEARRDRRWEBAR
ERABIT2016F8A30H 34T
960,000,000 E 7T | I % B EREH
EEREEAER THELER
AREERBRR - A MAARA
MEEAL - RIEETRAIE 14A
T ZERAERBEARAING
ER5 o Rl AREABRY &
AEEAMEEEER  YWAER
HEEHEERTET WEA
BRREZTZ2HEBELTRAE
[4A90 (RBFRRILE « FEEZ
BB RBRE -

MELMER TR BN EMRR
FHAEAERNREIIAFE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFRBIN - BAAREIIR)

38 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 38 AREEMNBMBEMRRE
2016 2015
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B zE AR®T R ARBFT
Non-current assets FRBEE

Interests in subsidiaries RF AR ER 2,314,592 1,755,981
Other non-current financial asset HMERBEHEE 27,767 —
2,342,359 1,755,981

Current assets RBEE
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables 1&® * 819508 R KA KR IE 1,639,742 1,611,965
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkBeEEN 50,395 602,122
1,690,137 2,214,087

Current liabilities nREBEE
Other payables and accruals H it et R B AT IR 57,919 43943
Bank loans and other borrowings BTERRAMEE 149,839 =
Convertible notes AERER = 844,906
207,758 888,849
Net current assets RBEEFE 1,482,379 1,325,238
Total assets less current liabilities HWEERRDEE 3,824,738 3081219

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED SREEIZRER D H
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Br R AR MY EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Contd) 38 AREBENRBRRER(E)
2016 2015
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
BisE ARBF ARBTT
Non-current liabilities kREBEE
Senior notes BAZRE 1,519,351 626,894
Corporate bonds NEEH 9,674 =
1,529,025 626,894
NET ASSETS BERE 2295713 2,454,325
Capital and reserves BRAR #E 33(a)
Share capital A 31,825 31,825
Reserves il 2,263,888 2,422,500
TOTAL EQUITY BLAE 2295713 2,454,325
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30 March 2017. R2017F3A0EBEESHERRHE
T3 o
Wang Jianli Wang Dewen
TR EX:-3'¢
Chairman and Executive Director Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
ITEFBITEE PITEERTBAEH
IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY 39 EERRAERE

As at 31 December 2016, the directors consider the immediate parent and
ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Most Trend Holdings Limited, which
is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability and beneficially
owned by the Controlling Shareholders. This entity does not produce financial

statements available for public use.

RI6FNANR BEZREAEE
EROARRERERSAZRIERE
RAR ZARRKBERRESEM
RALABERARTAHFERERRRER
BE ZEBUEREELARBRNMN
BRE -
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5 75 i 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFRBIN - BAAREIIR)

40

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2016

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the IASB has issued a few

amendments and new standards which are not yet effective for the year ended 3|

December 2016 and which have not been adopted in these financial statements.

40

REZ2016F 12831 BLEFECEMG
BREXPWERT - FEARZENT

Emﬁ/g‘E

EZZEUMBREANERE  BRes
RABEREEMETREZE20I6F 12
A3 BILEEMAER AW ERZ S
BREEMEBE T R R -

Effective for
accounting periods

beginning on or after

RUTE#g 2%

Rz et EEXR

Amendments to IAS 12, Recogn/'t/bn of deferred tax assets for unrealised losses | January 2017
REFTRANF 12R(BRIK) - BFAEHER LN EEE 017F1 A1 R
Amendments to IAS 7, Disclosure Initiative | January 2017
BlIlR st RAETRERIAR) - KFHE 0I7F1 A1 R
IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers (i) | January 2018
BB RS R E (5% - KEEFE#HKE (i) 2018F1A1A8
IFRS 9, Financial instruments | January 2018
BRMBREEANEIS  2HTA 20181 A1 H
Amendments to IFRS 2, Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions | January 2018
BRI RELENE 2 R(EFTAN) - UKD BERIN IR 52 HHFETE 018F 1 A1 R
IFRS 16, Leases (i) | January 2019
BIRREA TS SR RIS 16 5% - HE (i) 2019%1 A1 8

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28, Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and

its Associate or Joint Venture
BRI BREEAF 05 RER e ERE 285 (BFIX) - KEZLEH L
BEPEZANEEL E3)TE

Alg

To be determined

==

FE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (Contd)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of
these amendments and new standards is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far the Group has identified some aspects of the new standards
which may have a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.
Further details of the expected impacts are discussed below. As the Group has not
completed its assessment, further impacts may be identified in due course and will
be taken into consideration when determining whether to adopt any of these new
requirements before their effective date and which transitional approach to take,

where there are alternative approaches allowed under the new standards.

(i)  IFRS I5, Revenue from contracts with customers

The IASB has issued a new standard for the recognition of revenue. This
will replace IAS 18 which covers contracts for goods and services and IAS
I'l'which covers construction contracts. The new standard is based on
the principle that revenue is recognised when control of a good or service
transfers to a customer. The standard permits either a full retrospective or a

modified retrospective approach for the adoption.

40
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BSHEB - BUARSTIR)

REBZ216F 12831 HEFECHEF
BREMNETT  HEARREHT
REE(E)
AEBIEETEERRFBE - MER
HEXNERBETREENTE - HE
BRI AL AEBEEHAL AL EE 6
MBBREKERTZENHHER -
WERERAYEE T XCETFHA
e AR EAASBERNATHTME B
WHEEERRRNEEMTE K&
BERATRERAMERAZEBISNE
Al URERMEBE A E(ERAREBE
MEATARABRRAROBER) e
ZREAZEBITNERREROY
2,

() EIRBBHEEEREISH KA
EF &AM R
B e ERREQEM T — Rk
AHERNFER - ZERHRRE
Efm kR E RS ER 25 E8
FI8FRBERESRNERES
ATERIE 5 FERERN R
B R AT B m SR B P R
BREPET TIAER - YA FE
RAZEAREREREISRE
B -
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRABIEMIN - HAARMSIR)

40 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (Contd)

()  IFRS I5, Revenue from contracts with customers (Cont d)

Management is currently assessing the effects of applying the new standard
on the Group's consolidated financial statements and has identified the

following areas that are likely to be affected:

®  revenue from service — the application of IFRS |5 may result in the
identification of separate performance obligations which could affect

the timing of the recognition of revenue.

®  accounting for certain costs incurred in fulfilling a contract — certain
costs which are currently expensed may need to be recognised as an

asset under IFRS 15, and

®  rights of return — IFRS |5 requires separate presentation on the
balance sheet of the right to recover the goods from the customer

and the refund obligation.

At this stage, the Group is not able to estimate the impact of the new rules
on the Group's consolidated financial statements. The Group will make

more detailed assessments of the impact over the next twelve months.

IFRS 15 is mandatory for financial years commencing on or after | January
2018. At this stage, the Group does not intend to adopt the standard before

its effective date.

m HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED SREEEZRAR D
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (Contd)

(ii)

IFRS 16, Leases

IFRS 16 will result in almost all leases being recognised on the balance sheet,
as the distinction between operating and finance leases is removed. Under
the new standard, an asset (the right to use the leased item) and a financial
liability to pay rentals are recognised. The only exceptions are short-term

and low-value leases.

The accounting for lessors will not significantly change.

The standard will affect primarily the accounting for the Group's operating
leases. As at the reporting date, the Group has non-cancellable operating
lease commitments. However, the Group has not yet determined to what
extent these commitments will result in the recognition of an asset and a
liability for future payments and how this will affect the Group's profit and

classification of cash flows.

Some of the commitments may be covered by the exception for short-term
and low-value leases and some commitments may relate to arrangements

that will not qualify as leases under IFRS 6.

The new standard is mandatory for financial years commencing on or after
| January 2019. At this stage, the Group does not intend to adopt the
standard before its effective date.

There are no other IFRSs that are not yet effective that would be expected

to have a matenial impact on the Group.

40
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP

rEERBZRENE

COMPLETED INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
ExXTREMNE

No. Properties

e

Type  Term of land
Ehil THEFR

Floor area

BEER
sq.m.

FAK

Percentage of
interest of
the Company
ARA

R LB

| Portion of office and retail units of
Haode Yinzuo,
|8 Zhangjiang South Avenue,
Zhanggong District, Ganzhou,
Jiangxi Province,
PRC
i
AL
M
ERRE
FIIRAAEI8H
SIBIRE
MARTEEMID

2 Guangcai Trade Plaza Convention Center of
Ningxiang Trade Center,
2 Yuxing Road, Yutan Town,
Ningxiang County,
Changsha,
Hunan Province,
PRC
i
A
=920
B
FBEEF B
BREERT L
RREHEGERT L

office Medium
/N ]
commercial

[GES

convention center Medium

2RPL b

m HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED SREEIZRER D H

1,836

382

33,823

100%

100%



No.

Properties

i M5

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP
rEERBZRENE

Type
it

Term of land

T EFR

Percentage of

Floor area interest of
BEMEE the Company
sq.m. RQF
5K LAl

Portion of Jewel Market and Convention Center of
Wuzhou Trade Center,

| West Shundi Avenue,

Changzhou District,

Wuzhou,

Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region,

PRC

Y

BEhitke )RR

BN

=9/l

ZEYNERTEL
BNEEDRTOERRRERT LD

Portion of Small Commodity Market of Zone B of
Jining Trade Center,

Taibai West Road and State Road |05,

Jining,

Shandong Province,

PRC

R

WERE

e

AT

A E TR ER | 055 8 AR
BEEE BT LBE
N R RI RS D

convention center
AL
2R

commercial

[GES

Medium
HH]

Medium
HH]

18,250 100%

50,481 100%
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP
rEERBZRENE

Percentage of

Floor area interest of

BEMEE the Company

No. Properties Type Term of land sq.m. b NN
ik = b Fic) T FR 5K LAl

5, Portion of Comprehensive Exhibition Center, commercial Medium 58,853 100%
Ganzhou Hydoo Trade Center, EES aab=t
Southwest side of Tan Dong Road Two,

Ganzhov,

Jiangxi Province,

PRC

R

AL

M

Y Rz sl
BNREHEDRE
HAgRPLZED

6 Portion of Hall 3, commercial Medium 28011 100%
Hydoo International Trade Center, EES ER
1228 North Second Ring Road,

Yulin,

Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region,
PRC

R

i =Py

EMH

—HRIEER 12285

BiEEREmEN

35 EE 2 #
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